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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
EHEREBEAERAR

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (Stock code:
01169) (the "Company”), a subsidiary of Haier
Group, is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the research, development,
manufacture and sale of washing machines and
water heaters in the PRC under the brand name
of “Haier”. The Group is also engaged in the
integrated channel services business for other
home appliance products such as refrigerators,
televisions and air-conditioners, of both “Haier”
and “non-Haier” brands, substantially broadening
its sources of revenue and driving its profit
growth.

Founded in 1984, Haier Group is headquartered
in Qingdao, Shangdong Province, the PRC and is
today one of the world’s leading white goods
home appliance manufacturers engaging in the
research, development, production and sale of a
wide variety of household appliances (including
the white goods) and consumer electronic goods
in the PRC. The products of Haier Group are
now sold in over 100 countries.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
BREREEFRLA

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. YANG Mian Mian (Chairman)
Mr. ZHOU Yun lJie
Mr. LI Hua Gang

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Ke Song (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. LIANG Hai Shan
Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Yinong
Mr. YU Hon To, David
Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Alternate Director
Mr. GUI Zhaoyu (alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG)

Principal Board Committees

Audit Committee

Mr. YU Hon To, David (Committee Chairman)
Mr. WU Yinong
Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Remuneration Committee

Mr. WU Yinong (Committee Chairman)

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Mr. YU Hon To, David

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG and Mr. GUI Zhaoyu
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG)
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Nomination Committee

Mr. YU Hon To, David (Committee Chairman)

Mr. WU Yinong

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Mr. ZHOU Yun lJie

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG and Mr. GUI Zhaoyu
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG)

Strategic Committee

Mr. ZHOU Yun lJie (Committee Chairman)

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG and Mr. GUI Zhaoyu
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. NG Chi Yin

LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong Law
DLA Piper Hong Kong

As to Bermuda Law

Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL BANKER IN HONG KONG

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKER IN THE PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Six-month interim period end © 30 June
Financial year end : 31 December
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6 Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
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"\ CORPORATE INFORMATION 42T % %

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 3513

35/F., The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Haier Industrial Park
No. 1, Haier Road
Qingdao, the PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Tengis Limited
26/F., Tesbury Center
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

TELEPHONE NUMBER
+852 2169 0000

FAX NUMBER
+852 2169 0880
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Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited:
01169

WEBSITE

www.haier-elec.com.hk

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Elite Investor Relations Limited
Rm1701-2, 17/F, The Hong Kong Club Building
3A Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

Telephone Number 1 (852) 3183 0225
Fax Number : (852) 2155 9165
E-mail Address : jonathan kiu@elite-ir.com
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as a year of significant milestones in Haier
We achieved record financial results,
d t development of our three major
complished a series of key investments and
also introduced a strategic investor for
ur corporate governance, laying a solid foundation
re development.

IGNIFICANT ACHIEVEMENT

Thanks to the outstanding performance of the integrated
channel services and water heater businesses, as well as the
healthy growth of the washing machine business, our revenue
as reported were RMB49.9 billion in 2011, representing an
increase of 35.6%, while profit before tax were RMB1.85
billion. Profit attributable to owners of the Company reached
RMB1.406 billion, an increase of 44.3%. Diluted earnings per
share was RMB55.44 cents, up 34.9%.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd

BHEREEARAR

SIGNIFICANT ACHIEVEMENT (Contd)

In terms of single brand’s sales volume, our washing machines
continued to rank first in the world. Our water heaters also
maintained its leading position in the domestic market. The
washing machine and water heater businesses have built a full
penetrative portfolio of brands: Casarte, Haier and Leader,
and continually increased the market share of high-end
products. Our Haier Exclusive sales points covered 2,169
counties, representing close to 100% coverage. The
Goodaymart channel serving diversified brands has also
established broad sales networks in China, including 16
Goodaymart joint venture companies.

We completed a series of strategic acquisitions in 2011 so as
to complement the necessary strategic assets, as well as
enrich our integrated channel services business. With the
acquisition of after-sale service network from the Haier Group,
we own a nationwide home appliance services network which
facilitate the expansion of our 3rd party after-sale service
business and strengthening the key competitive edge of the
integrated channel services business. The e-store platform
purchased from the Haier Group enabled the Company to
have an online sales channel specifically for the Haier brand.
Through a combination of the distributing, logistics and
services networks, the e-store platform would also increasingly
attract online customers and provide a better experience by
integrating virtual and physical experience. In October 2011,
we announced the establishment of a joint venture company
with Home Retail Group (UK) Limited to develop a general
merchandise multi-channel retailing business that utilizing
online, catalog and telephone channels, as a strategic
investment to enhance our competitiveness in the era of the
Internet.

In 2011, we entered into a strategic cooperation agreement
with the Carlyle Group and issued convertible bonds amount
of HK$1.067 billion (approximately RMB874 million), leveraging
on the experience of our strategic investor to further develop
our integrated channel services business. As the Chairman of
the Company, | am well aware that the strategic development
of the integrated channel services business is of paramount
importance for the Group. We would like to keep an open
mind and invite strategic partners and talents to join this new
venture. We believe that the global vision and advanced
shareholder value management practices of the Carlyle Group
will bring great benefits to us.
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SIGNIFICANT ACHIEVEMENT (Contd)

On the board level, we have appointed an external non-
executive director, optimizing the structure of our board. |
hope the Group is able to build a more diverse, efficient and
open-minded board in the coming years. We'll strengthen the
interaction between the board and the operations
management, which will enable the board to concentrate on
compliance as well as forward looking strategies, in light of
the increasingly challenging business environment and
changing market dynamics.

We have introduced a self-driven working culture by aligning
the interests of the Company and our employees, so as to
create a win-win situation. Vertically, we have simplified the
multilayered organization structure, while horizontally, we
have coordinated our business and supporting units into one
goal-orientated team. By doing so, we created numerous first-
rate operational models and induced a useful motivational
effect. Under the pioneering self- management model, our
employees become their own CEO, allowing us to be more
directly involved with the market and customers, effectively
supporting the Company for further innovations.

NEW TRENDS

I think it is helpful to look back to our strategic moves we
had made in the past few years. The strategies and relevant
investments that we undertook in 2010 and 2011 were driven
by our belief that the following trends would continue to
affect both Haier Electronics and other industry players:

o The competitive environment of the home appliance
market in China will change from price war to customer
value creation.

Having been in the Chinese home appliance market for
20 years, the most common form of competition is a
price war, which includes producing products solely for
the pricing advantage, or implementing excessive rebate
policies to distributors etc. The purpose of price wars is
to gain market share, rather than creating customer
value through product innovation. However, experience
reminds us that although price wars would elevate
profitability of a single quarter, or even one to two
years, product innovation is the key to long-term
success. Taking washing machine products as an
example, we experienced a short-term market share
decline in the first half of last year. However, at the
end of last year, we introduced a series of innovative
“Cloud Power” products, which realized water energy
savings 56% higher than the “A-level” qualified top-
loading wash machines. We also launched the world’s
first “SD core inverter technology”, which combined
three advantages of radiation prevention, ultra silent
and high washing efficiency. In the past few months,
our market share in the washing machine business has
even reached a higher level as compared with the

beginning of this year.
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NE

W TRENDS (Contd)

In the vast 3rd and 4th tier markets, the distribution of
home appliances will evolve from an agency model to a
solution-driven service model.

Different from large cities in China, the distribution
structure in the 3rd and 4th tier markets is highly
fragmented. The coverage rates of large-scaled retail
chains in counties, towns and villages in China are
relatively low. Several home appliance brands have
established its own channels in counties and towns, but
the variety of products are limited. Residents in counties
and towns mostly purchase home appliances which are
trickled down from the provincial, city and county
levels, as well as village wholesale agents. The city and
county level agents usually undertake the logistics and
capital platform functions for town and village level
retailers.

It is expected that the home appliance distribution
channels in the 3rd and 4th tier markets will face more
pressure for the improvement of efficiency and
consolidation subsequent to the fade out of the “Rural
Area Subsidized Electrical Appliances Purchase” policy,
of which we believe logistics and distribution are the
key elements. An integrated logistics platform driven by
the just-in-time model will allow our retail partners to
keep less inventory and reduce delivery costs, so that
retailers can enjoy lower procurement cost and end
customers would be benefitted accordingly.

We see the inevitable integration of physical home
appliance stores and virtual channels.

In recent years, e-commerce has brought impacts to
conventional home appliance stores. In my opinion,
online sales will develop swiftly in the foreseeable
future, however physical stores will still be the primary
way for customers to purchase home appliances. Online
channels cannot fully solve customer experience
problems arising from delivery, installation and service,
therefore the most affected products are those
standardized lower price appliances. Moreover, physical
stores and points-of-sales must adjust its retail model to
respond to the growing trend of the Internet, which
means they need to extend into the online world to
enable customers to strengthen their shopping
experience in order to realize the integration of the
virtual and physical networks. The competitive strength
of online store are pricing and convenience. If there is a
channel that can combine the good customer
experience at physical stores with the efficiency and
convenience of e-commerce, such a channel will take
the lead.
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STRATEGIES IN 2012

What about 2012? How will the home appliances industry in
China be developed subsequent to the end of the “Rural Area
Subsidized Electrical Appliances Purchase” policy? What is the
implication from decreased growth estimate of the Chinese
economy and the continued control measures on real estate?
There are three points | would like to make: firstly, the
consumption of Chinese home appliance and household
products is affected by the real estate market only on a
short-term basis. On a medium to long term basis, product
replacement and new purchase demands in the 3rd and 4th
tier markets has vast potential. Secondly, the future growth of
brown goods, digital products, kitchen appliances and small
appliances will be considerable. Thirdly, although there is
market volatility in the short-term, we have planned our
strategic focus ahead to deal with it effectively.

In a tightening economic environment, home appliance
distributors are going to care more about sustainable long-
term relationships, shy away from short-term practices such as
stockpiling and dumping, and be more focused on cash flow.
This is more compatible with our customer-oriented and just-
in-time service models. Besides, when you look at our
integrated channel services business, including the logistics,
after-sale and online store businesses, many areas of our
service business are countercyclical and can mitigate the
effects of adverse economic conditions. The investment in
these service businesses will enable us to maintain the

competitive strength.

| must admit however, that although the integrated channel
services business generated good results in last year, there is
still room for improvement. For example, the customized and
added-value service solutions for the Haier brand channels is
not sufficient, the cooperation between our distribution arm
and 3rd party branded suppliers have yet to achieve the ideal
level, and the synergies from joint venture companies have
not been fully realized etc, which indicated that our relevant
transformation mechanisms and measures have not kept pace
with the development of the new business.
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STRATEGIES IN 2012 (Contd)

In 2012, we have four main themes as follows:

Accelerate our growth

For the washing machine and water heater businesses,
we will focus on developing our high-end brand,
Casarte, and our customized brand, Leader. Casarte
strives to provide an elegant and exquisite life style. It
advocates the philosophy of “creative home appliances,
elegant life style” targeting high-end users. A newly
introduced brand in 2011, Leader, adheres to the design
philosophy of practicality in combination with modular
customization, and is distributed with the support from
the online sales channel. The multi-brand strategy
enables our washing machine and water heater
businesses to efficiently cover the popular price segment
while maximizing revenue, as well as occupy the high-
end market and stimulate high-end demand, and finally
provide cost-effective products to capture low-end
market share.

The integrated channel services segment is the main
growth driver of our business in the future. The key
point for this year is to improve operational efficiency of
franchise stores, enrich procurement brands and
consolidate logistics distribution. We will introduce more
scientific, standardized store management measures, train
franchise store owners and employees in the 3rd and
4th tier markets, make efforts to increase the
productivity of each store’s selling space and enhance
the customer’s shopping experience. We will substantially
expand and introduce main brands which are popular in
the 3rd and 4th tier markets to most of the Goodaymart
stores, so as to attract more retailers to join in the
Goodaymart network. We will consolidate the logistics
distribution networks of the Haier brand and 3rd party
brands in the 3rd and 4th tier markets, and develop
logistics distribution points directly to the town level at
selected experimental region.
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4,

STRATEGIES IN 2012 (Contd)

Innovate

We are simultaneously managing two types of business,
the relatively mature white goods manufacturing and
sales business, and the emerging integrated channel
services business. For the white goods business, we will
continue to strengthen product and service innovation.
On one hand, we will make use of worldwide R&D
resources including the cooperation with international
partner, such as Fisher & Paykel and the Haier Group's
newly acquired Sanyo white goods team, to design
personalized products which have advanced functions
and can fulfill the needs of local customers. On the
other hand, we will improve customers’ purchasing
experience and build high loyalty relationships with
customers, through exploring online sales channels,
creating personalized designs, as well as providing
overall home-living solutions in conjunction with the
Haier Group.

Unlike product innovation, our current development of
the integrated channel services business is a strategic
innovation, which requires us to enter into new markets,
mastering new customer relationships and develop a
new profit model. Such strategic innovation, needs
distinct ways of management, and requires a continued
entrepreneurial mindset while utilizing the existing
resources. It is a new winning formula and we must be
open-minded with a positive attitude to learn and
practice.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd

BHEREEARAR

4. STRATEGIES IN 2012 (Cont<d)

Strengthen integration and partnering

Since 2010, we have made acquisitions of strategic
assets relating to logistics and services from the parent
company, invested and established 16 joint venture
enterprises specializing in the 3rd party business, as well
as entered into the multi-channel merchandising
business. For us, the announcement of the joint
ventures and strategic alliances is only the first step.
Shareholder value will only be created after the full
utilization of each others resources and completion of
the established strategies after the transactions.
Therefore, the key focus in 2012 is to strengthen the
integration management of the new acquisitions and
joint venture companies, closely evaluate the joint
venture units’ performance and the status of the
business plan’s achievement, actively mitigate
organizational and personnel risks during the process of
integration, so as to realize synergies.

It is expected that we will recruit professional talents
with experience in mergers and acquisitions or strategic
alliances management, and strengthen the overall
governance capabilities in the postdeal integration,
aiming to achieve the desired strategic objectives of the
integrated channel services business.

Aligning the interests of the Company and its
employees to create a win-win management culture.

Big enterprises are prone to developing a low-efficiency
and bureaucratic culture — numerous rigid policy rules,
fussy approval processes, multilayered hierarchy, and
top-down decision mechanism. Our ideal management
model is for employees to become their own CEO.
Instead of their supervisor, the market and customers
are their boss, to have their own personal commitment
and performance report (similar to the Company’s profit
and loss statement). Employees should be empowered,
to utilize related internal resources and support
personnel, collectively make the Company accomplish its
strategic goals while at the same time achieve his own
objectives, and thereafter share the created value to the
largest extent possible. | hope that by creating a culture
that aligns the interests of the Company and its
employees, we will be able to greatly lower our costs
of management, so that our organization becomes self-
driven and self-motivated, realizing an ever-green
foundation.
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PROSPECTS

2012 signals the end of the “Rural Area Subsidized Electrical
Appliances Purchase” policy. The growth of the macro
economy will show a greater uncertainty as compared with
2011. However, | believe that our business model and
operational structure will be beneficial for us to better grasp
the strategic opportunities. With cash reserves of nearly RMB4
billion, our investment in core and strategic assets can be
more aggressive.

During the past several years, we have put tremendous efforts
into developing the integrated channel services business in the
domestic market, which has become the major source of
revenue as well as a significant profit contributor for the
Company. However, when | envisage how to develop and
improve this business, which is different from our home
appliance manufacturing and sales business in the past, we
understand that we are still learning continuously. There is
still some way to go in terms of fully transforming our
resources advantage into a competitive edge. What we can
foresee is that 2012 will be a challenge in our strategic
execution capabilities, requiring us to innovatively develop our
cooperation with branded supplies, retailer partners,
transportation fleet owners and consumers in order to build
long-term cooperative relationships step by step.

Please be assured that my team and | are passionate, and are
fully committed to capturing the growth opportunities of the
distribution channels in the 3rd and 4th tier markets. | also
firmly believe that our entrepreneurial mindset and unwavering
commitment to consumer interests will enable us to effectively
seize the strategic opportunities in 2012, taking the Company
to the next phase of innovation. Looking in hindsight at the
many years of development of the Company, as long as we
continue to place customer satisfaction as the top priority,
design products which can change and improve people’s
quality of life, establish a service system which can generate a
good customer experience, the Company will be able to
create and share value.

We would like to express our deepest gratitude to all our
shareholders. It is your continued support that enables us to
jointly develop this business and create value.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd

BHEREEARAR

The directors and senior management of the Group as at the date
of this report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. YANG Mian Mian, aged 70, has served as the Chairman and
an Executive Director of the Company since January 2005. Ms. Yang
is responsible for determining corporate strategies and overall
management of the Group. She graduated from Shandong Industrial
Institute, which is now known as Shandong University, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") in 1963. As one of the founders of
the Haier Group, she has been in charge of the overall management
of the white goods business since 1984. She is currently the
president of Haier Group Corporation (“Haier Corp”) and the
chairman of Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “A-Share Company”)). Ms. Yang is
also a director of the following Group’s subsidiaries: Beijing Haier
Logistics Co., Ltd., Chongging Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd.,
Chongging Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde Haier
Electric Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde Haier Intelligent Electronic Co.,
Ltd., Haier Holdings (BVI) Limited, Hefei Haier Washing Machine Co.,
Ltd., Qingdao Economy and Technology Development Zone Haier
Water Heater Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier Drum Washing Machine Co.
Ltd., Qingdao Goodaymart Lejia Trading Co., Ltd. (previously known
as Qingdao Haier Electronics Sales Co., Ltd), Qingdao Haier
Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd.,, Qingdao Haier Washing Machine
Co., Ltd., Qingdao Jiaonan Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd.,,
Qingdao New Goodaymart Logistics Service Co. Ltd. and Wuhan
Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd.

In 2011, Ms. Yang was elected to the world’s 50 female
entrepreneurs chart (50 female entrepreneurs outside USA) for 2011
published by Fortune Magazine, USA again and she has been
granted this award for several times.

RARESEE AEEZEENSRERENT

HITES

BRfLt 70m BE_ZETRE-ARHMER
RAIEFERATEE - BRTAENELAEEN
CERBLRBREE -HR-AR=ZFEERTP
EARAMBE(FEDURTEZRCGEBAURE
RB) - BRI RBAKEARAZ— BN
MELEEEACKEXFNEEBERE - KWAKA
BRKEERA(EREERARDAE  UERE
BEFRGALETZESERBRNHARIATA
BABRDZERE - BREFA/THNASEHRER
AZES ERBEAMRBERAR ZBEEEMRL
REERRR EESAAKIBERAF - I
MIEEEMERBRAA - FILTIREEHRE L
BEFTERQA - BEAERGBVNERRE  ARE
BARKKERAR SERERMMAZEEHAN
K BRAR - TEERREAAREKAERRR
FERRBRRXRESBERAR(RRIEEEEAE
SREHERRAR))  EEEMARIEMRER AR -
FEEMARKERLR BEBEERERKE
BERAF - SEHMBRIEMRRBEAERDA KRR
EBBMBKBERRAT o

RIZE——% BREIBRABIEZE(HE) MR
B T FEERRSOR L EEMPTT
BUEBAIMRSOLERALBAD - HLEE
BB ZIRE MRS o



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Contd)

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie, aged 45, has served as an Executive Director
of the Company since 12 November 2009. He is also a member of
the remuneration committee, nomination committee and strategic
committee of the Company. Mr. Zhou graduated from the Huazhong
University of Science and Technology, the PRC with a Bachelor's
degree in Engineering in 1988. He has a Master's degree in
corporate management from the Ocean University of China, the PRC
and has completed his Doctoral courses with a diploma in
Management from the Xian Jiaotong University, the PRC. He joined
the Haier Group in 1988 and has over 20 years of experience in the
sales management and enterprise management. Currently, he is the
General Manager of the Company and also a director of the
following Group’s subsidiaries: Chongqging Hairi Logistics Co., Ltd.,
Chongging New Goodaymart Electronics Sales Co., Ltd., Goodaymart
(Shanghai) Investment Company Limited, Haier Electronics Sales
(Hefei) Company Limited, Haier Electronics Sales (HK) Company
Limited, Hefei Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd.,, Qingdao Haier
Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier Logistics Co., Ltd,
Qingdao Lejia Electric Appliances Co., Ltd., SHC International (HK)
Limited, Ocean Vast Investments Limited, Haier Group E-commerce
Company Limited, Qingdao Goodaymart Electronics Service Company
Limited, Pegasus Telecom (Hong Kong) Co., Limited, HH Retail
Limited and Haier International Business Corporation Limited, Haier
Electrical Appliances Fourth Holdings (BVI) Limited, Haier Washing
Machines Holdings (BVI) Limited, Haier Water Heaters Holdings (BVI)
Limited, Haier Holdings (BVI) Limited. He is also an Executive Vice
President of Haier Group.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
BREREEFRLA

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Contd)

Mr. LI Hua Gang, aged 42, has served as a Chief Operation Officer
of the Company since 12 November 2009, and has served as an
Executive Director since 19 April 2010. Mr. Li, graduated from the
Huazhong University of Science and Technology, the PRC in 1991
with a Bachelor’s degree in Economics. He joined the Haier Group
in 1991 and has since held a number of senior positions in the sales
and marketing functions with his expertise in the sales management
in the 3rd tier and 4th tier markets of the PRC. Mr. Li is also a
director of the following Group’s subsidiaries: Chengdu Haixin
Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co. Ltd., Chongging Hairi Logistics
Co., Ltd.,, Chongging New Goodaymart Electronics Sales Co., Ltd,
Fujian Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co. Ltd., Goodaymart
(Shanghai) Investment Company Limited., Haier Electronics Sales
(Hefei) Company Limited, Haier Electronics Sales (HK) Company
Limited, Hefei Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd.,, Hunan Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co. Ltd., Qingdao Haier Logistics Co., Ltd,
Shangdong Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co. Ltd., Xuchang
Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co. Ltd., Yantai Goodaymart Electric
Appliance Co., Ltd., Hefei Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.,
Suzhou Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Liaoning
Goodaymart Trading Co., Ltd., Xinjiang Goodaymart Electric
Appliance Co., Ltd., Jiangsu Subei Goodaymart Electric Appliance
Co., Ltd., Tangshan Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Wuhan
Goodaymart Electric Applicance Co., Ltd.,, Shanxi Goodaymart
Electric Applicance Co., Ltd., Nanchang Goodaymart Electric
Applicance Co., Ltd., Wenzhou Goodaymart Electric Applicance Co.,
Ltd., Pegasus Telecom (Hong Kong) Co., Limited, HH Retail Limited,
Foreland Agents Limited, Coreland Limited, Impressive Holdings
Limited, Haier Washing Machines Holding (BVI) Limited.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Contd)

Mr. SUN lJing Yan, aged 41, has served as an Executive Director of
the Company since March 2007. Mr. Sun has been the General
Manager of the Haier Group's Electrothermal Product Division since
2005 and is mainly responsible for the operation of the Group's
water heater business. Mr. Sun graduated from Shangdong Institute
of Light Industry, the PRC in 1993 with a Bachelor in Engineering in
Machine Design and Manufacture. He joined the Haier Group in
1993 and has since held a number of senior positions in the
Electrothermal Appliance Department of the Haier Group. He has
over 18 years of extensive experience in water heater business. Mr.
Sun is also a director of the following Group’s subsidiaries:
Chongqging Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd., Chongging New
Goodaymart Electronics Sales Co., Ltd, Haier Electrical Appliances
Fourth Holdings (BVI) Limited, Haier Electronics Sales (Hefei)
Company Limited, Haier Water Heaters Holdings (BVI) Limited,
Qingdao Economy and Technology Development Zone Haier Water
Heater Co., Ltd., and Wuhan Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd. Mr. Sun
has resigned as an Executive Director of the Company with effect
from 24 August 2011 due to reallocation of appointments within
the Haier Group. After his resignation, Mr. Sun has been retained as
the General Manager of the Company’'s Electrothermal Product
Division.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Ke Song, aged 61, has served as an Executive Director of
the Company since December 2001 and has been re-designated as
Non-executive Director with effect from 12 November 2009. Mr.
Wu is also the Deputy Chairman of the Company. Mr. Wu is
responsible for worldwide business development of the Group and
liaison with relevant government officials. He graduated from
Shandong Industrial Institute, the PRC which is now known as
Shandong University, the PRC in 1974 and joined the Haier Group
in 1984. He is also a vice chairman of Haier Corp and a director of
Qingdao Haier Investment and Development Holdings (BVI) Limited,
a subsidiary of the Group.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
BREREEFRLA

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Contd)

Mr. LIANG Hai Shan, aged 45, has served as an Executive Director
of the Company since December 2001 and has been re-designated
as Non-executive Director with effect from 12 November 2009. Mr.
Liang was previously mainly responsible for strategic procurement
and overall quality control of products of the Group. He is currently
responsible for identifying market opportunities and white goods
business strategies formulation of the Company. He received a
Bachelor’s degree of Industry from the Xian Jiaotong University, the
PRC and has 23 years of experience in the manufacture of
household electrical appliances, in particular in
procurement function and white goods business. He is also an
Executive Vice President of Haier Corp, the General Manager and
Vice Chairman of Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd and a director of the
following Group’s subsidiaries: Beijing Haier Logistics Co., Ltd,;
Qingdao Economy and Technology Development Zone Haier Water
Heater Co., Ltd., and Qingdao Haier Investment and Development
Holdings (BVI) Limited.

raw material

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG, aged 43, has been appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company since 24 August 2011. She is
also a member of the remuneration committee, nomination
committee and strategic committee of the Company. Ms. Feng joined
the Carlyle Group in 1998, she is currently a Managing Director of
the Carlyle Group. Ms. Feng has been involved in many direct
investments by the Carlyle Group financial, and
industrial companies in the PRC. Prior to joining the Carlyle Group,
Ms. Feng worked for Credit Suisse First Boston’s New York office,
Ms. Feng is currently

in consumer,

engaging in investment banking business.
serving as a non-executive director of China Pacific Insurance (Group)
Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2601)
and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601601), since June 2007,
a non-executive director of Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 157), since
November 2009. Ms. Feng received an MBA degree from Harvard
Business School in 1996.
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ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr. GUI Zhaoyu, aged 40, has appointed as the alternate Director
to Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng since 24 August 2011. Mr. Gui is a
Director of the Carlyle Group and is focused on Asia buyout
opportunities with a particular focus on opportunities in the PRC.
Mr. Gui is primarily based in Beijing. Prior to joining the Carlyle
Group, Mr. Gui was a Vice President of the Investment Banking
Department at China International Capital Corporation in Beijing,
and a Vice President of J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited
in Hong Kong. He also has working experience at the Special
Investment Department of CIC and two state-owned companies,
and had founded his own logistics company. Mr. Gui received his
MBA degree from Massachusetts Institute of Technology Sloan
School of Management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Yinong, aged 49, has served as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since January 2005. Mr. Wu
graduated from Portland State University in the United States of
America with a Master’s degree in Business Administration in 1994.
He is currently the Deputy General Manager of China Merchants
Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Limited and the Head of Investment
Banking Department. He has been in the investment banking
industry for more than 15 years.

Mr. YU Hon To, David, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 21 June 2007. Mr. Yu is
a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He was formerly a partner of an
international accounting firm with extensive experience in corporate
finance. Mr. Yu is the Vice Chairman of MCL Partners Limited, a
Hong Kong based financial advisory and investment firm. He serves
as an independent non-executive director of several other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange, namely China Datang Corporation
Renewable Power Co., Limited, Great China Holdings Limited, China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited, Media Chinese International
Limited, One Media Group Limited, Playmates Holdings Limited,
Sateri Holdings Limited, Synergis Holdings Limited, TeleEye Holdings
Limited and VXL Capital Limited.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd

BHEEREEERA

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng, aged 49, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 21 June 2007. He is
currently the Managing Director of China Resources Capital Holdings
Co., Ltd. He has worked in various international financial institutions
since 1993, including N. M. Rothschild & Sons, JP Morgan and DBS.
He has many years of experience in corporate finance. Dr. Liu has a
Ph.D and Master degrees from the Faculty of Economics, University
of Cambridge and a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from Sichuan
Institute of Finance and Economics, China. Dr. Liu is currently also
an independent non-executive director of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited and Honghua Group Limited, both of which are publicly
listed companies on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HUANG Xiao Wu, aged 34, was appointed as Deputy General
Manager of the Company in November 2009. Mr. Huang holds a
Master's degree in Business Administration from the University of
Hong Kong and a Bachelor's degree in Engineering from the
University of Chong Qing. Mr. Huang is responsible for assisting the
General Manager in implementing the Group’s corporate
development strategy. Mr. Huang has 14 vyears of extensive
experience in banking, investment and corporate finance. Prior to
joining the Group, He had worked with a commercial bank and
several investment banking firms.

Mr. PENG lJia Jun, aged 34, was appointed as Chief Financial
Officer of the Company on 10 February 2009. Mr. Peng has a
Master's degree in Business Administration from the University of
International Business and Economics and a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration from Northeastern University, China. He is
currently a Doctoral Candidate in accounting of Ocean University of
China. He joined the Haier Group in 2000 and has since held a
number of senior financial positions in Haier Group finance
department, Haier Australia trading company and washing machine
business of the Group.

Mr. SHU Hai, aged 45, has served as the General Manager of
washing machine product division of the Company since June 2009.
Mr. Shu has a Master’'s degree in International Trade from Ocean
University of China, the PRC. He joined the Haier Group in 1995
and has since held a number of senior positions in the washing
machine business. He is currently responsible for the sales, research
and development and production management of the washing
machine business of the Group.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Contd)

Mr. WANG Zheng Gang, aged 39, has served as the General
Manager of Haier Group Logistics Company since March 2003, and
has currently served as the director of logistics division of the
Group. Mr. Wang graduated from Tianjin University in 1995. He also
graduated from the Xian Jiaotong University, the PRC with a
Master’s degree in Logistics Engineering in 2007. He has 16 years of
experience in the manufacture of household electrical appliances, in
particular in procurement function and logistics
business. He is currently responsible for developing the logistics
business of the Company and identifying related market
opportunities.

raw material

Mr. LU Pei Shi, aged 48, graduated from Shandong Agricultural
and Mechanical College, the PRC with a Bachelor’s degree in 1987.
He joined the Haier Group in 1995 and has since held a number of
senior positions in the washing machine business of the Haier
Group. He is currently responsible for the research and development
function of the washing machine business of the Group. He is a
member of the Washing Machine Sub-committee of the International
Electrotechnical Commission.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. NG Chi Yin, aged 46, joined the Company on 18 March 2009
as Company Secretary. Mr. Ng graduated from the Faculty of
Business Administration of the Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor’s degree in business administration. He is also a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. He has over 23 years of experience in auditing,
finance and company secretarial matters.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
BREREEFRLA

MANAGEMENT ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION

Overview

Business Review

In fiscal year 2011, the Group continued to develop its three
principal businesses, namely the washing machine manufacture and
sales business, the water heater manufacture and sales business,
and the integrated channel services business. The washing machines
sold in the domestic and overseas markets were categorized by top-
loading and front-loading washing machines, while the sales of
water heaters consist of electric,c gas and solar energy water
heaters. The integrated channel services business was developed
under the “Goodaymart” brand, selling Haier and non-Haier
branded home appliances as well as digital products at China’s 3rd
and 4th tier markets. The core components comprise home
appliance distribution, logistics and warehousing, and after-sale
services.
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MANAGEMENT ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION
(Contd)

Overview (Cont’d)

Business Review (Cont’d)

Affected by factors such as the European debt crisis, downturn of
the American housing sector and appreciation of the Chinese Yuan,
export for the Chinese home appliances was subdued in year 2011.
Meanwhile, further to its accelerated expansion for the past years,
and along with the gradual exit of the “Rural Area Subsidized
Electrical Appliances Purchase” policy and the cancellation of the
“"Home Appliance Replacement” policy, the growth momentum of
the home appliances market in China showed a slower pace
compared with year 2010. The 1st and 2nd tier markets were still
influenced by the continued macro regulation and control on the
property market. The social housing policy was still under way.
Hence, the demand for home appliance products originated from
newly purchased homes has reduced. The penetration rate in the
3rd and 4th tier markets was low compared to the 1st and 2nd tier
markets, and the stimulus effect of the urbanization process on
product demand was still prominent. However, as its base and
growth rate throughout the past years have already reached a high
level, the growth rate has declined in year 2011.

EEENWE DM E

BE (%)

R ()

SEERK EREETHER AREHES
EBAZNYE —T——FHEREEMHD
MSEHER  TEANRENSERLTFNEE
WE% FRETHESRE  NERFRAR
BEE AT TERBERNE - X
AR AT EEN BRI ERERENY
2 FBENFENBERTIERAED MR
BEREMEEEBEHME I S OETE
BRAER——ATHAIE bk ALERNER
RUBAT) SR B A+ {3 34 3B 1 26 47 0 8 5% 2 AR 38
ERERERS  HU T —FHEREHEH
T8 -



Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
BREREEFRLA

MANAGEMENT ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION
(Cont’d)

Overview (Cont'd)

Business Review (Cont’d)

The domestic washing machine market exhibits an obvious product
mix change towards front-loading and fully automatic machines. The
Chinese customers show stronger preference on high end home
appliances. Also, there was a clear trend whereby the market share
of weaker brands was taken over by stronger ones. The market
penetration of the water heater products was still low, particularly
in the 3rd and 4th tier markets which were still less than 30%.
Thus, there was still room for growth. Solar energy, air energy
water heaters and other new types of water heaters have been the
new growth drivers in recent years. With a low market
concentration of these product types, they have huge growth
potential for the Group. The integrated channel services business
had tremendous market potential in the 3rd and 4th tier markets
which offer more room for market development. However, the
realistic situation and development potential vary across different
provinces and cities.

In 2011, the Group focused on creating customer value to maintain
its leading position in the washing machine and water heater
industries. Besides, in developing the integrated channel services
business in full swing, the Group realized the effective integration
of distribution, logistics and after-sale services, leading to a service
model characterized with a quicker turnover and lower capital
requirement. As a result, the Group delivered strong performance:

° Overall profitability reached a historical high. In 2011, the
Company realized an increase of profit before tax by 27.9%,
accounting for RMB1.85 billion, while net profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company reached RMB1.406 billion,
representing an increase of 44.3%. Diluted earnings per share
was RMB55.44 cents, representing an increase of 34.9%.

o Revenue recorded a significant growth such that the leading
position in the market was maintained. The Group recorded
revenue of RMB49.9 billion in fiscal year 2011, representing
an increase of 35.6% as compared with last year.

o Cash flow continued to be strong. Net operating cash flow
generated during the year was RMB1.32 billion, accounting
for 93.9% of the net profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company.
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MANAGEMENT ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION
(Contd)

Segment Strategies

Washing Machine Business

In 2011, the single-brand sales volume of the Group’'s washing
machines ranked first in the world for the third consecutive year.
According to the market survey regarding the global home
appliances market conducted by Euromonitor, a world leading
marketing research institution, the single-brand sales volume of the
Group's washing machines accounted for 10.9% of the global
market share in 2011, an increase of 1.8 percentage points as
compared with 9.1% last year.

In terms of the overseas market, revenue from exports reached
RMB1.38 billion, representing an increase of over 31.7% as
compared with last year. In particular, the European and Southeast
Asian markets achieved rapid growth and raised mainstream market
position in the region. In the domestic market, the Group’s washing
machine business continued to maintain its leading position.
According to a market research report from China Market Monitor
Co., LTD (“China Market Monitor Report”), the Group’s washing
machine business held a market share of 27.0% in terms of sales
volume in China during the year. In the domestic market, the sales
of washing machines through the Group’s self-owned Goodaymart
channel accounted for 60% of its national sales.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
BREREEFRLA

MANAGEMENT ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION
(Cont’d)

Segment Strategies (Contd)

Washing Machine Business (Cont'd)

In 2011, the Group continued to place more emphasis on the
development of new products, and promote the marketing strategy
consisting of three brands: Casarte, Haier and Leader, to fulfill
increasingly diversified customer demands. Through consolidation of
the research and development (“R&D") resources from international
partners, the Group launched various high value-added washing
machine products. Among these partners, the Group cooperated
with the international home appliance enterprise Fisher & Paykel to
research and develop the first Cloud Power Washing Machine and a
core inverter series, which realized innovation and breakthrough in
terms of high washing efficiency, high consistency, low abrasion and
water and electricity savings. Focusing on meeting different
customer needs, the Group launched a fully automatic mini washing
machine, the world’s smallest washing machine according to
Guinness World Records, the Casarte duplex large-cylinder front-
loading washing machine, which was awarded 2011 iF Design
Awards. We also launched various innovative technologies and
products to provide different washing solutions for customers
around the world.

Water Heater Business

The Group’s water heater business continued to maintain a rapid
growth during the year. According to data from the China Market
Monitor Report, the Group’s water heater business held 19.8%
market share in the domestic market in terms of sales volume,
making us the leader of the industry. The market share of the
Group’s electric water heaters in terms of sales volume increased
from 20.3% in 2010 to 27.1%, ranking first in the industry. The
market share of the Group’'s gas water heaters in terms of sales
volume also achieved a relatively strong growth, which increased
from 6.0% at the beginning of 2011 to 7.6% at the end of 2011.
During the year, the sales of water heaters through the Group's
self-owned Goodaymart channel accounted for 85.7% of the overall
water heater sales.
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MANAGEMENT ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION
(Contd)

Segment Strategies (Contd)

Water Heater Business (Cont’d)

Focusing on the continuous increase in customer demands for hot
water solutions, the Group attained a technological achievement
through enhanced R&D. In 2011, the Group successfully developed
the Casarte solar energy water heater, which had a self-optimizing
control system, and was given the red dot design award in Germany
in 2011. The C series balcony machine, which has a stylish
appearance, is equipped with a high-temperature heat collector and
effectively used the balcony space, was awarded the 2011 iF Design
Award. Through in depth analysis of different user needs for water
heaters and categorizing the user base, the Group provided product
solutions to fulfill diversified customer needs. For instance, there is
a stylish Casarte Aqua Series focusing on high-end fashion
consumers, which applies the 3D instant-heat and anti-bacteria
functions, as well as an E7 series focusing on family users, which
has daily hot water and dynamic night electricity functions, and was
designed as partially hidden when installed.

Integrated Channel Services Business

The integrated channels services business was established under the
"Goodaymart” brand, and leveraged on the Group’s three core
elements of distribution network, logistics and services, areas which
economies of scale have been realized. It provides multi-brand home
appliance distribution and logistics services through the just-in-time
("JIT") model to the vast retailers and franchisees in the 3rd and
4th tier markets, so as to realize operations with a short turnover
period and low costs.

Distribution Sector

In 2011, the Group continued to expand the home appliance
distribution network through the adoption of a franchise model,
improve the efficiency of Haier Stores with great efforts in
expanding the multi-brand Goodaymart franchise network. As at 31
December 2011, there were approximately 7,000 Haier Stores at the
county level, with coverage close to 100% and nearly 30,000 sales
points in total in China. The Group also strived to develop its
distribution business for non-Haier brands. As of the date of this
announcement, 16 Goodaymart joint ventures have been established
in Shandong, Jiangsu, Liaoning, Xinjiang, Henan and other areas,
focusing on the development of the local franchise network for 3rd
party brands.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd

BHEEREEERA

MANAGEMENT ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION
(Cont’d)

Segment Strategies (Contd)

Integrated Channel Services Business (Cont'd)

Logistics Sector

Subsequent to the Group’s acquisition of the logistics business in
2010 from the Haier Group, the progress of integration was
satisfactory. In 2011, the Group focused on strengthening its
network coverage in two ways: strategic allocation of warehouses
and distribution resources, and shaping strategic capabilities to meet
the customer needs of JIT logistics. The Group's logistic services
network spread throughout communities within 1st and 2nd tier
markets, providing one-stop services virtually at customers’
doorsteps. As for the 3rd and 4th tier pilot regions, the network
directly reached town while also extending to villages.
Currently, Goodaymart logistics has already realized a rapid response
capability, that delivers products within 150 kilometers in only 24
hours, and within 250 kilometers in only 48 hours.

levels,

In 2011, the Group invested RMB240 million to build first-level
distribution centres in Qingdao, Zhengzhou, Shenyang, Foshan, etc.
There were eight large-scaled distribution centres formally opened
as at the end of 2011.

After-sale Service Sector

This segment targets to provide fast, convenient and high quality
after-sale services to franchisees of the integrated channel services
business, as well as value-added services for customers. Since the
acquisition of the business in 2011, the after-sale network has been
positioned as one of the three core networks for the integrated
channel services business by the Group, offering after-sale services
for various home appliance products in the distribution channels
and ensuring that franchisees will receive first-rate services.

The Group established 5 call centres, approximately 8,000 service
centres across the country and nearly 10,000 services stations at the
county and town level, to provide 24-hour quality services in China.
Leveraging on the above, the Group has become a leading
professional home appliance after-sale service provider. During the
year, building on the foundation of its original services model, the
Group launched a premium one-stop solutions model, which
included extended warranty and full-time online support etc.,
enhancing its customer word of mouth.
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MANAGEMENT ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION
(Contd)

Segment Strategies (Contd)

Integrated Channel Services Business (Cont'd)

e-Haier

To improve the user experience and the online sales capabilities of
the integrated channel services franchisees, the Group acquired
e-Haier from the Haier Group in 2011. e-Haier interacts with users
online, receives and forwards orders to Haier Stores, which will be
responsible for physical sales and distribution, and ultimately creates
added value for franchisees. Through the cooperation with Haier
Stores, the Group realized 24-hour delivery to 100 cities in China. In
2012, e-Haier will adhere to its marketing strategy focusing on

brand promotion, develop and manage more Haier Store cooperative
members, to create a better online user experience.

Argos Joint Venture Company

In addition, the Group established a joint venture company with
Home Retail Group (UK) Limited (“Home Retail Group”), a renowned
home and general merchandise retailer in United Kingdom, to
develop a general merchandise multi-channel retailing business
under the brand “Argos” in China. Such cooperation will benefit
from the Group's vast distribution network and Home Retail Group's
general merchandising capability and supply chain management
experience. The joint venture company is a strategic investment for
the Group in this new business segment.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
BREREEFRLA

In 2011, the Group achieved satisfactory financial performance. As
at 31 December, the Group’s revenue amounted to
RMB49,900,000,000 during the year, representing an increase of
35.6% as compared to RMB36,794,000,000 in 2010 (restated).
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company in 2011 was
RMB1,406,000,000, representing an increase of 44.3% as compared
to RMB974,000,000 in 2010 (restated). Basic earnings per share
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company during the
year was RMB61.13cents, representing an increase of 29.2% from
RMB47.33cents in 2010 (restated).
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1. ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT m M oA
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT T
(Restated)
(E3))
Items EH
Revenue KA
Washing machine business WEIK M TS 12,214,870 11,519,008
Water heater business HOKEBRET 3,828,303 3,126,182
Integrated channel services business REHARBED 45,187,340 29,263,887
Inter-segment elimination A B K 85 (11,330,706) (7,114,613)
Consolidated RGN 49,899,807 36,794,464
EBITDA EBITDA 1,944,987 1,520,395
Profit attributable to owners of the ZN/NSIN & R el
Company 1,406,016 974,247

Earnings per share attributable to ordinary 7K &) % i A% A% 3R E (5 & %

equity holders of the Company 27
Basic R

61.13 cents 2

47.33 cents 7

Diluted e

55.44 cents

41.10 cents %y




ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT
(Cont’d)

During the year, the increase of the overall business was due
partly to stable growth of the washing machine business and
the rapid growth of the water heater business. Revenue from
the washing machine business amounted to
RMB12,215,000,000 in 2011, representing a 6.0% increase
from revenue of RMB11,519,000,000 in 2010. Revenue from
the water heater business amounted to RMB3,828,000,000 in
2011, representing an increase of 22.5% as compared to
RMB3,126,000,000 in 2010. The increase in the water heater
business was mainly attributable to the Group’s continuous
product and technological as the
combination of the specialized water heater sales network for
capturing growth potential in the 1st and 2nd tier markets
and meeting rapid growth demand in the 3rd and 4th tier
markets.

innovation, as well

On the other hand, the significant increase in revenue of the
integrated channel services business in the 3rd and 4th tier
markets was a major driver of the Group's revenue, realizing
revenue of RMBA45,187,000,000, representing an increase of
54.4% as compared to RMB29,264,000,000 in 2010 (restated),
greatly boosting the Group’s total revenue.

The increase in the integrated channel services business was
primarily the result of the Group’s unique understanding of
the rural home appliance market and its commensurate
innovative business model, which enabled its integrated
channel services business to expand the marketing networks
of Haier Stores and Goodaymart Stores during the year, so as
to introduce cooperative partners and meet the needs of
retailers with greater, faster, better and more economical
results. In 2011, the Group's after-sale service and e-Haier
businesses made contributions to the integrated channel
services business, generating revenue of RMB414,000,000
(note: the after-sale service business commenced
contribution in the 2nd quarter of 2011).

revenue

1.
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT
(Cont’d)

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company in 2011 was
RMB1,406,000,000, representing an increase of 44.3% from
RMB974,000,000 of 2010 (restated). Basic earnings per share
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company in
2011 was RMB61.13 cents, representing an increase of 29.2%
from RMB47.33 cents of 2010. The EBITDA (earning before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation) in 2011 amounted
to RMB1,945,000,000, representing an increase of 27.9%
from RMB1,520,000,000 of 2010 (restated).

Gross Profit Margins

In 2011, gross profit margin for the washing machine business
was 27.8%, representing an slight decrease of 0.3% as
compared to 2010. Gross profit margin for the water heater
business was 41.9%, representing a slight decrease of 0.6%
as compared to 2010. The main factor affecting gross profit
margins was that the price of copper, steel and other raw
materials increased noticeably in 2011 as compared with 2010.
Moreover, a higher revenue contribution from exports of
washing machines to the revenue of washing machines, which
has a lower gross profit margin as compared to the domestic
market, led to the decrease of the gross profit margin of
washing machines. Through securing favorable raw material
contracts in time, adopting a modular approach to improve
production efficiency, provision of differentiated services,
research and development of high-end products, and
optimization of product mix, the Group was able to
substantially offset the pressure from increased raw material
and labor costs, and the overall gross profit margins only
decreased slightly.
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT
(Cont’d)

Gross Profit Margins (Cont’d)

In 2011, the Group’s integrated channel services business in
the 3rd and 4th tier markets recorded a gross profit margin
of 7.3%, representing an increase of 4.2% from 3.1% last
year (restated). The gross profit margin of the distribution
business increased from 2.8% last year (restated) to 6.8%
during the year, and the gross profit margin of the logistics
business increased from 7.4% last year to 7.6% during the
year. The remarkable increase in gross profit margin of the
distribution business was mainly attributable to the fact that
in order to improve services of the distribution channel
business, the Group improved part of the sales function in
the 3rd and 4th tier markets, and took more responsibility for
marketing and promotion, which correspondingly led to an
increase in the gross profit margin and the sales and
management expenses ratio of the integrated channel services
business.

In 2011, the increase in the gross profit margin of the overall
integrated channel services business amounted to 4.2%,
slightly higher than the increase of 4.0% in expenses for the
segment, while the net profit margin of the integrated
channel services business slightly increased to 1.2% as
compared with 1.1% last year (restated).

Due to this increase of the gross profit margin of the
integrated channel services business, the Group’s overall gross
profit margin increased to 15.0% in 2011, from 13.1% in
2010 (restated).

Selling and Distribution Cost

The ratio of selling and distribution costs of the Group’s
washing machine and water heater businesses to its segment
revenue slightly increased from 18.7% in 2010 to 18.9% in
2011, which was mainly attributable to the Group’s enhanced
investment in marketing and networks domestically as well as
in the overseas markets, realizing a rapid growth.

The ratio of selling and distribution costs to revenue for the
integrated channel services business in the 3rd and 4th tier
markets was 4.0%. Selling and distribution costs mainly arose
from brand promotion and product promotion expenses
incurred to develop the integrated channel services business.

1.
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT 1. WARBNDH(E)
(Contd)
Administrative Expenses =B A
The ratio of administrative expenses to revenue for its EREXREEHEKEEENSTIES A%
washing machine and water heater businesses accounted for EHRIWALRELIEYS BT —TEHAK
approximately 4.6% during the year, basically in line with B AT E S e ARG ERS
2010. The administrative expenses of the integrated channel W EEERERERR A% -
services business in the 3rd and 4th tier markets, as a percent
of its segment revenue, accounted for 1.7%.
FINANCIAL POSITION 2. B HRSR
2011 2010
—2-—-F —EFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARMBTTT
(Restated)
()
Items HH
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,739,647 1,286,652
Current assets A E 12,554,389 8,611,977
Current liabilities mEaE 8,952,554 6,880,570
Non-current liabilities EmBasE 1,060,629 204,421
Net assets BEFE 4,280,853 2,813,638
Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance ReRRESEEHER

The Group maintained a healthy financial position. The
Group's cash and cash equivalents balance increased by
45.3% to RMB3,960,000,000 in 2011, from RMB2,726,000,000
as at 31 December 2010 (restated). The increase in cash and
cash equivalents balance was mainly attributable to a
significant increase of net operating cash flow during the
year. At the same time, after the participation of the strategic
investor, the Group completed the issuance of convertible
bonds with an amount of RMB874,000,000 inflow during the
year. During the year, the Group’s main cash outflow included
the construction of additional logistics warehouses, expenses
relating to acquisition of land use rights, acquisition and
construction of plant and equipment (RMB304 million), and
payment for the Group’s acquisitions (RMB665 million).

2 —FAEERBTROENTBEARN
ReERRESSEBFBELEHBNR T —ZF+
—A=+—H2Z AR#2,726,000,0007C (&
F) E F453% = A R #3,960,000,0007T °
AABEFEEZRTRAECLEHFRE
MERIRRFA - R BEHEEEEN
MA AEEBRFRERETIRRES
Bh & = A R #874,000,0007T ° F AN EEH
FEZHRSRLBENESMREEZRLE
THERSLERAESIL  EXBER
ERHHEAREIMMET) R EERK
EHE(AR6.65ET)



FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)

Net Assets

Net assets increased by 52.1% from RMB2,814,000,000
(restated) as at 31 December 2010 to RMB4,281,000,000 as
at 31 December 2011.

Working Capital

Trade and Bills Receivables Turnover Days

The trade and bills receivables turnover days of the Group’s
washing machine and water heater businesses was 85 days at
the end of 2011. Among which, the accounts receivables
turnover days was 19 days, representing a decrease of 4 days
as compared with last year. The proportion of bills receivables
to total trade and bills receivables accounted for 77.1% (31
December 2010: 71.1%), which were mainly bank’s acceptance
bills.

Most of the customers of the integrated channel services
business in the 3rd and 4th tier markets normally paid in
cash. Furthermore, our business model can reduce the
customers’ working capital requirements to facilitate the cash-
settled payment method. As a result, the trade and bills
receivables turnover days was 3 days and bills receivables
turnover days was 7 days in 2011, which are remarkably
competitive in the industry.

Inventory Turnover Days

Under the Group’s JIT policy, the Group has implemented a
series of measurements including rolling order forecasts,
made-to-order and procured-to-order productions which
maintains a relatively low inventory level. The Group’s
inventory turnover days for washing machines and water
heaters was 18 days at the end of 2011, still maintaining a
good asset turnover efficiency.

In 2011, inventory turnover days of the Group’s integrated
distribution services business was 16 days, attributable mainly
to time of transportation and logistics transfer. The Group's
inventory turnover days is competitive in the industry, which
has greatly improved the cash flow arising from the operating
activities of the Group's integrated channel services business.
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FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)
Working Capital (Contd)

Payables Turnover Days

Payables turnover days of the Group’s washing machine and
water heater businesses was 34 days at the end of 2011.

Payables turnover days of the Group’s integrated channel
services business was 10 days.

CASHFLOW ANALYSIS

Bt 3 R R (48)
EEES ()
FEf IR AW A B

AEBARBR B KRER -—T——FF
REEMN R AERE /34X -

REGAMBEBNENERRNEFERES
10K °

BEERADN

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETF T
(Restated)
(&)
Items EHE

Net cash flows from operating activities KEEB 2R EN 1,319,751 1,263,384
Net cash flows used in investing activities &é/ﬁﬂzaiﬁ (251,325) (253,538)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEETEZERESR 356,182 111,071

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3R&NBEBELZEERZ
INF 58 1,424,608 1,120,917

The Group's net cash flow from operating activities improved
was mainly due to cash flow contribution from the main
businesses, as well as improved efficiency of working capital.
Cash flow used in investing activities mainly comprised the
additional construction of logistics warehouse, plant and
equipment for capacity expansion and the increase of payment
for new land. Cash flows from financing activities mainly
included the inflow from the issuance of convertible bonds
(RMB874 million), inflow upon exercise of warrants and share
options (RMB82 million), as well as the deemed distribution
consideration payment to the Group (RMB665 million).
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group focuses on cash flow management and has been able to
maintain a healthy financial and liquidity position. The Group had a
current ratio of 140.2% as at 31 December 2011, representing an
increase by 15.0% as compared with the 125.2% in 2010 (restated).
As at 31 December 2011, the Group’'s cash and cash equivalent
balance amounted to RMB3,960,000,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB2,726,000,000 (restated)). Among which, bank and other
borrowings amounted to RMB695,000,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB5,000,000 (restated)). As a result, the net cash and cash
equivalent as at the end of year (total cash balance net total
borrowings) amounted to RMB3,265,000,000, representing an
increase of 20.0% as compared to RMB2,721,000,000 in 2010
(restated).

The Group will maintain significant operating cash flow and sources
of liquidity in 2012 that are adequate to meet its working capital
requirements, and for the distribution channel network expansion
and construction of the logistics network, and maintain financial
flexibility for any significant investment opportunities.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

From time to time, the Group will assess its capital expenditure and
investments in the washing machine, water heater and integrated
channel services businesses. The capital expenditure during the
period was RMB317,000,000, mainly used for investment in
developing the integrated channel services business, including
construction of warehouse projects and factory equipment
modification for washing machines and water heaters, etc.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2011, the Group's gearing ratio (defined as total
interest-bearing borrowings over net assets) was 16.2% (31
December 2010: 0.2% (restated)), which was mainly attributable to
the liability component of the convertible bonds of RMB670,000,000
at the end of 2011.
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a prudent approach for its cash management and
risk control. Most of the Group’s revenues and expenses are
denominated in Renminbi. Cash is generally placed in the short term
deposits denominated either in Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.
Foreign currency risk is largely, though not fully, mitigated, as
liabilities in Renminbi will be substantially offset by the Group’s
earnings, most of which are derived from domestic sales in China
and are denominated in Renminbi. Approximately 3.5% of the
Group's revenue is derived from export sales and is denominated in
other currencies. The Group does not have any significant interest
rate risk as it has an overall net cash balance. The Group does not
have any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group's capital commitments that were all contracted for, but
not yet provided amounted to RMB201,000,000 as at 31 December
2011 (31 December 2010: RMB86,000,000), which were mainly
related to the purchase of machinery for the Group’s businesses
capacity expansion as well as construction of warehouse for the
logistics business. There were other authorised but not yet
contracted capital commitments amounted to RMB268,000,000 (31
December 2010: RMB129,000,000) and mainly related to the
warehouse construction for the logistics business and the washing
machine expansion project.

CHARGE OF ASSETS

Certain of the Group's bills payable are secured by the pledge of
the Group’s bank deposits amounting to RMB87,402,000 (2010:
RMB3,011,000 (restated); 1 January 2010: RMB86,814,000 (restated))
and the Group’s bills receivables amounting to RMB250,453,000
(2010: RMB518,137,000; 1 January 2010: RMB305,738,000).

The Group’s loans as at 31 December 2011 were secured by floating
charges over certain of the Group’s inventories totalling
RMB38,500,000.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the
Company had any significant contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December
2011 was approximately 18,406, representing an increase of
approximately 1.1% as compared to 31 December 2010. The Group
ensures that its remuneration packages for its employees remain
competitive, and its employees are generally remunerated with fixed
monthly salaries, which are reviewed annually, along with
discretionary performance bonuses.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and the
management (the “Management”) of Haier Electronics Group Co.,
Ltd. (the “Company”) recognise that sound corporate practices are
crucial to the efficient operation of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the "Group”) and the safeguarding of our shareholders’
interests. In this regard, the Board attaches great priority to
reinforce the Company’s corporate governance standards with
emphasis on transparency, accountability and independence in order
to enhance our long-term shareholders’ value.

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31 December 2011,
complied with most of the applicable code provisions (the “Code
Provision(s)”) and principles under the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
except for certain deviations as described below. This report
describes the Company’s corporate governance practices, explains its
applications of and deviations from the CG Code, together with
considered reasons for such deviations.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors, three Non-
executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors
(the “INED(s)”). The INEDs represent one-third of the Board. The
Directors are well-versed in respective areas such as legal,
accounting and finance, business management and industry
knowledge and the Board as a whole has achieved an appropriate
balance of skills and experience. The Directors’ biographical details
are set out on pages 18 to 24 of this annual report.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is no financial or
family relationship among the Board members. All of them are free
to exercise their independent judgment on all matters concerning
the Company.

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for specific terms, subject to re-election. Currently, all
non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and their appointment will
be reviewed when they are due for re-election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Delegation by the Board

The Directors are collectively responsible for setting the Group’s
strategies, providing leadership and guidance to put them into
effect, reviewing and monitoring the performance of the Group and
are accountable to the Company’s shareholders. To maximise the
effectiveness of the Group’s operations, the Board has delegated
management and administration of the Group’s daily operations to
the executive Directors and the Management while reserving several
important matters for its approval. To this end, the Board has
adopted written guidelines (the “Guidelines”) laying down the
division of functions between the Board and the Management
(including the executive Directors for the purpose of the Guidelines).

Pursuant to the Guidelines, the major functions of the Board and
the Management are summarized as follows:

The Board is principally responsible for:

1. determining the overall strategy;
2. reviewing all significant policies of the Group;
3. monitoring the performance of the Management to ensure

that the business operations of the Group are properly
planned and undertaken;

4. approving interim and annual results of the Group based on
recommendations made by the audit committee of the
Company;

5. approving material contracts and transactions for which the
Management is required to obtain the Board’s prior approval,
and

6. subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules, approving

transactions in which connected person(s) (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Group is/are considered having a material
conflict of interests.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont<d)

The Management is principally responsible for:

1. exercising all such other powers and perform all such other
acts as may be exercised and performed by the Directors,
save and except for those that may specifically be reserved by
the Board and/or the committees set up by the Board for
decision and implementation; or those that may only be
exercised by the Board pursuant to The Companies Act of
Bermuda, the Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), the
Listing Rules and/or the Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and
Mergers and Share Repurchases;

2. formulating and implementing policies for business activities,
internal controls and administration of the Company;

3. planning and deciding the Company's strategies on its
business activities; and

4. keeping proper written records of its decisions taken which
may be inspected by any members of the Board or the Board
committees upon request.

The Board reviews those arrangements and the Guidelines on a
periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs
of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO")

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Currently, the Company does not have any person
holding the title of CEO. Ms. Yang Mian Mian is the Chairman of
the Board and is also performing the functions of CEO. The Board
meets regularly to consider major matters affecting the business and
operations of the Group. The Company believes that the
combination of the roles of chairman and CEO can promote the
efficient formulation and implementation of the Company’s
strategies which will enable the Group to seize business opportunities
efficiently and promptly. Meanwhile, the Company believes that
through the supervision of the Board and its independent non-
executive directors, checks and balances exist so that the interests
of the shareholders are adequately and fairly represented.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

INEDs

The INEDs have the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary
duties as the executive Directors. They are expressly identified as
such in all corporate communications that disclose the names of the
Directors.

The INEDs are experienced professionals with expertise in areas of
accounting and finance. With their professional knowledge and
experience, the INEDs advise the Company on its operation and
management; provide independent opinion on the Company's
connected/continuing connected transactions; participate in the
Company’s audit committee meetings, remuneration committee
meetings and nomination committee meetings. The INEDs also
contribute to provide adequate checks and balance to protect the
interests of the Company and the Company’s shareholders as a
whole, and to promote the development of the Company.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers that all INEDs to be independent as the date of this
report.

Supply of and access to information

Newly appointed Directors will receive induction packages containing
the duties and responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules
and other applicable rules and regulations.

All the Directors are briefed and updated from time to time on the
latest legislative and regulatory developments to ensure that they
are fully aware of their responsibilities under the Listing Rules,
applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

In order to ensure that their duties can be properly discharged, the
Directors are entitled to seek advice from independent professional
advisers whenever deemed necessary by them at the Company’s
expense.

Board Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2011, apart from the adhoc
meetings and consents obtained by means of written resolutions of
all the Board members, the Board had held four scheduled meetings
at approximately quarterly intervals to review and approve, among
other things, the 2010 annual results and 2011 interim results, the
overall Group’s strategy, discloseable and connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions of the Group. The Company’s
board meetings (the “Board Meeting(s)”) are permitted to be held
by means of telephone or other means of electronic communication
under the Bye-laws.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont<d)

Board Meetings (Contd)

Reasonable notices are served and comprehensive information is
provided to the Board members in advance of all the Board
Meetings in order to enable them to make informed decisions on all
matters transacted at the Board Meetings.

The proceedings of the Board Meetings are conducted by the
Chairman of the Board or another executive Director who ensures
that sufficient time is allowed for discussion among the Directors
and equal opportunities are being given to the Directors to express
their views and share their concerns.

The Company Secretary attends the Board Meetings to advise
Directors on corporate governance practices, and statutory
compliance, accounting and financial issues whenever deemed
necessary by the Board.

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing minutes
recording all matters transacted and resolved at the Board Meetings.
All the Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are
open for inspection by the Directors.

The following table shows the attendance of the Directors at the
scheduled Board Meetings during the year ended 31 December
2011:
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No. of the scheduled Board
Meetings attended/held

HE BT EHEES
BEXH
Executive Directors: BITES:
Ms. Yang Mian Mian (Chairman) BT (£E) a/4
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BAEREE 4/4
Mr. Li Hua Gang FE| %A 4/4
Mr. Sun Jing Yan (resigned on 24 August 2011) BRREXRE(RZTE——F 0/4
NAZ+HBEE)
Non-Executive Directors: FHITES:
Mr. Wu Ke Song (Deputy Chairman) Rk E(FFE) 3/4
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 28 IL%AE 3/4
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng (appointed on 24 August 2011 BELXZ L(RZTE——F 2/4
with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her alternate director) NAZTHBEZE B
FEZREBFEE)
INEDs: BYUFHITES:
Mr. Wu Yinong RITERAE 3/4
Mr. Yu Hon To, David MEERE 4/4
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng 2 EiE L 4/4
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Board Meetings (Cont’d)

It is challenging to arrange the Board Meeting that fits in with the
tight and busy schedules of all the Directors. In particular, as certain
of the executive and non-executive Directors devote considerable
time and efforts to the management and operation of the Group's
business, they were only able to attend some of the Board Meetings
in person and their attendance rate at the Board Meetings were
relatively low during the fiscal year of 2011. To enable all the
Directors to keep abreast of the Group’s latest development and to
discharge their duties properly, the Company Secretary briefed the
Directors on those matters transacted at the Board Meetings that
they were unable to attend. In addition, draft and final versions of
the Board minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments and
records.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Haier Electronics Model Code”) on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Upon enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard as set out in the
Haier Electronics Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2011.

In addition, the Board has adopted written guidelines (the
"Employees’ Guidelines for Securities Transactions”) for securities
transactions by employees (the “Relevant Employees”) who are likely
to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive information of the
Company on no less exacting terms than the Haier Electronics
Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all the Relevant
Employees, the Company confirmed that all the Relevant Employees
had complied with the required standard as set out in the
Employees’ Guidelines for Securities Transactions throughout the
year ended 31 December 2011.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont<d)

Board Committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee (the “Audit
Committee”), a Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and a Nomination Committee (the “Nomination

Committee”) (collectively the “Committees”) to oversee specific
aspects of the Company's affairs. The Board has also established a
Strategic Committee (the “Strategic Committee”) during the year.
The Committees report to the Board regularly, and have been
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their respective
duties. To reinforce independence, the chairman of the Committees
other than the Strategic Committee is an INED. Each of the
Committees has adopted specific terms of reference covering its
duties, powers and functions which will be reviewed by the Board
from time to time. The Company Secretary also acts as secretary of
the Committees. The Committees adopt as far as practicable, the
procedures and arrangement of the Board Meeting in relation to
the conduct of meetings, notice of meetings and recording of
minutes. Further particulars of each of the Committees are set out
below:

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three INEDs and
is chaired by Mr. Yu Hon To, David. Mr. Yu is a professional
accountant and was formerly a partner of an international
accounting firm. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
are to ensure the objectivity and credibility of financial
reporting, to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the Group’s
external auditors and review of the Company’s financial
controls, internal control and risk management systems. Each
member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to
the Group’s external auditors and the Management.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Audit
Committee held four meetings to review the management
and accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and to discuss internal controls and financial reporting matters
including the review of 2010 annual results and 2011 interim
results of the Group, review of internal control procedures
and review of connected transactions.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Board Committees (Cont’d)

(1)  Audit Committee (Contd)

The annual results for the year ended 31 December 2011
were also reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the
Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2011
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No. of Audit Committee
Meetings attended/held

HE/BIT2BRZEEY
EEDS

INEDs: BIUFEHTES:
Mr. Wu Yinong RITBR KA. 3/4
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BEERE 4/4
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng 2 giE L 4/4

(2) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five
members including one executive Director, namely Mr. Zhou
Yun Jie, one non-executive director namely, Ms. Janine
Junyuan Feng (appointed as member on 19 December 2011
when Mr. Wu Ke Song resigned on the same day) and all
three INEDs. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr.
Wu Yinong, an INED. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on
policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors and
Management. Each of the Directors has not involved in the
determination of his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held two
meetings. At the meeting, members of the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration packages and overall
benefits of the Directors and Management by taking into
account factors such as remuneration packages and benefits
offered by comparable companies, the respective contribution
of each of the Directors and Management to the Group and
the business objectives of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont<d)

Board Committees (Cont’d)

(2)

(3)

Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

The following table shows the attendance of members of the
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December
2011:

Annual Report 2011
T —FFER

é E = (w@

Exgza8e(#)
2 ¥FMEES(H)
TRARBE-_FT——F+-A=1T—8L

FEN FMEBERBZERIBHEER:

No. of Remuneration
Committee Meetings
attended/held

HE BT FMEES
BERE
Executive Director: HITES:
Mr. Zhou Yun lie AEREE 2/2
Non-executive Director: FHITES
Mr. Wu Ke Song (resigned on 19 December 2011 HmREE(R=_ZE——F+=_A+h 1/2
and Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng was appointed on ABENRSETZTRABEZE -
the same day with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her HETEZTAERFRE)
alternate director)
INEDs: BYFHITES:
Mr. Wu Yinong RIMERE 2/2
Mr. Yu Hon To, David AEE R HE 2/2
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng 2B iEE L 2/2

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was formed on 19 September
2008 and currently comprises four members including one
executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhou Yun lJie and all three
INEDs. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Yu Hon
To David, an INED. The Nomination committee meets at least
once a year.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
nomination policy and making recommendations to the Board
on nomination and appointment of Directors and Board
succession. It also develops selection procedures of candidates
for nomination, reviews the structure, size and composition of
the Board and assesses the independence of the INEDs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Board Committees (Cont’d)

(3)

Nomination Committee (Contd)

Nomination procedures include identification and
acknowledgement of qualified individuals by the Nomination
Committee and review and approval of such nomination by
the Board. The Nomination Committee is to evaluate potential
candidates by considering factors such as professional
expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity. It
also advises the Board in considering the suitability of the re-
election of the Directors who are subject to the retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has held two
meetings. At the meeting, members of the Nomination
Committee have identified and recommended qualified
individual to the Board for the appointment of director,
reviewed the composition of the Board, and advised the
Board the suitability of the retirement and re-election of the
Directors at the Company’s annual general meeting.

Subsequent to balance sheet date, on 30 March 2012, Ms.
Janine Junyuan Feng (with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her alternate
Director) has been appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company with effect from that day.
Immediately after the above change, the Nomination Committee
of the Company shall be comprised of five members.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December
2011:
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No. of Nomination
Committee Meetings
attended/held

HE BIT2EREESR
= D/
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BENEE 2/2
INEDs: BIYFHITES:
Mr. Wu Yinong RIMEEE 2/2
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BMEERE 2/2
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng 2 EiE L 2/2
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Board Committees (Cont’d)

4)

Strategic Committee

The Strategic Committee was formed on 18 October 2011 and
currently comprises three members including one executive
Director, namely, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, one INED, namely, Dr. Liu
Xiao Feng and one non-executive Director (unconnected with
the Company, Haier Group Corporation, Qingdao Haier Co.,
Ltd., Qingdao Haier Investment and Development Co., Ltd.
and their respective subsidiaries), namely Ms. Janine Junyuan
Feng (with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her alternate director). The
Strategic Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhou Yun lJie. The
Strategic Committee shall meet four times for a year.

The purpose of the Strategy Committee shall be to prepare
recommendations for the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities
relating to (a) the development, articulation, and execution of
the Company’s long term strategic plan, and (b) the review,
and approval of certain strategic transactions,
including but not limited to acquisitions, mergers, divestitures,
financings, capital structure and joint ventures.

evaluation,

The primary duties of the Strategic Committee are to review
the major long term strategic proposals of the Group, review
the issue, offer or sale of shares or other equity securities of
the Company for the purposes of funding acquisitions or
investments made or new businesses undertaken by the
Group, review the proposed initial or follow-on equity
investment by the Company through the establishment of a
new business or venture or other means, review and comment
on the annual budgets of the Group taken as a whole, and
thereafter recommend to the Board for its consideration and
approval:

During the vyear, the Strategic Committee has held one
meeting. At the meeting, members of the Strategic Committee
have discussed the strategies on the integrated channel
business and made recommendation to the Board.
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(4) Strategic Committee (Cont'd) 4 B®RZEEE(E)
The following table shows the attendance of members of the TEAEBEE-T——F+A=+—8HLt
Strategic Committee during the year ended 31 December FEN BREZEgEKBZEBLEEEX -
2011.
No. of Strategic Committee
Meetings attended/held
HE BT EKEER
BERE
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BAERTE 171
Non-executive Director: FHITES:
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng HET X+ 11
(with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her alternate director) (EBEEEEREBFLLE)
INEDs: BYFHITES:

Dr. Liu Xiao Feng 2 EiE L 11



COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

It is the Company’s practice to provide an explanation of the details
of the procedures for voting by poll in the general meetings to
shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.
The poll results of the general meetings are also published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and of the Company. The Board
regards general meetings as one of the principal channels of
communications with our shareholders and the Directors provide
detailed and complete answers to questions raised by the
shareholders in the general meetings.

INSURANCE

The Group has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance to indemnify the Directors and senior staff of the Group
for their potential liabilities incurred by them in discharging their
duties. The Group reviews the insurance coverage for the Directors
and the Group’s senior staff on an annual basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing financial
statements of the Group in accordance with relevant statutory
requirements and generally accepted accounting principles in Hong
Kong and ensuring that the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the Group’s financial position. In preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently; made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable; and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The Board aims to present a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s development and
prospects in all corporate communications, including but not limited
to annual and interim reports, any price sensitive announcements
and financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, any
reports to regulators as well as to information required to be
disclosed pursuant to other statutory requirements.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group is committed to implementing effective internal controls
and risk management procedures to identify and manage the risks
that may be faced by the Group, as well as to safeguard the
interests of the Group and our shareholders as a whole.

The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate internal controls
and risk management procedures in the Group, and for reviewing
its effectiveness through the Audit Committee on an on-going
basis. The Board has delegated to the Management the
implementation of the Group’s internal controls covering financial,
operational and compliance aspects, as well as risk management
procedures.

The Board is also responsible for ensuring that the management has
discharged its duty to have an effective internal control system
including the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programme and budget.

During the year, the Company has engaged external independent
professionals to assist in its review on the operation of individual
divisions of the Group, particularly on those divisions of the
integrated channel services business which were newly set up, and
in its assessment of the effectiveness of Group’s internal control
systems and risk management procedures in its major business and
operational processes. The Company has established an internal
control review plan to cover its major internal control systems
covering areas including operational control, financial control and
compliance control. Recommendations for further improvements
have been reported to the Audit Committee and the Audit
Committee has, in turn, reported the same to the Board together
with its assessment and recommendations. Such recommendations
have been or are being followed up by management. The Company
is committed to maintain an effective internal control system and
will make sure that adequate resources and management attention
will be devoted to strengthen its internal controls and risk
management procedures.

Recognizing the importance of internal controls and risk
management procedures, the Group has set up an internal audit
department with the assistance of external independent professionals
in establishing internal audit procedures and in provision of
appropriate training to the relevant personnel.
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REMUNERATION OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS SNEE R BLRD 2 BN &

The Group's independent external auditors are Ernst & Young, AEBEBIUINEZEMARESHMLTKE
Certified Public Accountants. During the year, the annual audit fees FHEIEMKFT - &R REBEEN BN TFLXKE
and non-audit fees payable/paid by the Group to Ernst & Young HEISESHzFERBERALIERBRERADR A
were RMB5,850,000 and RMB2,760,000, respectively. A R #5,850,0007T & A R #2,760,0007T ©
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

During the year, the Group’s subsidiaries continued to be engaged
in the manufacture and sale of washing machines and water
heaters, as well as the provision of integrated channel services
which comprised the provision of logistics services and distribution
of home appliances and other products. During the year, the
Group’s integrated channel services were extended to include the
provision of after-sale service and on-line sales of home appliances
after the Group has acquired Qingdao Goodaymart Electronics
Service Company Limited and Haier Group E-commerce Company
Limited, respectively. Other than these developments, there were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 83 to 215.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year.

The Group shall retain sufficient cash for maintaining a strong
financial position in the challenging environments, engaging in
strategic acquisitions when opportunity arise, and more importantly,
achieving the flexibility in relation to investment in the integrated
channel services such as spending in distribution centers
construction.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 216. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS,
WARRANTS AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share options,
warrants and convertible bonds during the year are set out in notes
33, 34 and 30 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE , REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 35(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to
RMB610,320,000. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of RMB1,818,818,000, may be capitalised
and distributed to members in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 89%
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 49%.

During the vyear, Haier Group Corporation (“Haier Corp”) and
Qingdao Haier Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (“Haier
Investment”) (collectively referred to as “Haier Group”), the
substantial shareholders of the Company, had beneficial interests in
all of the Group’s five largest suppliers.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Contd)

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or any of their
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best
knowledge of the directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Ms. Yang Mian Mian

Mr. Zhou Yun lJie

Mr. Li Hua Gang

Mr. Sun Jing Yan (resigned on 24 August 2011)

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Wu Ke Song

Mr. Liang Hai Shan

Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng (appointed on 24 August 2011)

Alternate director:
Mr. Gui Zhaoyu (alternate Director to Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng)
(appointed on 24 August 2011)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Wu Yinong

Mr. Yu Hon To, David

Dr. Liu Xiao Feng

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, Ms. Yang Mian
Mian, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, Mr. Yu Hon To, David, Ms. Janine Junyuan
Feng and Mr. Gui Zhaoyu will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for any specific terms and are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of Mr. Wu Yinong, Dr. Liu Xiao Feng and Mr. Yu Hon
To, David, and, on the basis of such confirmations, considers them
to be independent as at the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 25 of the
annual report.

CHANGES OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Below are the changes of directors’ information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the
interim report:

Up to the balance sheet date, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, the executive
director of the Company was appointed as a director of the Group's
subsidiaries including HH Retail Limited and Haier International
Business Corporation Limited.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Mr. Zhou was also appointed
as a director of the Group’s subsidiaries including Haier Electrical
Appliances Fourth Holdings (BVI) Limited, Haier Washing Machines
Holdings (BVI) Limited, Haier Water Heaters Holdings (BVI) Limited,
Haier Holdings (BVI) Limited.

Up to the balance sheet date, Mr. Li Hua Gang, the executive
director of the Company was appointed as a director of the Group's
subsidiaries including HH Retail Limited, Tangshan Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd, Wuhan Goodaymart Electric Appliance
Co., Ltd and Shanxi Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Mr. Li was also appointed as
a director of the Group’s subsidiaries including Foreland Agents
Limited, Coreland Limited, Impressive Holdings Limited, Haier
Washing Machines Holdings (BVI) Limited, Nanchang Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd. and Wenzhou Goodaymart Electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.

Mr. Wu Ke Song has resigned as a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company with effect from 19 December 2011
and Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng (with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her alternate
Director) has been appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company with effect from 19 December 2011.
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CHANGES OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
(Contd)

On 18 October 2011, the Board has resolved to establish the
Strategic Committee with Mr. Zhou Yun lJie (Chairman), Dr. Liu Xiao
Feng and Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng (with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her
alternate Director) appointed as members of the Strategic
Committee.

On 30 March 2012, Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng (with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu
as her alternate Director) has been appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from that day.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the year, no director had a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company's
board of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the
directors in the share capital and underlying shares (“Share(s)”) of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POS
SHA

ITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
RES (Contd)

Long positions in Shares of the Company:
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ZHEBNKRE(E)

RARBBRM 2R

Number of Shares
directly (personal)

Approximate %

Name beneficially owned  of issued Shares
BEEMEA)

BEREs HEBRITRGZ
it R4 8B BABS
Mr. Wu Ke Song REREE 3,180,000 0.14
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BAEREE 2,290,000 0.10
Mr. Li Hua Gang R EE W) % A 230,000 0.01
Long positions in underlying Shares of the Company pursuant to RIEBRERAAGTEBEKRGO ZHE
share options:

Number of share
options granted

Approximate % of
issued Shares

and not yet upon exercise of

Name exercised share options
[EF:4: TEBRER

BERITHEZ HERTRHG

o BREZE ZHABEIHE
Mr. Wu Ke Song* R N e o 7,420,000 0.32
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie* BERFE 5,610,000 0.24
Mr. Li Hua Gang* FER A 2,070,000 0.09
Mr. Wu Yinong * RN R T A& 320,000 0.01
Mr. Yu Hon To, David * BE R R 360,000 0.02
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng *# 2% g S A 320,000 0.01

The exercise price of each of the above share options is HK$1.70 for
subscription of one Share. The exercisable period is from 18
September 2010 to 17 September 2014.

The exercise price of each of the above share options is HK$8.67 for
subscription of one Share. The exercisable period is from 16 June
2012 to 15 December 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES (Contd)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of Qingdao Haier

Co., Ltd ("Qingdao Haier”), the Company’s shareholder:

Approximate

‘7REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EESHEE

EERKROKRERBRRG
ZHEBNRE(E)

Number of
share options

Approximate
% of total

registered share

RARABREESFEARNERAR(ESEH])
2B MBI ZFR

% of total granted and capital upon
Number of registered not yet exercise of Capacity and
Name shares held share capital exercised share option interest
ERY BREETEZ
1l 48 5% it AR 2= 1B R 4T 6 ZHEAMBRE SHE
i BRHEE z#E2E ZBREHEA ZHBMAEILE ERME
Ms. Yang Mian Mian 1,472,672 0.0548 3,150,000 0.12  Directly (personal)
(note) beneficially owned
R GE R (B 35D BEEEANERESR
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 1,027,920 0.0383 2,212,000 0.08 Directly (personal)
(note) beneficially owned
2Lk E (B 51) BEEREMWEANERES
Mr. Wu Ke Song 122,672 0.0046 — — Directly (personal)
beneficially owned
RN /N v BEEMENE=#ES
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie 98,298 0.0037 — —  Directly (personal)
beneficially owned
AEREE BEEEANEREER
Note: On 28 October 2009, Ms. Yang Mian Mian and Mr. Liang Hai Shan izt RZZTEZNAF+A-+/\B > BEGZLILEE

were granted options to subscribe for 2,250,000 and 1,580,000
ordinary shares of RMB1 each, respectively, at an exercise price of
RMB10.88 per share in Qingdao Haier. On 25 August 2010, the
exercise price had been adjusted to RMB10.58 per share. The exercise
period is from 28 October 2010 to 27 October 2014. During August
of 2011, Qingdao Haier has issued shares to existing shareholders
from its certain capital reserve on the ratio of 10 shares for 10
shares. The above shares and outstanding share options held had
reflected the effect of such capitalization issue. Also the exercise price
had been adjusted to RMB5.24 per share.
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ARAFEBEBZB(EEZERESFLREGRIE
XVED) Z B BB M  HEALERAR

Save as disclosed above, no directors or chief executive had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part

XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by 1R #& & % & 81 & (& I 35216 38 & //\ﬁﬁzﬂ
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise st R ZEAIERSIKXAE - HBHE LT

EETRFRXINIEEST
FrefEfMEs sk A »

notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to the AlZEZ g AR T&Hﬁ%“

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.



DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN
OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and reward to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Further details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed
in note 34 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options outstanding during the year:

Number of share options
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TREEAXR

RARFARTEBREZEZSIER

EREHE
Date of Exercise
grant of price of
At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed At 31 share share options
Name or category of 1 January during the during the during the during the December options Exercise period of (note 2) per
participant 2011 year year year year 2011 (note 1) share options share HK$
R® R BRE BRETEE
—2-—-F RER RER RER RER ZE--F RHAH (Hf&E2)
HERSREER —-A—H B i BUH X% t=ZA=t-B (W1 BRETES SRER
Executive directors
HTEE:
Mr. Zhou Yun lie 7,900,000 — 2,290,000 — — 5,610,000 18/09/2009  18/09/2010-17/09/2014 1.7
Mr. Li Hua Gang 2,300,000 — 230,000 - — 2,070,000 18/09/2009  18/09/2010-17/09/2014 1.7
FERKE
Mr. Sun Jing Yan 2,300,000 — 230,000 — — 2,070,000 18/09/2009  18/09/2010-17/09/2014 1.7
BRERE
12,500,000 — 2,750,000 — — 9,750,000
Non-executive directors
FRITES:
Mr. Wu Ke Song 10,600,000 — 3,180,000 — — 7,420,000 18/09/2009  18/09/2010-17/09/2014 1.7
RRiREE
Mr. Yu Hon To, David — 360,000 — — — 360,000 16/12/2011 16/06/2012-15/12/2014 8.67
MEELAE
Mr. Wu Yinong — 320,000 — — — 320,000 16/12/2011 16/06/2012-15/12/2014 8.67
RTEEE
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng — 320,000 — — — 320,000 16/12/201 16/06/2012-15/12/2014 8.67
BEEL
— 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN EEZBEEAQXTRMHG
== = =1
OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (Contd) —SREREERZER (&)
Share option scheme (Cont’d) BRREE (E)
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
Date of price of
At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed At 31 grant of share options
Name or category of 1 January during the during the during the during the  December share options Exercise period of (note 2) per
participant 2011 year year year year 2011 (note 1) share options share HK$
®
® —E--F BRE BRETHEE
—E--F RER RER RER RER +tZA=+ REAH (KrE2)
BEFZREER -A-H B (ik:d B %M -8B (W& BRETHEE BRAET
External consultants
HEMEE
In aggregate 29,680,000 — 4,969,000 360,000 2,784,000 21,567,000 18/09/2009  18/09/2010-17/09/2013 1.7
st
In aggregate — 2,200,000 — — — 2,200,000 16/12/20M 16/12/2012-15/12/2014 7.58
@t
29,680,000 2,200,000 4,969,000 360,000 2,784,000 23,767,000
Other employees
HitfES
In aggregate 19,700,000 — 1,457,000 361,500 — 17,881,500 18/09/2009 18/09/2010-17/09/2014 1.7
@t
In aggregate 25,960,000 — 501,000 — 640,000 24,819,000 18/05/2010 18/05/2011-17/05/2014 4.82
B3
In aggregate — 15,580,000 — — — 15,580,000 16/12/2011 16/12/2012-15/12/2014 7.58
s
45,660,000 15,580,000 1,958,000 361,500 640,000 58,280,500
98,440,000 18,780,000 12,857,000 721,500 3,424,000 100,217,500
Notes: B & -
1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant 1. BhERBHESERLEREETEYMGA
until the commencement of the exercise period. k-
2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment(s) in 2. i HE 7T R B B AT AT B S AN A R B A 3R B A
the case of rights or bonus share issues, or other similar changes in BELEE ABRENTEBRATIAEE -
the share capital of the Company.
3. The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares 3. REZBRRETTE BB AAB RO MNEFS

immediately before the exercise dates of the share options was
HK$7.83 per share. The closing price of the Company’'s shares
immediately before the date on which the options were granted
during the year was HK$6.80 per share.

W ERGRT8IETT - FARERE N ERE
B8R 2 ARR R KT ESSK680ETT °



DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN
OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (Contd)

Share option scheme (Contd)

The directors have estimated the values of the share options granted
during the year, calculated using the Binomial Option Pricing Model
as at the date of grant of the options, to be RMB35,506,000.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model is a generally accepted method
of valuing options. The significant assumptions used in the
calculation of the values of the share options were dividend yield,
historical volatility, risk-free rate, contractual life of options and
exercise multiple. The measurement dates used in the valuation
calculations were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the Binomial Option
Pricing Model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to
the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of
assumptions of the expected future performance input to the
model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. Any change to the variables used may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

Save as the options granted to the director, at no time during the
year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
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CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Group has contracts with Haier Group and their subsidiaries
and/or associates (collectively referred to as “Haier Affiliates”) for
the purchase of products and materials. Further details of the
transactions undertaken in connection with these contracts during
the year are included in the section “Connected transactions”.

During the year, the Group acquired from Haier Affiliates 51%
interest in Yantai Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd. and Hefei
Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd. at the considerations of
RMB18,800,000 and RMB5,000,000, respectively, and 100% interest
in Qingdao Goodaymart Electronics Service Company Limited at the
consideration of RMB240,000,000. In addition, the Group also
entered into structure contracts to obtain effective control over the
operations of Haier Group E-commerce Company Limited, which
was owned by Haier Corp; and accordingly, the Group provided an
interest-free loan of RMB30,000,000 to Haier Corp. Further details
of these transactions are included in the section “Connected
transactions”.

During the year, the Company and Hawaii Asia of Carlyle Group
entered into an investment agreement pursuant to which Hawaii
Asia agreed to subscribe for the Company’s convertible bonds.
Further details of the transaction are included in note 30 to the
financial statements.

EEEK
AEEEEREBENENBAR R, REERF
(EEABBALDIILANARBEREM
e MZEFEONFRETRIZHMFBTERE
NIBERXS]—& -

FRN -AEEDHESREBATWEBESRA
IEEXRERAFNMAIEBRBIEERBRAA51%
- RED R A AKE18,800,000T & AR
5,000,000 - AMBSEHBIEERRBEE R QA
K)100% #E = - KB A A R%240,000,0007T ° it
I REBNEAIVEBEEHNURNSHEREEA
RBEENSRERETESERAABEREEL
Bl MASEERERESHEEQARRHEARE
30,000,000t 2 EER - ZERHME—HFHE
BRHERS]— -

F£R - ARQE EE E B A Hawaii Asia 513218 E
sk o B - Hawaii AsiaC A EBRBALQT 20
BRES RSP HMFBUE R Y REN
530 °



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2011, the following shareholders interested in 5%
or more of the issued share capital and share options of the
Company were recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:
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WRZB-——F+ZR=+—H UTRRERZ
BRARBRIEEF R E GO F3361E R E R
FEZITERREZMZEHTRARERESY%
A B2 R

Long positions: FA
Approximate
percentage of
Number of  the Company’s
Shares issued share
Name of shareholder Notes interested capital
LR NN
BEREZ BRTREAZ
REER Bt 51 v 4= MABEDE
Qingdao Haier Collective Asset SETREREEEERS
Management Association (“Haier BELES S350
Collective Asset Management”) 1, 4 1,573,130,592 67.04
Haier Corp BEEERQT 2, 4 1,573,130,592 67.04
Haier Investment BRIEE 3,4 1,573,130,592 67.04
Qingdao Haier EE58® 4 1,224,439,592 52.18
Haier Shareholdings (Hong Kong) BB (EB)BRAR(E
Limited (“Hong Kong Haier") ioR=T 0] 4 831,762,110 35.44
Carlyle Asia Partners lll AIV Cayman, Carlyle Asia Partners Il AlV
L.P. Cayman, L.P. 5 240,000,000 10.23
Hawaii Asia Holdings Limited Hawaii Asia Holdings Limited 5 240,000,000 10.23



Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Contd)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2011, by virtue of the SFO, Haier Collective Asset
Management was deemed to be interested in an aggregate of
1,573,130,592 Shares, including (i) 348,691,000 Shares directly and
indirectly held by its non wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Haier
Investment; and (ii) given Haier Investment was acting in concert with
Haier Corp and Qingdao Haier, Haier Collective Asset Management
was also deemed to be interested in 1,224,439,592 Shares held by
Qingdao Haier pursuant to the SFO.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian and Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, executive directors of the
Company, and Mr. Wu Ke Song and Mr. Liang Hai Shan, non-
executive directors of the Company are also members of the board of
management of Haier Collective Asset Management.

As Qingdao Haier is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp,
Haier Corp was deemed to be interested in 1,224,439,592 Shares
held by Qingdao Haier pursuant to the SFO.

Furthermore, as Haier Corp was acting in concert with Haier
Investment, Haier Corp was deemed to be interested in 348,691,000
Shares held by Haier Investment and its subsidiary.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian and Mr. Zhou Yun lJie, executive directors of the
Company, and Mr. Wu Ke Song and Mr. Liang Hai Shan, non-
executive directors of the Company, are also the members of the
management committee of Haier Corp.

Haier Investment and its subsidiary held 348,691,000 Shares in total
as beneficial owners. Moreover, Haier Investment was deemed to be
interested in 1,224,439,592 Shares held by Qingdao Haier pursuant to
the SFO by reason of its acting in concert with Haier Corp.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian, the executive director of the Company, are also
directors of Haier Investment.

Qingdao Haier held 392,677,482 Shares as beneficial owner.
Moreover, Qingdao Haier was deemed to be interested in 831,762,110
Shares held by its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hong Kong Haier,
pursuant to the SFO.

Carlyle Asia Partners Il AIV Cayman, L.P. was deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by its subsidiary, Hawaii Asia Holdings
Limited, pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

FTEBRRRROR
HERG 2 EE(E)

UEE

1. RZZE——F+-_A=+—B BEZLHRHE
G- BREREEEREHBANAEH
1,573,130,52 B F BT ZERMHEE
WVHEFZ2EWBARSREEAEELHEERS
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and the Group had the following
connected and continuing connected transactions, certain details of
which are disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter
14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Connected transactions

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 29 December 2010 and 27 April 2011, Chongging New
Goodaymart Electronics Sales Co., Ltd. (“Chongging New
Goodaymart”) entered into sale and purchase agreements
with Henan Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd. (“Henan
Goodaymart”), a company established in the PRC which was
held as to 54.17% by Haier Investment and as to 45.83% by
Haier Corp, pursuant to which Chongging New Goodaymart
agreed to acquire and Henan Goodaymart agreed to sell 51%
interest in Yantai Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.
("Yantai Goodaymart”) and Hefei Goodaymart Electric
Appliance Co., Ltd. (“Hefei Goodaymart”) at the considerations
of RMB18,800,000 and RMB5,000,000, respectively. Yantai
Goodaymart and Hefei Goodaymart are principally engaged in
the distribution and sales of home electrical appliances in
Mainland China. These transactions were completed on 17
June 2011 and 24 May 2011, respectively.

On 24 June 2011, Qingdao New Goodaymart Logistics Service
Company Limited (“Qingdao NG") entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Haier Corp pursuant to which
Qingdao NG agreed to acquire and Haier Corp agreed to sell
100% interest in Qingdao Goodaymart Electronics Service
Company Limited (“Qingdao Service”) at the consideration of
RMB240,000,000. Qingdao Service is principally engaged in
the provision of the after-sale and value-added consumer
services for home appliances distributed in Mainland China.
The transaction was completed on 16 October 2011.

On 27 June 2011, Qingdao NG entered into structure
contracts, including a loan agreement, option agreement,
exclusive business cooperation agreement, equity pledge
agreement and power of attorney, with Haier Corp and/or
Haier Group E-commerce Company Limited (“E-commerce”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp. According to the
structure contracts, Qingdao NG is able to obtain effective
control over the operations of E-commerce and receive
economic benefits generated from E-commerce’s business and
Qingdao NG agreed to grant an interest-free loan of
RMB30,000,000 to Haier Corp. The entire amount of the loan
shall be repaid through Haier Corp transferring its 100%
equity interests in E-commerce, for a corresponding amount
of the equity transfer consideration, to Qingdao NG or its
nominee. E-commerce is principally engaged in the operation
of an on-line sales platform namely eHaier for selling Haier
brand home appliances in Mainland China. The transaction
was completed on 25 December 2011.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
BREREEFRLA

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Continuing connected transactions

During the year, the Group (excluding Yantai Goodaymart, Hefei
Goodaymart, Qingdao Service and E-commerce) had the following

7REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EESHEE

BEXS(#E)

REBREXRS

FR-AEE(HCREZAERIE - SEBHIE -
FERBRETHH EEEHBALSETN

material transactions with Haier Affiliates: TERXZS:
2011 2010
— % —E-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR¥ T ARBT T

Export sale of washing machines A B R R

and water heaters K2 BOK 28 (i) 1,453,159 1,080,933
Domestic sale of products M 8H & E (ii) 152,167 21,553
Purchase of finished goods B 8K @ (iif) 27,771,051 20,021,520
Purchase of raw materials BB R K (iv) 10,708,982 9,353,256
Printing and packaging fee expenses Rl RBEBELH V) 29,688 26,741
Mould charges RABEST N (vi) 135,403 233,346
Utility service fee expenses AARBESZE (vii) 79,355 84,809
Promotion fee expenses EEBLH (viii) 185,969 152,470
Other service fee expenses Hi R8BI (ix) 307,525 191,421
Interest income B A (x) 12,758 8,778
Interest expenses FlEXZH (x) 464 4,008
Other financial service fees Hth e mR%E (xi) 7,639 5,183
Trademark licence fee expenses PEIZEREE T (xii) — —
Logistic service income Y7 BR 7% W A (xiii) 1,729,837 —
Logistic charges iR g (xiv) = 486,240
Premise lease income YIEME R A (xv) 2,016 2,016
Premise lease expenses MEBEEZH (xv) 2,043 1,511
Purchase of equipment PREE R (xvi) 1,854 896




CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Continuing connected transactions (Cont'd)

Notes:

)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The export sales of washing machines and water heaters were made
to Haier Electrical Appliances Co., Ltd. (“Haier Electrical”), a subsidiary
of Haier Investment, at selling prices representing the differences
between the selling prices of washing machines and water heaters
mutually agreed and the selling expenses of Haier Electrical not
exceeding 1.5% of the selling prices of washing machines and water
heaters.

The domestic sales of products made at prices no less favorable than
those prevailing in the domestic market for the products of the same
type and quality and those offered by the Group to independent third
party.

The purchase of finished goods was charged at prices no less
favourable than those prevailing in the domestic market for the
products of the same type and quality and those offered by Haier
Affiliates to independent third parties.

The purchase of raw materials was charged at prices not higher than
the consolidated and integrated tender and bidding price of the raw
materials plus a commission fee of not exceeding 1.75%.

The printing and packaging fee expenses were charged on terms no
less favourable than those offered by independent third parties.

The moulds were charged with reference to the average market
tender and bidding price plus actual administrative costs.

The utility service fee expenses were charged based on the state-
prescribed prices plus actual administrative costs.

The promotion fee expenses were charged at no more than 1.2% of
the domestic sales of washing machines and water heaters of the
Group.

The other service fee expenses were charged with reference to the
actual costs incurred and/or on terms no less favourable than those
offered by independent third parties to the Group.

The interest income and expenses were determined with reference to
the standard rates published by the People’s Bank of China. The
maximum balance of bank deposits placed with and the maximum
loan balance drawn down from Haier Group Finance Co., Ltd. related
to the above interest income and expenses during the year were
RMB748,664,000 and RMB25,000,000, respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Continuing connected transactions (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont’d)

(xi) The other financial service fee expenses were charged on terms no
less favourable than those offered by independent third parties.

(xii)  The trademark licence fee expenses were charged at a nominal
consideration of RMB1 during the year.

(xiii)  The logistic service income was charged on terms no less favorable
than those prevailing in the domestic market for services of similar
kinds and quality and those charged by the Group on independent
third parties.

(xiv)  The logistics charges were charged on terms no less favourable than
those offered by independent third parties.

(xv)  The premise lease income and expenses were determined with
reference to the rental assessment of the premises conducted by an
independent firm of professional valuers in the People’s Republic of
China.

(xvi)  The purchase of production and experimental equipment was charged
at prices no less favourable than those offered by independent third
parties.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Continuing connected transactions (Cont’d)

Upon the Group’s completion of the acquisition of Hefei
Goodaymart on 24 May 2011, Hefei Goodaymart had the following
material transactions with Haier Affiliates:
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BEBERS (&)

REAEBR -_E——FRA-_+THATRKES
FEEBIER - AIEBRIEESHEBEATHE K
RHWT:

2011

—2——%

Notes RMB’000

(= AR T

Purchase of finished goods £RHE B (i) 845

Interest income B W A (i) 35
Notes: B &

(i) The purchase of finished goods was charged at prices no less (i) RKEXRIODETMERBEATSEUEEAELE S

favourable than those prevailing in the domestic market for the
products of the same type and quality and those offered by Haier
Affiliates to independent third parties

(i) The interest income was determined with reference to the standard
rates published by the People’s Bank of China.

Upon the Group’'s completion of the acquisition of Yantai
Goodaymart on 17 June 2011, Yantai Goodaymart had the following
material transactions with Haier Affiliates:

MERERBOZEBUARERBEA LRSS
VUEZTRHEEE -

(i FSWAZEZRBEARRITAMHOELEFNKEF -

AEBR-_Z——FRA+TELHZRKRBESH
Blgz  EERRIBEEHBBALNHNERRS
ok

2011

—-——f

Note RMB’'000

M 5 AR® T

Interest expenses FEXH (i) 131

Interest income B W A (i) 13
Note: M sE :

(i) The interest income and expenses were determined with reference to (i) FMEaEWRAERTENZ2ZRBEARBITEMGZE

the standard rates published by the People’s Bank of China.

R o
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Continuing connected transactions (Cont’d)

Upon

the Group’s completion of the acquisition of Qingdao Service

on 16 October 2011, Qingdao Service had the following material
transactions with Haier Affiliates:
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AEBER-_ZF——FtATAAZRUBEST SR
Bk EERBGESHRBBALINERZZNAT:

2011

—E——F

Notes RMB’000

Bt 5% AR¥ T

After-sale service income BEEREWA (i) 45,884
Purchase of finished goods R B8 K S (ii) 1,580
Purchase of raw materials BRBE R AR (iii) 313
Printing and packaging fee expenses ElplkBEERATH (iv) 60
Utility service fee expenses AARBESZL (v) 556
Other service fee expenses Hi B EAZH (vi) 1,923
Interest income B W A (vii) 306

Notes:

)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

The after-sale service income was charged on terms no less favourable
than those prevailing in the domestic market for services of similar
nature and scale.

The purchase of finished goods was charged at prices no less
favourable than those prevailing in the domestic market for the
products of the same type and quality and those offered by Haier
Affiliates to independent third parties.

The purchase of raw materials was charged at prices not higher than
the consolidated and integrated tender and bidding price of the raw
materials plus a commission fee of not exceeding 1.75%.

The printing and packaging fee expenses were charged on terms no
less favourable than those offered by independent third parties.

The utility service fee expenses were charged based on the state-
prescribed prices plus actual administrative costs.

The other service fee expenses were charged with reference to the
actual costs incurred and/or on terms no less favourable than those
offered by independent third parties to the Group.

The interest income was determined with reference to the standard
rates published by the People’s Bank of China.

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Continuing connected transactions (Cont’d)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out above and
have confirmed that they were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor's letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
BREREEFRLA

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this report,
at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held
by the public.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the reporting period of the
Group are set out in note 42 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire, and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Yang Mian Mian
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

B 2 BAD R E B

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

To the shareholders of Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Haier
Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 215, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2011, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

B Ltz BED ¥R S

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Contd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong
30 March 2012
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Year ended 31 December 2011 HE=-ZT——F+=-A=1+—HIFE
2011 2010
—E——F —ET—FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Jiog=3 AR¥ T AR F T
(Restated)
(&)
REVENUE PN 5 49,899,807 36,794,464
Cost of sales 4 & B AR (42,416,066) (31,966,696)
Gross profit £ 7,483,741 4,827,768
Other income and gains Hao g A R 5 99,405 74,115
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER (4,146,905) (2,538,091)
Administrative expenses THER (1,565,167) (917,939)
Other expenses and losses HEtEBRKREE (60) (1,082)
Finance costs B & A 7 (22,492) (5,239)
Share of profits and losses of FE At 2k R 4% 1]
jointly-controlled entities BB — 5,318
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B A 0% A 6 1,848,522 1,444,850
Income tax expense 8 i f X2 10 (385,877) (429,140)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRERN 1,462,645 1,015,710
Attributable to: AT & 75 FE1h
Owners of the Company VNN S 11 1,406,016 974,247
Non-controlling interests IE 1758 A% #E % 56,629 41,463
1,462,645 1,015,710
EARNINGS PER SHARE AATEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BREMS
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE SREF
COMPANY 13
Basic HAK RMB61.13 cents RMB47.33 cents
AR¥61.139 AR #47.33%
Diluted b 1 RMB55.44 cents RMB41.10 cents

AR #55.44%

AR#41.109
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
= N T il

Year ended 31 December 2011 BE T ——F+-_F=+—HIEFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
b & AR® TR ARBF T
(Restated)
(E31))
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R Al 1,462,645 1,015,710
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Htt2mk =
Exchange differences on translation of #E /G INER 2 E N =58
foreign operations (22,962) 676
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRE2E
FOR THE YEAR Uy 35 48 58 1,439,683 1,016,386
Attributable to: AT &7 1k -
Owners of the Company ZAN/NESI B 11 1,383,054 974,923
Non-controlling interests FEAE IR 7 5 56,629 41,463

1,439,683 1,016,386
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

/\\/ \

% AR S &

31 December 2011 — T ——F+=-A=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—E——F —ZT-%F —E-FF
+=-—A=+-B +=ZA=+—H —R—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR®ETR ARBTT ARBFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E51)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS F(RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREHE 15 990,064 863,725 679,627
Investment properties BEME 16 19,128 20,800 22,472
Prepaid land lease payments BT HAER 17 259,377 171,229 79,241
Intangible assets ﬂﬁﬁ; BE 18 79,811 962 1,783
Investments in jointly-controlled REREHE
entities iR E 20 — — 25,457
Available-for-sale investments AfEERE 21 8,625 8,625 10,295
Deferred tax assets BELEREEE Y 382,642 221,311 21,459
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 1,739,647 1,286,652 840,334
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 22 2,102,926 1,344,080 509,486
Trade and bills receivables EWESEREZEE 23 5,572,035 3,910,791 3,345,051
Prepayments, deposits and BAFE -EHek
other receivables H Al W BR 3K 24 832,063 628,229 194,024
Pledged deposits EEHRER 25 87,402 3,01 86,814
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEBEEER 25 3,959,963 2,725,866 1,482,877
Total current assets MBEELE 12,554,389 8,611,977 5,618,252
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables ENESEALER 26 2,533,786 1,528,433 1,641,429
Tax payable e R 18 618,148 615,690 122,338
Other payables and H AR K
accruals EEtEE 27 5,308,254 4,439,484 2,501,740
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 28 25,000 5,000 10,000
Provisions B 31 466,466 291,963 206,476
Put option liabilities ROLHEERE 29 900 — —
Total current liabilities nEBAERE 8,952,554 6,880,570 4,481,983
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFME 3,601,835 1,731,407 1,136,269
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRD
CURRENT LIABILITIES afE 5,341,482 3,018,059 1,976,603
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A 8IS AR O R

31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—E——F —E-FF —E-FF
+=-—A=+-B +=ZA=+—H —R—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARBTR ARBFT ARETFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (7))
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES *knRBEE
Convertible bonds ]k & 5 30 669,849 — —
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE 28 — — 74,000
Provisions g 31 224,944 151,555 100,524
Deferred income iR E WA 42,910 43,609 —
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIEBEEE 32 8,826 9,257 9,588
Put option liabilities RGHERE 29 114,100 — —
Total non-current liabilities ERBEELE 1,060,629 204,421 184,112
Net assets EEFE 4,280,853 2,813,638 1,792,491
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners VAN
of the Company el &
Issued equity BETEE 33 2,337,909 2,248,843 1,527,611
Equity component of A#MERES 2
convertible bonds 5 30 149,249 — —
Reserves @ 35(a) 1,529,825 350,046 117,885
4,016,983 2,598,889 1,645,496
Non-controlling interests FEERER 263,870 214,749 146,995
Total equity Ban e 4,280,853 2,813,638 1,792,491
Yang Mian Mian Zhou Yun lJie
R AEXR
Chairman Director
Ey EBEE
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—E——FFR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NN =
e IR e R EKXR
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
b & AR® TR ARBTFT
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM RELEBrRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R B BID&E A 1,848,522 1,444,850
Adjustments for: VELAT A2 .
Finance costs &l & B A 7 22,492 5,239
Share of profits of JE (1 3£ [R] 42 1
jointly-controlled entities B8 A = (5,318)
Interest income FB WA 5 (21,226) (11,010)
Dividend income from AEfHERE
available-for-sale investments A% B U A 5 (1,988) (1,974)
Gain on disposal of HERTHEE
available-for-sale investments "B W = 5 — (286)
Gain on disposal of i & 4k @) 4 )
jointly-controlled entities Bk 5 — (3,166)
Depreciation of property, mE - WER
plant and equipment RETE 6 83,789 75,464
Depreciation of Investment wEYE
properties e 6 1,672 1,672
Recognition of prepaid land WRBEN T
premiums HEe 6 4,907 3,359
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEEE 6 4,831 821
Provision for obsolete and i R K2 % 8
slow-moving inventories FERE 6 35,634 22,762
Reversal of impairment on B m E b U
other receivables R ZRE 6 (331) —
Loss on disposal/write-off of HEMEmE - BE
items of property, plant and REBEECEBEBETE
equipment, net 6 60 1,057
Equity-settled share option expense — JARX AN 45 & 2 B8 B A 2 6 29,953 38,351
2,008,315 1,571,821
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BEEREEARIE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AR E M ER

Year ended 31 December 2011 HZE-T——HF+-_A=+—HALFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBF T
(Restated)
(E751)

Increase in inventories T & (794,480) (857,356)
Increase in trade and bills receivables fEUX & 5 8R 7k & = #5120 (1,661,244) (565,740)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FE{TFKE - £ & K

other receivables H b, fE Yz BR FRE N (203,164) (424,829)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and ERESER KRR

bills payables #mCr ) 1,005,353 (112,996)
Increase in other Hfh FE T RR R K

payables and accruals JE & B E G N 1,227,073 1,617,378
Increase in provisions B 15 12 0 247,892 136,518
Decrease in deferred income ELH&)\M’/ (699) —
Effect of foreign exchange rate fEREB) 8558

changes, net 14,229 23,218
Cash generated from operations KEEBER® 1,843,275 1,388,014
Interest received =L @RI P 21,226 11,010
Mainland China corporate BB K B TS

income tax paid (544,750) (135,640)
Net cash flows from LEEB R REFE

operating activities 1,319,751 1,263,384
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—E——FFR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
N =
e IR e R EKXR
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
b & AR® TR ARBFT
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM REFEH 2
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HERE
Dividends received from B AT E
available-for-sale investments KERE 1,988 1,974
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BER
plant and equipment HEIEE 15 (210,250) (189,863)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME BER
property, plant and equipment HEIBEMEHIA 3,457 5,361
Additions to prepaid lease payments 7% 78 f & 3% 17 (93,394) (56,083)
Additions to intangible assets igEEpEE 18 (13,680) —
Acquisition of subsidiaries g 1 0p=2/NC] — 650
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHEERE
available-for-sale investments Ffr iS5k 18 — 1,956
Receipt of government grants BEWREFHE — 43,609
Decrease/(increase) in BE 17 2OR
pledged deposits /(3 ) (84,391) 83,803
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits ~ RE{SE B#E =+ R 2| £ B
with original maturity over three HBE=11 Az FBHFRX
months when acquired () 144,945 (144,945)
Net cash flows used in KREEBAAZ
investing activities Rens#48 (251,325) (253,538)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

HeRehER

Year ended 31 December 2011 HZE-T——HF+-_A=+—HALFE

CASH FLOWS

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
b & AR® TR ARBF T
(Restated)
(E751)
CASH FLOWS FROM METEHZ
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HeERhE
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRMDATE IR 33 81,662 42,117
Proceeds from issue of B BRRES
convertible bonds Ffr 15 3038 30 874,375 672,101
Capital contributions from BB RELE
non-controlling shareholders 48,183 43,902
Capital contributions from the then KB 2 7% B 422 %
holding companies of subsidiaries NAHE 20,000 10,200
New borrowings MIGEE 25,000 —
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (5,000) (79,000)
Dividends paid to [RENE Y
non-controlling shareholders % 5B RS B (19,321) (17,611)
Dividends paid to the then holding BB AR E R
companies of subsidiaries 2 /N Hﬁ 5\ (3,000) (20,432)
Deemed distributions to R A iR ﬂ
holding companies EH® D) 7 (664,649) (535,650)
Interest paid B3 F B (1,068) (4,556)
Net cash flows from BEEE 2
financing activities RenREFHE 356,182 111,071
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRkBEE&EEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS 2 8 F R 1,424,608 1,120,917
Cash and cash equivalents FzE2ER®
at beginning of year %@Iﬁ = 2,555,921 1,457,877
Effect of foreign exchange ExREgg &
rate changes, net F R (45,566) (22,873)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ2ESERRS
AT END OF YEAR ZEEE 3,934,963 2,555,921
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T —EEH
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
N =
RERESNERXR
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE-Z——F+-A=+—HILFE
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
b & AR® TR ARBFT
(Restated)
(E3))
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReRkBEE£ESHEER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ZEBRDF
Non-pledged cash and bank balances % K I5 & & §R 17 4% & 25 2,324,954 1,802,819
Time deposits with original maturity ~ REBE Bt
of less than three months when REEBHE DR
acquired —BAZEHER 25 1,635,009 923,047
Cash and cash equivalents as stated B % ik S & 0
in the statement of financial Fr3| 2B & &k
position Re%EEH 3,959,963 2,725,866
Less: time deposits with original B RESE BT
maturity over three months REIBAE B =E A
when acquired ZEBFER (25,000) (169,945)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated IR&REXRFFAYIZ
in the statement of cash flows Re kRS EEEE 3,934,963 2,555,921
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BEEREEARIE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BT 5 AR 0 3R

31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

2011 2010
—F—-—-F —TTF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
b & AR T ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR MRE 19 1,858,599 1,683,009
Intangible assets mEAEE 8 68,250 —
Due from subsidiaries JiE AT BfY /B8~ B R 18 19 145,318 216,939
2,072,167 1,899,948
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and FERHIE - Re Rk
other receivables H th B UL BR 5K 24 779 783
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBREFMEEL 25 1,340,242 768,694
Total current assets MEBEERE 1,341,021 769,477
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals HihENERRETERE 27 26,010 157,690
Total current liabilities mBaEEE 26,010 157,690
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,315,011 611,787
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEER
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE 3,387,178 2,511,735
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Due to subsidiaries FEAS B B A B 3k 1B 19 80,698 74,341
Convertible bonds AT R ES 30 669,849 —
Total non-current liabilities JEREBBELE 750,547 74,341
Net assets BEFE 2,636,631 2,437,394
EQUITY =
Issued capital BT 33 239,382 228,871
Equity component ;g ERZ
of convertible bonds TE 25 2B 30 149,249 —
Reserves 16 1% 35(b) 2,248,000 2,208,523
Total equity W 4B E 2,636,631 2,437,394
Yang Mian Mian Zhou Yun lJie
Chairman Director
*E EE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT %% ¥ & M &E

31 December 2011 — T ——F+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao
Haier”), which is established in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), and the controlling shareholders of the Company
are Haier Group Corporation (“Haier Corp”) and Qingdao
Haier Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (“Haier
Investment”) (collectively referred to as “Haier Group”), which
are established in the PRC, by reason of their acting in
concert with each other in respect of the Company. Qingdao
Haier is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

o manufacture and sale of washing machines
o manufacture and sale of water heaters
o provision of logistics, after-sale and other value-added

consumer services as well as sale and distribution of
home appliances and other products procured from
subsidiaries and/or associates of Haier Group (“Haier
Affiliates”) and other external parties

Acquisition transactions completed in 2010

On 20 October 2010, Chongging New Goodaymart Electronics
Sales Co., Ltd. (“Chongging New Goodaymart”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired a 94.95% interest
in Qingdao Lejia Electric Appliances Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao
Lejia”), a then wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp and its
affiliates, through an additional capital contribution of
RMB9,495,000 to its original capital of RMB505,000. Qingdao
Lejia is principally engaged in the sales of electrical appliances
in Mainland China.

AAE H
BREREEERARAARA REZTMAK
VY ZBRRAG c ARXAEGFEMPERMR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda °

BEERR ARARAZERERRARAASS
BREBRONERAR(EEE®B])  ZAFARN
HEARAMBE(HEDKYL - MARER
AlzEEERASMEBRRAR(IEAEHE
REANDEEEEMBREZRARARE
BEREDHEBIEASE] 9RFEKIL)
REARBRUZER—BTY #ARER
RAZEBRER -558RREBREE QR
ZHEEMBRR -

AEER AEERETIHIBER:

e HERHENXE
. s K 35 B HUK SR

. REYR  EREREMBEEEIRER
BAREEMDHRE BREE M
BRAAK /S m(ERAEEA
TOREMEINZTZREREME

]
an

R-E-ZEFXZHNKERS

RZZE—ZTF+A+H ARAZEEN
BRAREEHNARAIBREHESRARAE
EXHAIBEBDEBRAREERARE
505,000 T # & A R#9,495,000T © WEE
BEBRRAREBBARERZE2EWE
NEFELRERARATIEELR]) 2
9495% #m - BEHRTERNFPE AR

77
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT %% ¥ K M &

31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Contd)

On 20 December 2010, Qingdao New Goodaymart Logistics
Service Company Limited (“Qingdao NG”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Haier Corp pursuant to which Qingdao NG
agreed to acquire and Haier Corp agreed to sell 100%
interest in Qingdao Haier Logistics Company Limited (“Qingdao
Haier Logistics”) for a consideration of RMB763,000,000, of
which RMB534,100,000 was settled in 2010 and the
remaining RMB228,900,000 was settled during the vyear
ended 31 December 2011. On 31 May and 13 July 2010,
Qingdao Haier Logistics acquired the remaining 80% and 75%
shareholding in Beijing Haier Logistics Co., Ltd. and Qingdao
Haier Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd. from Haier Investment at
the considerations of RMB800,000 and RMB750,000,
respectively. Qingdao Haier Logistics and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the provision of logistics services.

Acquisition transactions completed in 2011

On 29 December 2010 and 27 April 2011, Chongging New
Goodaymart entered into sale and purchase agreements with
Henan Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd. (“Henan
Goodaymart”), a company established in the PRC which was
held as to 54.17% by Haier Investment and as to 45.83% by
Haier Corp, pursuant to which Chongging New Goodaymart
agreed to acquire and Henan Goodaymart agreed to sell 51%
interest in Yantai Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.
("Yantai Goodaymart”) and Hefei Goodaymart Electric
Appliance Co., Ltd. (“Hefei Goodaymart”) at the considerations
of RMB18,800,000 and RMB5,000,000, respectively. Yantai
Goodaymart and Hefei Goodaymart are principally engaged in
the distribution and sales of home electrical appliances in
Mainland China.

On 24 June 2011, Qingdao NG entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Haier Corp pursuant to which Qingdao NG
agreed to acquire and Haier Corp agreed to sell 100%
interest in Qingdao Goodaymart Electronics Service Company
Limited (“Qingdao Service”) at the consideration of
RMB240,000,000. Qingdao Service is principally engaged in
the provision of the after-sale and value-added consumer
services for home appliances distributed in Mainland China.

AEER (&)
R-CZE—FE+_A=-+H AxQAAZE2E
MEARSSHBRIBEMRRGER AT ([FH
SHARIEDHEEREE AR T LRESE
EhE BUSEHARIEREWEmER
EERTRELETESTRMRBRAR(E
SEBYRDZ2100%#ER  REAEARE
763,000,0007T + & f A R #534,100,0007T
EFZT—ZEFEMN IHEOARE
228,900,000t RNEE-_ZE——F+-_A=
+—BUEFEREN - R=ZZT—ZFFHA=
+—BRtA+=8 EEEREYRAEH
BREDRKRBLER SR RERARANLS
SERABIEYWRER AT ERT 280% &
75% Rk fE - R E D Rl A A R%800,0007T &
A R#750,0007T - SEER WK R EMEB
NEEEREREMTERS -

RZB——FRZANKERS
RZZE—ZEFF+_A=t+thhBERZZE—F
WA-Z++tH EEHABIERTEARBIE
ERARAA(RHIBEKLZAT - AEB
KREREBRER QT FFH54.17% k45.83%
#wm DUEBRIEDEIZEE RS « IRt -
EFEMHARIEREKREMIEARIERZ
HESRRECBRIBERERARA(ES
BEIENDEAEBBIEEERAR AT ((AE
HHIED®MS 1% ED  RES R ABARE
18,800,000 T & A K #5,000,0007C ° & &
BHIBERABRIEEZEFEANMMHMSE
REKDHEREE -

RZE——FXAZ+HNH E85#FHABIE
R EE AR REEERE - B
SEHHRIERAEKREMEREE QR
EHESEHEIEERRBEERARIETS
AR #%1)100% & R #E RERBRAR
240,000,0007C - S EMRBFEB R EF R F
BEA DN RERMERREEELE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Contd)

Acquisition transactions completed in 2011 (Cont’d)

On 27 June 2011, Qingdao NG entered into structure
contracts, including a loan agreement, option agreement,
exclusive business cooperation agreement, equity pledge
agreement and power of attorney, with Haier Corp and/or
Haier Group E-commerce Company Limited (“E-commerce”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp. According to the
structure contracts, Qingdao NG is able to obtain effective
control over the operations of E-commerce and receive
economic benefits generated from E-commerce’s business and
Qingdao NG agreed to grant an interest-free loan of RMB
30,000,000 to Haier Corp. The entire amount of the loan
shall be repaid through Haier Corp transferring its 100%
equity interests in E-commerce, for a corresponding amount
of the equity transfer consideration, to Qingdao NG or its
nominee. E-commerce is principally engaged in the operation
of an on-line sales platform namely eHaier for selling Haier
brand home appliances in Mainland China.

The transactions completed during the year ended 31
December 2011 are collectively referred to as the "Acquisition
Transactions” and the entities acquired in the Acquisition
Transactions are collectively referred to as the "Acquired
Entities”.

NEER (&)
—E-—FRANKEBXRS (&)
T——FXNA-ttR SEHAABIE
HEREEQARAL /A EBEBMARNE
EMBEARSHERETFRBEERAR(E
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BREGE BREBEIERE  RES
Ak EREZTE) - REZEEH &
EFNABIERSEYHETEHEMNEENE
B 4% ) 37 U B FR BB T P A S T 1S M AR
ek MESHBBIERERSBERR
AR —1E A R#30,000,000C % B EHK -
ZEEFNEZHERENEEERIREE
NAHBEENETFHBHHI00%KEGEE
PRESZRENHESRE) TEEHBAE
Bk EfEE M AR - EFREETEEFE
R ERE L E FAeHaier & B - LA
EHHERERE -
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31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“lIASs”) and
Interpretations) promulgated by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Merger accounting for business combination under
common control

Pursuant to the Acquisition Transactions, the Company
became a holding company of the Acquired Entities. Since the
Company and the Acquired Entities were ultimately controlled
by Haier Group both before and after the completion of the
Acquisition Transactions, the Acquisition Transactions were
accounted for using the principles of merger accounting.

The consolidated income statements, consolidated statements
of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes
in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010
include the results, changes in equity and cash flows of all
companies then comprising the Group and the Acquired
Entities, as if the corporate structure of the Group
immediately after the completion of the Acquisition
Transactions had been in existence throughout the years
ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, or since their respective
dates of acquisition, incorporation or registration, where this
is a shorter period. The consolidated statements of financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2010 and 1 January
2010 have been prepared to present the state of affairs of
the Group and the Acquired Entities as if the corporate
structure of the Group immediately after the completion of
the Acquisition Transactions had been in existence and in
accordance with the respective equity interests and/or the
power to exercise control over the individual companies
attributable to the Company as at 31 December 2010 and 1
January 2010.

2.1

fm B E %

HERBRRDEEAR S ERNEESHE
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

Merger accounting for business combination under
common control (Cont’d)

The operating results previously reported by the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2010 have been restated to include
the operating results of the Acquired Entities as set out
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21 WAEE(E)
AREHTEEA GO FRHEE(E)
AREBRESRBE-_FT-—TF+-A=

T—HIEFER
THEREBEEBNRERE:

REXBCDEIABREIA

below:
The Group
(as previously Acquired The Group
reported) Entities Elimination (combined)
rEH rEE
(MBPE2R) HHhBEER K 85 (&6
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AR®TRT AREBTET
Revenue A 35,806,672 1,036,645 (48,853) 36,794,464
Profit before tax B B A& A 1,435,430 9,420 — 1,444,850
Profit for the year F N A 1,007,487 8,223 — 1,015,710

The financial positions

previously reported by the Group at
31 December 2010 and 1 January 2010 have been restated to
include assets and liabilities of the Acquired Entities as set out

AEBBETEEHER -_ZT—ZFEFE+-_A=+
—BR-_ZE-ZF—A—BHPEBEMKRIE
EINUABEUNTHHRBERBEENEER

below: B1E -
The Group
(as previously Acquired The Group
reported) Entities Elimination (combined)
AEE ARE
(MBE2R) WhEER Ei] (&6
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARE®TIT ARETT
31 December 2010 —_E-EF
+=—A=+—8H
Non-current assets EREBEE 1,283,783 2,869 — 1,286,652
Current assets MENEE 8,437,080 179,761 (4,864) 8,611,977
Current liabilities mEEE 6,772,568 112,866 (4,864) 6,880,570
Non-current liabilities EmBEE 204,421 — — 204,421
Equity 7 = 2,743,874 69,764 — 2,813,638
1 January 2010 —E2—-ZF—A—H
Non-current assets FRBEE 837,364 2,970 — 840,334
Current assets mEBEE 5,378,170 240,082 — 5,618,252
Current liabilities B A E 4,280,786 201,197 — 4,481,983
Non-current liabilities EmBaE 184,112 — — 184,112
Equity T %5 1,750,636 41,855 — 1,792,491
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31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2011. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains
and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit
balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

21 REEE(E)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

IFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards
— Limited Exemption from
Comparative |FRS 7 Disclosures
for First-time Adopters

IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

IAS 32 Amendment Amendment to IAS 32 Ffinancial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues

IFRIC-Int 14 Amendments Amendments to IFRIC-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

IFRIC-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact
of IAS 24 (Revised), and amendments to IFRS 3, IAS 1 and
IAS 27, included in /mprovements to IFRSs 2010, the adoption
of the new and revised IFRSs has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont'd)

The principal effects of adopting these IFRSs are as follows:

(@) IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

IAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definitions of
related parties. The new definitions emphasise a
symmetrical view of related party relationships and
clarify the circumstances in which persons and key
management personnel affect related party relationships
of an entity. The revised standard also introduces an
exemption from the general related party disclosure
requirements for transactions with a government and
entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the same government as the
reporting entity. The accounting policy for related
parties has been revised to reflect the changes in the
definitions of related parties under the revised standard.
The adoption of the revised standard did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group. Details of the related party transactions,
including the related comparative information, are
included in note 14 to the financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (Contd)

(b)

Improvements to IFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets
out amendments to a number of IFRSs. There are
separate transitional provisions for each standard. While
the adoption of some of the amendments may result in
changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments has had a significant financial impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.
Details of the key amendments most applicable to the
Group are as follows:

o IFRS 3 Business Combinations: The amendment
clarifies that the amendments to IFRS 7, IAS 32
and IAS 39 that eliminate the exemption for
contingent consideration do not apply to
contingent consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates precede the
application of IFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendment limits the scope of
measurement choices for non-controlling interests.
Only the components of non-controlling interests
that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are measured at either fair value or at the present
ownership instruments’ proportionate share of the
acquiree’'s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by
another IFRS.

The amendment also added explicit guidance to
clarify the accounting treatment for non-replaced
and voluntarily replaced share-based payment
awards.
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31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (Contd)
(Cont’d)

(b)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: The
amendment clarifies that an analysis of each
component of other comprehensive income can
be presented either in the statement of changes
in equity or in the notes to the financial
statements. The Group elects to present the
analysis of each component of other
comprehensive income in the statement of
changes in equity.

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: The amendment clarifies that the
consequential amendments from IAS 27 (as
revised in 2008) made to IAS 21, IAS 28 and IAS
31 shall be applied prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or
earlier if 1AS 27 is applied earlier.
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31 December 2011 — T ——F+=-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

IFRS 1 Amendments

IFRS 7 Amendments

IFRS 7 Amendments

IFRS 9
IFRS10
IFRS11
IFRS 12
IFRS 13

IAS 1 Amendments

IAS 12 Amendments

IAS 19 (2011)
IAS 27 (2011)
IAS 28 (2011)

IAS 32 Amendments

IFRIC-Int 20

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of International Financial Reporting
Standards — Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters’

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets’

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities?

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial Statements*

Joint Arrangements*

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?

Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income’

Amendments to IAS 12 /Income Taxes
— Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets?

Employee Benefits*

Separate Financial Statements*

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures?

Amendments to |AS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine*
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31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Contd)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015

Further information about those changes that are expected to
significantly affect the Group is as follows:

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1
of a comprehensive project to entirely replace IAS 39 Financial
Instruments. Recognition and Measurement. This phase
focuses on the classification and measurement of financial
assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into four
categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value,
on the basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve
and simplify the approach for the classification and
measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of IAS 39.

In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS 9 to
address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in IFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of IAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from IAS 39, while changes were made
to the measurement of financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option
("FVO"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in
the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in
credit risk must be presented in other comprehensive income
("OCI"). The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair
value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. However, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts which have been designated under the FVO are
scoped out of the Additions.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Contd)

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in IAS 39 on
hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets continues
to apply. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January
2015.

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all
entities including special purpose entities or structured
entities. It includes a new definition of control which is used
to determine which entities are consolidated. The changes
introduced by IFRS 10 require management of the Group to
exercise significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled, compared with the requirements in IAS 27 and
SIC-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. IFRS 10
replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for
consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues
raised in SIC-Int 12.

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-Int
13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions
by Venturers. It describes the accounting for joint
arrangements with joint control. It addresses only two forms
of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and joint ventures,
and removes the option to account for joint ventures using
proportionate consolidation.

IFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and structured entities that are
previously included in IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements, |AS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
IAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also introduces a number
of new disclosure requirements for these entities.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Contd)

Consequential amendments were made to IAS 27 and IAS 28
as a result of the issuance of IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12.
The Group expects to adopt IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, and
the consequential amendments to IAS 27 and IAS 28 from 1
January 2013.

IFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single
source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across IFRSs. The standard does not change the
circumstances in which the Group is required to use fair
value, but provides guidance on how fair value should be
applied where its use is already required or permitted under
other IFRSs. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 13 prospectively
from 1 January 2013.

Amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or recycled)
to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, upon
derecognition or settlement) would be presented separately
from items which will never be reclassified. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013.

IAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of deferred tax
for investment property measured at fair value. The
amendments introduce a rebuttable presumption that deferred
tax on investment property measured at fair value should be
determined on the basis that its carrying amount will be
recovered through sale. Furthermore, the amendments
incorporate the requirement previously in SIC-Int 21 /ncome
Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets that
deferred tax on non-depreciable assets, measured using the
revaluation model in IAS 16, should always be measured on a
sale basis. The Group expects to adopt IAS 12 Amendments
from 1 January 2012.

IAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that range
from fundamental changes to simple clarifications and re-
wording. The revised standard introduces significant changes
in the accounting for defined benefit pension plans including
removing the choice to defer the recognition of actuarial
gains and losses. Other changes include modifications to the
timing of recognition for termination benefits, the
classification of short-term employee benefits and disclosures
of defined benefit plans. The Group expects to adopt IAS 19
(2011) from 1 January 2013.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in
which the Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates
the capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the
duration of the joint venture and the basis on which the
assets are to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits or
losses from the joint venture’s operations and any distributions
of surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in
proportion to their respective capital contributions, or in
accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@  a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly
or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b)  a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or
joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally
not less than 20% of the joint venture's registered
capital and is in a position to exercise significant
influence over the joint venture; or

(d)  an equity investment accounted for in accordance with
IAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less
than 20% of the joint venture's registered capital and
has neither joint control of, nor is in a position to
exercise significant influence over, the joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont<d)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties
having unilateral control over the economic activity of the
jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group's share of
the post-acquisition results and reserves of jointly-controlled
entities is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Where the profit sharing
ratio is different to the Group’s equity interest, the share of
post-acquisition results of the jointly-controlled entities is
determined based on the agreed profit sharing ratio.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly-controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
jointly-controlled entities, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of jointly-controlled
entities is included as part of the Group’s investments in
jointly-controlled entities.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of associates is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates and is not individually tested for
impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont<d)

Business combinations and goodwill

As explained in note 2.1 above, the acquisition of subsidiaries
under common control has been accounted for using the
merger method of accounting. The acquisition method of
accounting is used to account for the acquisition method of
subsidiaries not under common control.

Under the merger method of accounting, the net assets of
the combining entities or businesses are combined using their
existing book values from the controlling parties’ perspective.
No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of
the acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of acquirees’
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of investment at the time of common control
combination. The consolidated income statement includes the
results of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date
of the common control combination.

Business combinations not under common control

Under the acquisition method of accounting, the consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value
which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether it
measures the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont<d)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont’d)

Business combinations not under common control (Cont’d)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as
at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
which is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised
in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it will not be remeasured.
Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. In
instances where the contingent consideration does not fall
within the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in accordance with
the appropriate IFRS.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

24 TEEFHE

MEE)

EBaHREEE)
FFHAEES T RSO (F)
WEHAHIEBEET WBTEMNFE
ZHBRETBEERKREAR 2 A FERER
WERARZAFEERBRRENTE -

MBI ETER ZEMIXARELRRK
BEHHRATERR - HAAREBER/—
BEERBB AFVEZHREDRERS
FHERIFIR 2 B R BB REAM
RAalbamz2% - HEKARKESBRE
m AIESHBAENTE HREENE
SRAKR - EARREALTT S BEREE
FREIRHERZBERT  HIRBEENE
BB REEIGE -

FEEVNEZRAGE NESEREARE
EHERIFEREE RAEBELAER ZH
WETBREZAFE=FWNEN  BAM
WRAHMBEEFERAAERBEZESR -
an B B H At TR B A 48 R K 10 BT AR BB Y R
RAIBEFEZAVE RIABREEE
BRIBRRANER SHERE RS -

R0 96 TR AR - BB 1R AR ] R FHR
BERIE BHEASFERENSA &
BEMHREXBRANE R TRE(EA A8
ER - A E B AR ETRENS K
SERT-_A=+—HETHEZFER
EAR - RETRENS BXBEHM
BAZAEEBAZAWOEEZEHARK
EHEEAZHBRMGTEZ 2 ASERE
ReELrBUReELEMMARN  ME
WARBEEMEERRBEREECIREEX
EEMREMAR -



Annual Report 2011
- FER 113

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT %5 ¥ & MY &E

31 December 2011 — T ——F+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont<d)

Business combinations and goodwill (Contd)

Business combinations not under common control (Cont’d)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of
the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal
of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is
measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont'd)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

Related parties (Contd)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Annual Report 2011
—E R

115

24 FTEETHERBEE

BEAL(E)

(b)

75 & ME R

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

ZITABERE

= &
BN R
SRR

_I
5
m
_I
><F
=
3y

ZZ?%%&ﬁ%@i’ﬂi%ﬁ—%’:
FRrEeERE:

i
i

e B
Ej
ME N0
]

i
aF
w

|
o
i}
fie
SN
[ o

o B>
St

ol
i
N
==
]
el

ZERASMBRENE &
AEZRBEARAEEIENR
SEEHMCERES:

EZ?%%EE(a)IEﬁﬁEEEZA:H?
il 2% kR 2

@NEMEEZATHZE
BERTENLBZER (X
ERZEBRARIEZEIEAR

S
NS



116

2.4

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
BHEREERRAF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT %% ¥ &< M

31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont<d)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 19%
Plant and machinery 5% to 33%
Tools, furniture and fixtures 10% to 33%
Motor vehicles 9% to 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont<d)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Contd)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of the property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including the
leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale
in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on the straight
line method to write off the cost of each investment property
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rate used
for this purpose is 5%.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement
in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Patents, licences and software

Purchased patents, licences and software are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of not exceeding 10
years.

Management services arrangements

Management services arrangements are initially stated at fair
value and subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis
over the tenure of management services arrangements of 20
years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products,
commencing from the date when the products are put into
commercial production.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont<d)

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances,
trade and other receivables and available-for-sale investments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont<d)

Investments and other financial assets (Contd)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policy set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria under IAS 39 are
satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent
to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When, in
rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s
intent to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly
changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets. The reclassification from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-for-
sale financial assets or held-to-maturity investments depends
on the nature of the assets. This evaluation does not affect
any financial assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss using the fair value option at designation as these
instruments cannot be reclassified after initial recognition.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)
Investments and other financial assets (Contd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Contd)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or
loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in
the income statement in finance costs for loans and in other
expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont<d)

Investments and other financial assets (Contd)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the income statement in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, when
the cumulative gain or loss is recognised reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to in the
income statement in other expenses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the income
statement as other income in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets. Reclassification to loans and receivables is
permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of
loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted
only when the Group has the ability and intent to hold until
the maturity date of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont<d)

Investments and other financial assets (Contd)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life
of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont<d)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that
loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). If a
loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate.

24 T ES

AR E(E)

HMBEERE
REBRBERSHRILMBEE L —
HUMBEERGHRAEMBEZCEBRER
EHEERUIHA BN —AUBEE
BRELF-EXNZHEHERFETERE
BR(CHEZEEZIBEESEH) MZEE
BEHHZANZEMNBEE 2T AR
REREMEKR T EERA] SEHEET
AZESZ AV B EESHRIEE RE -
BMEZBBAIRE -G —HEKALER
iﬁﬂ?fﬂ(%’%‘?@ﬁ(ﬁiﬂi LB & T B SR

BEARIREMESHETAMMEER -
LA&E—JE@ %T)ﬁ#ﬁ?‘ﬁﬂrfﬁxfﬁ%mi
HIRATEr 2R - PR REE Z i
IRE R AR 2 AR -

REB#ERAIIRZHBEE

RIRCBERAINE W BEEMS » &
SEELSRENEENERUHEENK
BAGEERERIFERABFEE - @R
AEREFEFERERR - WAKER
ERENEELFIHEZMBEEERT
BEENIEFTBEERBRIFERE ]
ZREESRA-HAEARUGERRS
MZBMBEER XHAFGEZAMBKE
EREFERE - &M@ HBESER
EEBETHAZEEER 2EETER
AEBREFEZA -

HWEEBEEBER IR BERE WEBE
CHRZEERAELEGARRASARE (T
BRAAEEZAREEBER REZE
BB - RKBRESREZRENTH

BEZRBREBNXAIEAERABAEZ
EBRME)RER - MEXRFBHNXRGFE

RIS BE MR EAEZ BREARE R
e



Annual Report 2011
- FER 125

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT %5 ¥ & MY &E

31 December 2011 — T ——F+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont<d)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that investment previously recognised in the income statement
— is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the income statement. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortised cost and the current
fair value,
previously recognised in the income statement. Future interest
income continues to be accrued based on the reduced
carrying amount of the asset and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest
income is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment
losses on debt instruments are reversed through the income

less any impairment loss on that investment

statement if the increase in fair value of the instruments can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus,
in the case of loans and borrowings, directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing borrowings, put option liabilities and
convertible bonds.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the income statement does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria of IAS 39 are
satisfied.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont<d)

Financial liabilities (Contd)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as
a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of
the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is
recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the
instruments are first recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont<d)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in
active markets is determined by reference to quoted market
prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions
and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for
transaction costs. For financial instruments where there is no
active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. These techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is substantially the
same; and a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing
models.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have
a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont<d)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Provisions for installation services and product warranties
granted by the Group on certain products are recognised
based on sales volume and past experience of the level of
installation services rendered, repairs or returns, discounted to
their present values as appropriate.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to the income
statement over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the income statement by
way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont<d)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

(b)  from the rendering of services, when the services are
rendered;

(0 rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 34 to the financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont<d)

Share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont<d)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administrated fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Group's presentation currency. The functional currency of the
Company is the Hong Kong dollar while RMB is used as the
presentation currency of the financial statements of the
Company for the purpose of aligning with the presentation
currency of the Group. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
All differences arising on settlement or transaction of
monetary items are taken to the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. The gain or loss arising on retranslation
of a non-monetary item is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation differences on item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of the subsidiaries not established in
the PRC are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period
and their income statements are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of the subsidiaries not established in the PRC
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
these subsidiaries which arise throughout the vyear are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end the of reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs to sell is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate

in use

the present value of those cash flows.

Useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation for the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to industry cycles. The depreciation charge will
increase where the useful lives are less than the previously
estimated useful lives, or management will write off or write
down obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. At 31 December 2011, the carrying
amounts of the property, plant and equipment was
RMB990,064,000 (2010: RMB863,725,000 (as restated), 1
January 2010: RMB679,627,000 (as restated)).
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31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Estimation uncertainty (Contd)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets at 31 December 2011 was RMB382,642,000 (2010:
RMB221,311,000; 1 January 2010: RMB21,459,000).

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the
fair value declines, management makes assumptions about the
decline in value to determine whether there is an impairment
that should be recognised in the income statement. At 31
December 2011, the carrying amount of available-for-sale
assets was RMBS8,625,000 (2010: RMBS,625,000 (as restated);
1 January 2010: RMB10,295,000(as restated)).

Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss arising
from the inability of its debtors to make the required
payments. The Group makes its estimates based on the ageing
of its receivable balances, debtors’ creditworthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of its
debtors was to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss
might be higher than expected, the Group would be required
to revise the basis of making the allowance. At 31 December
2011, the carrying amounts of trade receivables and other
receivables were RMB5,572,035,000 (2010: RMB3,910,791,000
(as restated); 1 January 2010: RMB3,345,051,000 (as restated))
and RMB380,435,000 (2010: RMB299,642,000 (as restated); 1
January 2010: RMB75,600,000 (as restated)), respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Estimation uncertainty (Contd)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the write-down amount
involves management’s judgements and estimates. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the carrying
value of the inventories and the write-down charge/reversal in
the period in which such estimate has been changed. At 31
December 2011, the carrying amount of inventories was
RMB2,102,926,000 (2010: RMB1,344,080,000 (as restated); 1
January 2010: RMB509,486,000 (as restated)).

Product warranty and installation provisions

Product warranty and installation provisions are made based
on sales volume and past experience of the level of
installation services rendered, repairs or returns. The
assessment of the provision amount involves management'’s
judgements and estimates. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the carrying amount of the
product warranty and installation provisions and the provision
amount charged/reversed in the period in which such estimate
has been changed. At 31 December 2011, the product
warranty and installation provisions were RMB691,410,000
(2010: RMB443,518,000; 1 January 2010: RMB307,000,000).

3.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
three reportable segments as follows:

(@  the washing machine business segment manufactures
and sells washing machines;

(b)  the water heater business segment manufactures and
sells water heaters; and

(c) the
logistics,
services as well as sells and distributes home appliances
and other products procured from Haier Affiliates and
other external parties.

integrated channel services segment provides
after-sale and other value-added consumer

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before
tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently
with the Group's profit before tax except that interest income
and finance costs, as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing borrowings, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities, convertible bonds and other
unallocated liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFTEER (&
/
(Contd)
Washing machine Water heater Integrated channel
business business services Consolidated
PES Y BOKBEH REGEBRBES wE
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
—2--F —T5 ZB-—-F —T5 ZB-——-F —T5 ZB-—-F —ZF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT ARBTFR AR®TT AR%®TR ARBTT AR¥FTR ARBTR
(Restated) (Restated)
(£71) (£71)
Segment revenue: ZEEA:
Sales to external customers AEEFHE 4,886,760 6,676,101 548,980 1,408,276 44,464,067 28,710,087 49,899,807 36,794,464
Intersegment sales DEBHEE 7,328,110 4,842,907 3,279,323 1,717,906 723,273 553,800 11,330,706 7.114,613
Total @5t 12,214,870 11,519,008 3,828,303 3,126,182 45,187,340 29,263,887 61,230,513 43,909,077
Reconciliation: S
Elimination of intersegment 8D B
sales HE (11,330,706)  (7,114,613)
Segment revenue AEWA 49,899,807 36,794,464
Segment other income and SEEMBAR
gains g 55,706 35,867 13,582 7,874 8,891 19,364 78,179 63,105
Total segment revenue, other U A « HAb U A
income and gains et 49,977,986 36,857,569
Segment results PEEE 896,379 880,411 382,417 320,186 741,795 454,766 2,020,591 1,655,363
Reconciliation: g
Elimination of intersegment WD EHE
results ES (109,299) (147,969)
Interest income A8 WA 21,226 11,010
Corporate and other unallocated 2 &)} E 1 K 5 B2
expenses EH (61,504) (68,315)
Finance costs BEKA (22,492) (5,239)
Profit before tax B ¢ A1 2 1 1,848,522 1,444,850
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Cont’d)

4., REIWEW (=

Washing machine business Water heater business Integrated channel services Consolidated
RREER BAEER REGARBER &8
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December  1January 31 December 31 December  1January 31 December 31 December 1 January
201 2010 2010 201 2010 2010 201 2010 2010 201 2010 2010
Z%--§ -3-3F -“I-%F ce-F CR-TF CR-%F “$--f  CR-RF %-%% “$--f  CI3-%F %-%%
t2B=t+-8 +-A=t-8 -A-8 +fZA=t-B tA=t-B  -A-F +ZA=t-B t-A=t-8 -A-B +ZB=t-B fIA=t-A  -A-B
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTL ARETL ARETR  ARBTT ARETR ARMTR  ARETT ARKTL ARETR  ARETT ARETIL
(Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)  (Restated)
(&51) (&71) (&31) [£31)

Segment assets ARRE 3,739,397 3109747 2,780,780 1,034,867 953,467 557,086 5,249,673 3318340 1,086,572 10,023,937 7381554 4,424,438
Recondiliations: FE:
Elimination of intersegment receivables £/ # A BBENER (2,292,098) (1,128230)  (158,024)
Deferred tax assets ERHEEE 382,642 w3 21,459
Pledged deposits DEAER 87,402 301 86,814
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAESEER 3,959,963 2725866 1482877
Corporate and other unallocated RARERAAR

assets RE 2,132,190 695,117 601,022
Total assets LEaE 14,294,036 9898629 6,458,586
Segment liabilities AEEE 2,079,518 1447177 2,041,29 523,136 344,235 508,947 6,670,524 4,136,714 1,086,852 9213178 5928126 3,637,095
Reconciltions: HE:
Elimination of intersegment payables ¥ A BRERE (2,292,098) (11282300 (158,024)
Deferred tax liabliies ERHERR 8,826 957 9,588
Tax payable EfHA 618,148 615690 122,338
Interest-bearing borrowings FERE 25,000 5,000 84,000
Convertible bonds THRES 669,849 - -
Corporate and other unallocated RAREMAAR

liabilities B 1,710,280 1,695,148 971,098
Total liabilities BfifE 10,013,183 7,084991 4,666,095
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Cont’d)

Washing machine

4.

Water heater

REPEER(E)
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business business services Consolidated
EREER BOKBEH REGREBRBES o]
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Z®—-% —E-TF Z®8--F% _—T-TF Z=Z%-—-§F —T-TF =ZB--F C—T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTIT ARBTFR AR%TT AR%UTR ARBTIT AR¥TR AR¥TT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E£51)) (E£5)
Other segment information: H 5 &K :
Share of profits and losses of ~ FE{f £ F12 &l
jointly-controlled entities BEEEX — — — — — 5,318 — 5,318
Reversal of impairment on other % [E £ fis & Yz
receivables BRRZAE (331) — — — — — (331) —
Provision for obsolete and BRI
slow-moving inventories FEEBE 933 1,952 1,592 76 33,109 20,734 35,634 22,762
Product warranty and ERRER
installation provisions g 514,230 368,814 278,170 157,333 — — 792,400 526,147
Loss on disposal/write-off of & /H S ¥ -
items of property, plant and WEREEER
equipment, net ZEBFE 60 382 — 654 — 21 60 1,057
Depreciation and amortisation  #7 & & # 35,448 32,883 18,555 20,090 39,248 27,886 93,251 80,859
Corporate and other unallocated 2 &} E 4t
amounts AREEHE 1,948 457
95,199 81,316
Capital expenditure* BRI 24,835 75,420 29,501 11,672 258,640 154,355 312,976 241,447
Corporate and other unallocated 72 & J E At
amounts RABESHE 4,348 —
317,324 241,447
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BABYBERSYYE BMERZHE

equipment, prepaid land lease payments and intangible assets.

Geographical information

NLwBEERLBEREE -

it 35 & B

Over 90% of the Group's revenue is derived from customers
in Mainland China and over 90% of the Group’'s non-current
assets, other than financial instruments and deferred tax
assets, are situated in Mainland China.

Information about major customers

There were no sales to a single customer which individually
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

REEEBI0% ) WA TR B B KFE 2
BF MASEBEBRIONNIEREEE(CH
BREEMVBTARERERAEE)
RAPBIARE -

ERETERFEH
HE-_Z——F+-A=+—HBILEE ¥
ERE-RFPHNHEESENGAEERA
10%HA E(ZT—TF &) -
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA HMWARKZE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the WA AEER 2 &E%E BEHERZ
net invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-added tax and BEFE IREEY REBEEEREZES
after allowances for returns and trade discounts; and the THRRERNRBERBHEE -
value of services rendered during the year.
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: A Efb g A R z= ST T
Group rEHE
2011 2010
—E2——fF —T-TF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREF T
(Restated)
(E7])
Revenue WA
Sales of goods HEED 47,725,626 35,086,873
Rendering of services RERE 2,174,181 1,707,591
49,899,807 36,794,464
Other income Heb g A
Bank interest income AT A B WA 21,226 11,010
Government subsidies* BB & * 21,464 23,433
Compensation received from suppliers Bt e R E 37,423 22,151
Gross rental income in respect of buildings BFzHS WAL 2,404 3,369
Dividend income from available-for-sale AHHEREZRE
investments A 1,988 1,974
Others H A 14,900 8,726
99,405 70,663
Gains I 25
Gain on disposal of jointly-controlled HERRERERE 2
entities U 2% — 3,166
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAMHLEREZ
investments I 2= — 286
— 3,452
99,405 74,115
* Various government grants have been received from the * REEREFREHREMES - EUE

relevant authorities of the Qingdao Municipality and Wuhan
Municipality for the Group’s research and development

activities and businesses conducted in those areas. There are

no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

grants.

EETMMREMBEBERMELZZER
I & - B R B & I & M REK 2 IF

e s A FIE -
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

BR B B & A

AEB BB SN SN, (K 2)T 5

(crediting): FIE:
2011 2010
—ZE——fF T —TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
i &7 AR TR AR T
(Restated)
(E5))
Cost of inventories sold EHFERK 40,445,368 30,362,043
Cost of services provided 12 R R R 1,930,233 1,581,070
Depreciation of property, plant and mME - - BEREEBETE
equipment 15 83,789 75,464
Depreciation of investment properties &Y EFE 6 1,672 1,672
Recognition of prepaid land premiums HREMN L HES 17 4,907 3,359
Amortisation of intangible assets* mILEERE 18 4,831 821
Research and development costs MELKHAZLER 166,725 113,465
Auditors’ remuneration % EAD B & 5,850 5,850
Employee benefit expense (including EERMNAZ (B
directors’ remuneration — note 8): BEEMWe — MES) -
Wages and salaries IERES 2,167,757 1,190,564
Welfare =Rl 44,113 46,914
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFEIHR 355,343 183,809
Equity-settled share option INBRAREE 2
expense BRERX 29,953 38,351
2,597,166 1,459,638
Minimum lease payments under TH REFLEEL
operating leases in respect of land 2 &K & RIA
and buildings 116,167 82,128
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving 3B & & 517 &
inventories* B~ 35,634 22,762
Product warranty and installation EmRERLTE
provisions B 37 792,400 526,147
Loss on disposal/write-off of PEMEYE - BRE
items of property, plant and LE#HEBEEZEBRE
equipment, net** = 60 1,057
Reversal of impairment of other RO H b fE IR K 2
receivables BB 24 (331) —
Foreign exchange differences, net MEH = 63,603 54,594
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*

* %

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Contd)

The amortisation of intangible assets and provision for obsolete
and slow-moving inventories for the year are included in “Cost
of sales” on the face of the consolidated income statement.

The net loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, plant
and equipment is included in “Other expenses and losses” on
the face of the consolidated income statement.

FINANCE COSTS

6. BRBLATERI (4=
© EREEERE B R
B B A M3 2 5 AT AR AR 9 o

= HE/MHEYME BERRBEEZER
FRONGRARERIATECER RERE ]

A o

7. ®ERK

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMERADHNT :
Group AEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-ZF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR TR AREF T
(Restated)
(E51)
Interest on borrowings wholly repayable ARAFRNEHEER
within five years ZIEER B 1,068 4,556
Interest on convertible bonds A ¥ B B 5 F B
(note 30) (Fff 5£30) 21,424 683
22,492 5,239
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM=E
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the REERBEABMEZIIMERRAZS
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock FRANTEMRAD RE B RGO E
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and G BECESMES T
Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as
follows:
Group rEH
2011 2010
—E——fF —ZT—ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T
Fees e 707 780
Other emoluments: H b B2 -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EMR
in kind EWH 1,604 1,377
Performance-related bonuses R 288 270
Equity-settled share option IR EHRZ
expense R 7 2 3,993 5,440
Pension scheme contribution BREBEEIER 150 150
6,035 7,237
6,742 8,017

During the year and in the prior year, certain directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements. The fair value of these options, which has been
recognised in the income statement over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosure.

FARRUAFE REARF ZBERE
e ETEERERMASERMAZRE
ERBERE BRSABENVBERRME
34 - ZEBRBZATEDINREEHE
E-UVEREBHERSERARER  £X
EXECHMeRECERREALRFEYE
BRZEHE -
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Contd) 8. EEME (&)
(@)  Independent non-executive directors: (@ BUFPTESE:

Salaries, Equity-

allowances settled

and share
benefits in option Total
Fees kind expense remuneration

URAEH

2011 e F2R ZBRE
—E-—fF HweE RE®RAZ * & 45
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®Tx ARBTR

Mr. Wu Yinong RIMBRKAE 229 20 32 281
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BEELEE 249 25 36 310
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng gl 229 26 32 287
707 71 100 878

2010 Fees
—T—TF e
RMB’000

AR T T

Mr. Wu Yinong RIMEEE 256
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BEERE 262
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng =13 n 262

780
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31 December 2011 =T ——F+=-A=+—H
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd) 8. EEME(E)
Executive directors and non-executive directors by BITESRIPTES
Salaries,
allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits - related share option scheme Total
in kind bonus expense contributions remuneration
H& 2R URAZEZ BihE
B & RARA BREXE B REEN AL
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFTT AR®TFTT AREFTT AREFTT AREFTT
20M —2-—-F
Executive directors: WiTEE:
Ms. Yang Mian Mian BEELt 110 — — 25 135
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie AERLE 560 132 1,331 25 2,048
Mr. Li Hua Gang FER KL 360 81 388 25 854
Mr. Sun Jing Yan* BRERE 340 75 388 25 828
1,370 288 2,107 100 3,865
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Wu Ke Song RElis 67 — 1,786 25 1,878
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 2/IL%EE 67 - - 25 92
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng BETLL 29 — — — 29
Mr. Gui Zhaoyu* HERBFELE — — — — —
163 — 1,786 50 1,999
1,533 288 3,893 150 5,864
2010 —T-ZF
Executive directors: WITEE:
Ms. Yang Mian Mian HEELt 90 — — 25 115
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BEREE 500 124 1,860 25 2,509
Mr. Li Hua Gang FERLE 320 78 542 25 965
Mr. Sun Jing Yan BRe%E 305 68 542 25 940
Mr. Cui Shao Hua** BB 42 — — — 42
1,257 270 2,944 100 4,571
Non-executive directors: FHMITES:
Mr. Wu Ke Song RumEE 60 — 2,496 25 2,581
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 28 %E 60 — — 25 85
120 — 2,496 50 2,666
1,377 270 5,440 150 7,237
* Mr. Sun Jing Yan resigned as an executive director of * BRRERER_F——FN\A-+
the Company on 24 August 2011. MEBEANRRTES -
o Mr. Cui Shao Hua resigned as an executive director of > EBLEBERERZF-FTFRATA
the Company on 19 April 2010. BB EARFARITESF -
# Mr. Gui Zhaoyu is the alternate director to Ms. Janine ! ERFLERRETLIHETE

Junyuan Feng.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

%o

FAMBEETINELARNENRE
a3 B 2 22 B -
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. EEEEFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FANhEmaTWEERE=2(ZE—F
three (2010: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are FUREFT ARHES2MHeFBHER
set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the EXWHES - FABTRAB(ZE—ZF:
remaining two (2010: one) non-director, highest paid —RZ)EERRTNEE ZMEFBOT
employees for the year are as follows:
Group rEE
2011 2010
—F——-F —E-FF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE T AR F T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & 2B R EYF 2% 1,102 639
Performance-related bonuses RIBIEA — —
Equity-settled share option expense ARG E 2 AR 941 330
Pension scheme contributions RIR & 5T 814 3K 20 1
2,063 980

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

HEERSFHEEMSET IR EHE
NZ ANBT :

Number of employees

EEAHE
2011 2010
—E2——-F —E-TF
Nil to RMB1,000,000 Tz A R¥1,000,0007T 1 1
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 A R #1,000,0017t = A R#1,500,0007C 1 —
2 1

During the year and in the prior year, share options were
granted to non-director, highest paid employees in respect of
their services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 34 to the financial
statements. The fair value of these options, which has been
recognised in the income statement over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director, highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

FARRUAFE  FEFEHFHMESR
BREFAAEEREHRZRBEXBRE
ERAFBENMBBRRMEMZHER -
ZEBRBZATEDIRBRLAREE
TERGBMAERSRER LXFE=S
ERFMEEZHERBECEEZHAR
FEMBRRZHE -
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INCOME TAX 10.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2010: Nil).

Tax on profits assessable in Mainland China has been
calculated at the applicable PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")
rates. Certain subsidiaries of the Group are entitled to
preferential tax treatments including a reduction in CIT and a
full exemption from CIT for two years starting from their first
profit-making year followed by a 50% reduction in CIT for
the next consecutive three years. Certain subsidiaries of the
Group are entitled to preferential tax treatments of reduction
in CIT rate to 15%.

Fr & %

Py 7B A T R S BB 2 R B
WA R E RS REE(CT
—TF: m)-

R B AREL R E N B 2 HIE - T)
BREBTPECEMGRICEMRFHRD
MEFE - AEEBETHERRAERESR
MEEEGE BREMNRECEMESR
PA Ko B fE & R F 2 AR R (E S 2 2 B
REEMBH UTREREBE=-FEHR
S0%EEMEN - AKEETHELARE
REENHABEFE REBNEEME
T H15% BB

Group rEH
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FTF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE T ARBT T
(Restated)
(&)
Current — Mainland China BUHE — AP OK R 548,124 618,317

Underprovision/(overprovision) in BEFERETR

prior years (FBEEEE) (916) 10,675
Deferred (note 32) i AE (B 5£32) (161,331) (199,852)
Total tax charge for the year FAMIBEXHERE 385,877 429,140
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10. INCOME TAX (Cont'd) 10. FTEBL(E)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before BARRNE R EKE S M B AR T E A #E
tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the BZEAEMEAERBANGER 2HEBEL L
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to HEERPEAE IR BEIL 2B U
the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation REABEANEERR)EERME A
of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the BT
effective tax rates, are as follows:
Group - 2011 KEFH - —FB——F
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
B8 B AR Fo
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARBTR % AR¥TR % AR¥TR %
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBAEF,(BE) (74,801) 1,923,323 1,848,522
Tax at the statutory REEMEFE
tax rate 2 (12,342) 16.5 480,831 25.0 468,489 25.3
Adjustments in respect of AA 8z
current tax of previous B AR 18
periods e 2 A& - — (916) = (916) =
Income not subject to tax FERBUA (779) 1.0 (1,573) (0.1) (2,352) (0.1)
Expenses not deductible TRIMBRX
for tax 13,121 (17.5) 76,496 4.0 89,617 4.8
Tax losses not recognised AERBEEE — — 12,584 0.6 12,584 0.7
Tax exemption MERE = = (181,545) (9.4) (181,545) (9.8)
Tax charge at the Group's BRAKREZEREI®
effective rate FHE 2 BIE — — 385,877 20.1 385,877 20.9
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31 December 2011 —E——4+_-HF=+—H
INCOME TAX (Cont'd) 10. FiIfEH (&)
Group — 2010 REE — = —FF
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
S SlE N Fes
RMB’'000 % RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARBFL % AREBFT % ARBTT %
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (E51)
Profit/(loss) before tax BB ATEF (EE) (68,543) 1,513,393 1,444,850
Tax at the statutory BEEMERTE
tax rate ZHIE (11,310 16.5 378,348 25.0 367,038 25.4
Adjustments in respect of current [ & 8,2 B 8 5 18
tax of previous periods Rz BE — — 3,249 0.2 3,249 0.2
Profits and losses attributable to £ [Fl % #| & &
jointly-controlled entities FE(h B — — (2,488) (0.1) (2,488) 0.1)
Income not subject to tax B TR ON (75) 0.1 (530) — (605) —
Expenses not deductible for tax 7~ A ¥ %% 5 52 11,385 (16.6) 162,593 10.7 173,978 12.0
Tax losses not recognised AERHEEE — — 1,220 0.1 1,220 0.1
Tax exemption BE#E — — (113,252) (7.5) (113,252) (7.9)
Tax charge at the Group's BRAKEEZERBX
effective rate FERER L — - 429,140 28.4 429,140 29.7
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF M. ARTARRESER

THE COMPANY

Of the Group's profit attributable to owners of the Company
of RMB1,406,016,000 (2010: RMB974,247,000 (as restated)), a
loss of RMB74,424,000 (2010: RMB65,318,000) has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note
35(b)).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company
during the year (2010: Nil).

EARAIBRREEAEBRENARE
1,406,016,0007L(=— & — T F . A R &
974,247000(& EF))) AR - BHE AR
74,424,0007T (ZZ —ZF : AR¥65,318,000
TMEBEARARB 2 M ®ENE R
35(b)) ©

12. RE

FAARRB L ERNHEIRERMBR(Z
—EF |
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EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 2,300,165,017 (2010:
2,058,303,521) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, adjusted to reflect the interest
on the convertible bonds, where applicable (see below). The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
into ordinary shares, and the contingently issuable shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are
based on:

13.

RRAEBERRRELGEREA
A

EREABF Z2EIBREFARNRAFE
BMRRREGENRFADETERREZ
hn4E ¥ 19 £2,300,165,017f% (= & — T 4
2,058,303,5210% ) 5+ & -

BRBERNZEEDNREFALARAL
BEBEREEEMNGAE CHBUARRA
BREFOMNB(WMER RTX) - 7&
PRz E B MEFHEDANGES R
ERBNEMAZEADETERRHKE
NEBRBGBIETELRBAAEECEREE
BRAEBERMEERITZE BB INET
BE - AREA T ETHRSD -

2]}

BEAREFERFIZATEHG;H

2011 2010
—E——fF —E -4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBFT
(Restated)
(7))
Earnings B F
Profit attributable to ordinary equity ARFTEEREAZN Z AR
holders of the Company used in the A3 i % % BB 1 s A
basic earnings per share calculation 1,406,016 974,247
Interest on convertible bonds MR ESEFE 21,424 683
1,427,440* 974,930
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (Contd)
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RRAREBRBRRELER
BF (&)

Number of shares

g 4=
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
Shares a4
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EZRER
shares in issue during the year used B zFERNBET
in the basic earnings per share I 5B A hn
calculation 15 & 2,300,165,017 2,058,303,521

Effect of dilution — weighted average

BEYE — BBEBINE

number of ordinary shares: SRSk &
Warrants R E 165,253,988 250,023,436
Share options B 60,489,188 60,662,743
Contingently issuable shares* A T EITRRG 10,056,372 —
Convertible bonds A AR 55 35,616,438 3,207,210
271,415,986 313,893,389
Total BEr 2,571,581,003* 2,372,196,910

As the diluted earnings per share amount is increased when
taking convertible bonds into account, the convertible bonds
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share for
the year and were ignored in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share for the year. Therefore, diluted earnings per
share amount for the year is based on the profit for the year
of RMB1,406,016,000, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 2,535,964,565 in issue during the year.

The contingently issuable shares represented the consideration
shares issued to certain Haier franchise store owners
subsequent to the end of the reporting period (note 42). These
Haier franchise store owners entered into management services
agreements with the Group and achieved the prescribed
performance targets during the vyear. Further details of the
management services agreements are included in note 18 to
the financial statements.

HARFERTBRBRESR  SRESRS
BAREN  JRRESFVAFETRE
RENGFERBEEYE WERFEARE
EERBSAFNGTTE - At - KF
EERBERANSEDNREAFERET
A R ¥#1,406,016,0007T WA & F A 2 3 17 0
15 3% 3 A% B H 2,535,964,5655 & -

KA TFETRNDERBREHEERNE TE
MMBEEBEAZTHORERSG (M
) ZEBBMBEHRBEARLERBG
VERRBEHE  YERFERNEBRIETE
REEZE -EERBHE2E—PFBHER
B IS SRR BT &E18 o
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a

A\

14. BEALRS

In addition to the related party transactions detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
the following material transactions with Haier Affiliates

during the year:

(

a

)

B b %5 B 75 SR H Al BB 0 S a2 RS
AERSZHN ARG BERF R LGB
BALBETATERRZS:

2011 2010
=E——F —E—EF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥B T ARBFT
(Restated)
(E5))

Export sale of washing machines and O SEE R R &
water heaters K28 1,453,159 1,080,933
Domestic sale of products M iH & E 142,239 28,407
Purchase of finished goods B K& 27,810,983 20,719,155
Purchase of raw materials KB RE 10,709,295 9,353,256
Printing and packaging fee expenses R RBEEBESH 29,927 29,093
Mould charges REETH 135,403 233,346
Utility service fee expenses NAREE L H 80,082 89,168
Promotion fee expenses EEBELT 185,969 152,470
Other service fee expenses Hi R BZE 181,614 204,733
Interest expenses FExZH 1,068 4,556
Interest income B A 13,383 9,596
Other financial service fees EMmemREE 7,639 8,593
Trademark licence fee expenses? BRI - &gk — —
Logistic services income 7 AR 7% 42 A 1,728,842 1,578,260
After-sale service income EERBUWA 184,125 —
Premise lease income MEHERA 2,016 —
Premise lease expenses WEME T 2,043 1,511
Purchase of equipment HERE 1,854 896
# The trademark licence fee expenses were charged at a # FR HAREREILDRKER

nominal consideration of RMB1 during the year.

The above transactions were conducted in accordance with the
terms and conditions mutually agreed by both parties.

REAREITTHRER -

A ERSZTIREETH 77 BB TE 2 &
AR AT ©
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont<d)

(b)

Other transaction with related parties:

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

On 29 December 2010 and 27 April 2011,
Chongging New Goodaymart entered into sale
and purchase agreements with Henan Goodaymart
pursuant to which Chongqing New Goodaymart
agreed to acquire and Henan Goodaymart agreed
to sell 51% interest in Yantai Goodaymart and
Hefei Goodaymart at the considerations of
RMB18,800,000 and RMB5,000,000, which were
determined with reference to the net asset value
and paid-in capital amount, respectively. Further
details of these transactions are included in note
1 to the financial statements.

On 24 June 2011, Qingdao NG entered into an
equity transfer agreement with Haier Corp
pursuant to which Qingdao NG agreed to acquire
and Haier Corp agreed to sell 100% interest in
Qingdao Service at the consideration of
RMB240,000,000, which was determined with
reference to the net asset value and profit
amount of Qingdao Service. Further details of this
transaction are included in note 1 to the financial
statements.

On 27 June 2011, Qingdao NG entered into
structure contracts to obtain effective control over
the operations of E-commerce, which was owned
by Haier Corp; and accordingly, Qingdao NG
provided an interest-free loan of RMB30,000,000
to Haier Corp. Further details of this transaction
are included in note 1 to the financial statements.

14. BE

(b)

»
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T -—FFR
TXRB (=)
HEEANLZAEMRZS:

(i)

(iii)

R-E—ZF+_A-+hBER
—ET——FmWA-t++tH &
ExABIERENEARIEEZ
EEmE Bt EEFHEA
JIE 7 = U & moa 53 A B IE 5 B
AErEREaRABAIEREE
HHIE#51% % 5= - K E D 5
A A R #18,800,0000T & A R
#5,000,0007T * &% KAE T5 7 5
2BEAHBIERAEBEBIE
CEEFEREHELREE -
RERHGZE—SFRBERY
W EMEET »

R-E—-——FXA-+t0AB"
EEFMARIEREMEEQA
ISR - Bt B
EMBERBERTKREMS®BE
BARRAEHETSERBE D

100% = REAARE
240,000,0007T * ZRE LR

BEERBZEEFEIENE
BE ZBERZHZE-HFHE
NP ERRME -

R—_ZE——F<A=-++t8"
SEFHBIBETI L EBAL
LIEHEFTEE(EHERE
ERARER)NEENERIE
Fit - SEHBBIEE A E®R
EFEARRE—"EBEARYK
30,000,000t 2 EE E > %8
RHZE— S BN ER
M EET o
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 14. BEALXR B (&)
(0  Compensation of key management personnel of the © AEBEFEBEEBABZHH:
Group:
2011 2010
—F——F —EFF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBFT
Short term employee benefits EEEBREF 2,599 2,427
Post-employment benefits BB 1218 A 150 150
Equity-settled share option expense IRAEE BRESZH 3,993 5,440
Total compensation paid to key ENEZERAE ZH M
management personnel B 6,742 8,017
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EExMe s EMaBa RN B RE

note 8 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of item (a),
other than those attributable to Yantai Goodaymart,
Hefei Goodaymart, Qingdao Service and E-commerce
incurred prior to the completion of the Acquisition
Transactions, also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of item (b) also
constitute connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

58 ©

EBEF@QEZHEALRZ(BER
TRWER S HmESBBRIE - AR
HEIE - E&RBREFTABAMELE
WRSGINMERBEFERS (TE
B EMRAE4AE) -

ERFOBEZBEALRSTBEK
BRXH(EER LTHRAFEI4AE)
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % - BERRHE
Group rE
Tools,
Plant and furniture Motor Construction
Buildings machinery and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
IR KA
BF HBERBSE REE RE ERIR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTRT AR®TRT ARETZT AR®TT AR¥TR
31 December 2011 —Z2--%+=ZA=+-8
At 1 January 2011 R-Z——%—-A—H
(as restated): (&)
Cost [N 614,808 729,319 24,781 77,068 168,518 1,614,494
Accumulated depreciation L E (216,631) (464,468) (16,826) (52,844) — (750,769)
Net carrying amount BREFEE 398,177 264,851 7,955 24,224 168,518 863,725
Cost at 1 January 2011, net of accumulated R-T——F—A—BZKE -
depreciation (as restated) EMk 25 E (K E5) 398,177 264,851 7,955 24,224 168,518 863,725
Additions NE = 9,482 4,924 14,687 184,552 213,645
Disposals/write-off B8 — (84) (2) (154) (3,277) (3,517)
Depreciation provided during the year FRNMERE (28,138) (44,937) (3,476) (7,238) — (83,789)
Transfers HE 7,189 31,840 — — (39,029) —
Cost at 31 December 2011, net of accumulated R=ZFT——F+=A=+—H
depreciation ZRA - BMBRRATE 377,228 261,152 9,401 31,519 310,764 990,064
At 31 December 2011: RZZ——F+ZA=+—H:
Cost KA 621,997 767,224 29,623 83,604 310,764 1,813,212
Accumulated depreciation BEtE (244,769) (506,072) (20,222) (52,085) — (823,148)
Net carrying amount REEE 377,228 261,152 9,401 31,519 310,764 990,064
31 December 2010 —E2-F2F+=-A=+-H
(as restated) (RE)
At 1 January 2010: R-ZZE-TF—-F—A:
Cost A 551,231 721,815 24,840 67,886 24,525 1,390,297
Accumulated depreciation Rt E (186,645) (454,802) (16,366) (52,857) - (710,670)
Net carrying amount FREFE 364,586 267,013 8,474 15,029 24,525 679,627
Cost at 1 January 2010, net of RZT-TF—A—BZKE
accumulated depreciation BMBRESNE 364,586 267,013 8,474 15,029 24,525 679,627
Additions ANE 61,512 4,238 1,772 13,179 185,279 265,980
Disposals/write-off HE 8 (462) (1,276) (44) (120 (4,516) (6,418)
Depreciation provided during the year FNMERE (30,115) (39,238) (2,247) (3,864) — (75,464)
Transfers B 2,656 34,114 — — (36,770) —
Cost at 31 December 2010, net of accumulated R=FT—TF+-A=+—H
depreciation A BMKRRRTE 398,177 264,851 7,955 24,224 168,518 863,725
At 31 December 2010: RZE—ZFE+A=+—8:
Cost [N 614,808 729,319 24,781 77,068 168,518 1,614,494
Accumulated depreciation 2EME (216,631) (464,468) (16,826) (52,844) — (750,769)
Net carrying amount FREEE 398,177 264,851 7,955 24,224 168,518 863,725
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont’d)

All buildings of the Group are erected on land in Mainland
China and held under medium term leases.

As at 31 December 2011, certain of the Group’'s buildings
with an aggregate net book value of approximately
RMB310,376,000 (2010: RMB329,824,000; 1 January 2010:
RMB315,809,000) did not have building ownership certificates
registered under the names of the respective subsidiaries of
the Company.

With respect to the above properties and the Group's
investment properties, in prior years, Haier Corp issued three
undertakings to the Company, which agreed to provide other
suitable properties to the Group to ensure the operations of
certain subsidiaries of the Company and/or indemnify the
Group against any losses arising from the above defective
property title issue. The aggregate net book value of the
Group’s buildings and investment properties indemnified by
Haier Corp as at 31 December 2011 amounted to
approximately RMB213,603,000 (2010: RMB229,160,000; 1
January 2010: RMB210,039,000).

In the opinion of the directors, the Group is entitled to
lawfully and validly occupy and use the buildings and
investment properties for its daily operations, notwithstanding
the fact that the related building ownership certificates have
not yet been obtained.

15.

Mk -BMERREGE)

AEE2EEFHRPHBENFTE - AL
R EARE -

R_E——F+-_A=+—H AEHHLFE
mEELHAEAR310,376,000 L (ZE—F
F: AR¥329,824,0000: — T —ZF— A
—H: ARK#315809,000) 2 & TEFI
BUARRENBRAIZEEERL ZRBH
EEFE -

LMY ERAEEREMEMS - KRB
AFE SREERAMARAIEL =8
A SREEARREMAEEIREHE
tEEYE  UWERARAAE THERR
AEEEBR/ABAEAEERA LB R
MYEXRMBEELEZ2AMBR RZF
——F+_A=+—H" SHEEBEXFHEE
REBZEFREEVELEEFENAR
AR #213,603,000L(ZE—FF : ARH
229,160,000t —E—ZTF—H—H: AR
#210,039,0007T) °

E=ZRR BEDARDGEHFMERR
EAREBEEEERA R R RERE
FREEMENETHELE -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REW X
Group rEEHE
2011 2010
=F——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B TR AREF T
Cost at 1 January, R—A—BZRKA
net of accumulated depreciation Bk EFTITE 20,800 22,472
Depreciation provided during the year FRITERE (1,672) (1,672)
Cost at 31 December, RTZA=+—B2AE "
net of accumulated depreciation EHBRATHTE 19,128 20,800
At 31 December: R+—_BA=+—8:
Cost BN 28,783 28,783
Accumulated depreciation E i (9,655) (7,983)
Net carrying amount REFE 19,128 20,800

All investment properties of the Group are erected on land in
Mainland China held under medium term leases.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties was approximately RMB25,153,000 as at
31 December 2011 (2010: RMB28,219,000; 1 January 2010:
RMB30,901,000). Property rentals from investment properties
for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to
approximately RMB2,404,000 (2010: RMB3,291,000).

As at 31 December 2011, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with an aggregate net book value of approximately
RMB15,914,000 (2010: RMB17,106,000; 1 January 2010:
RMB18,298,000) did not have building ownership certificates
registered under the names of the respective subsidiaries of
the Company. The Group obtained an undertaking from Haier
Corp in relation to this defective property title issue, details
of which are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

AEBEZAREVEIRTRBOFE
BRRPEKRE -

EERANR_ZE——F+ZA=+—H K
SEEEMEZAFENAEBARE
25,153,0000 (= & — T F: A R ¥
28,219,000t —E —EF—A—H: AR
#30,901,000T) e HE_T ——F + = A
S+ —HIEFE BREMEZDERSH
BAREE2,404000 (ZE—FF AR
3,291,0007T) ©

R-ZTE——F+-_A=+—H AEBHEE
mFEHARET5914,0000 (ZE—ZF -
AR¥17106,000T: —E—ZTE—H—H:
A R#18,298,000L) v/ TR E W £ W &
UWARREZHBEHNBRARAZEEERZE
WMEESZ AESECEGSEREERAFTE
BEBRBRYEEEMB 2 &#H  BHEFTE
B B 7 R T RE1S o
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31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS EALHEER

Group AEH
2011 2010
=F——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARBTF T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 175,714 81,406
Additions NE 93,394 97,667
Recognised during the year FAER (4,907) (3,359)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+=ZR= ‘l’ Az REEAE 264,201 175,714

Current portion included in prepayments, FTATENRIE - HE K EMJE

deposits and other receivables AR R Zum@ﬁ Eila) (4,824) (4,485)
Non-current portion EREE D 259,377 171,229

All prepaid land premiums represent payments for leasehold
land in Mainland China held under medium term leases.

As at 31 December 2011, certain parcels of the Group's
leasehold land with an aggregate unamortised prepaid land
premium amount of approximately RMB104,777,000 (2010:
RMB66,916,000; 1 January 2010: RMB19,638,000) did not
have land use right certificates registered under the names of
the respective subsidiaries of the Company, all of which were
indemnified by Haier Corp as at 31 December 2011. Details of
the undertakings granted by Haier Corp to the Company in
relation to this title issue are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

FEBRNLEERBEURPEAREAY
BRBMENKEZHE LR -

R-TB——F+-F=+—H AEEX#H
HHEMNM LT EHBS2RBORARYE
104,777,0000(= & — & F: A R &
66,916,000 — T —ZEF—A—H: AR
#19,638,0007T) 2 % T 18 70 & + #h I & LA
AARSHBEWNBRARIZREERZ Lt
FREE BEEBAGER_TE——F
FTZA=FT—HBEL2HEEE - BR
SEARMEEAERBEMRARFME
R 2 ST B R B 1 R M 5E15 ©
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Eﬁ 17 + J At
31 December 2011 —E——4+_-HF=+—H
>
18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE
Group rE
Management
Patents and services
Software licences arrangements Total
H5i R B R
B SETHE =H st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBFT ARBTE ARBTFT AR®TT
(note)
(B %)
31 December 2011 —E——-5+=A8
=+-—AH
At 1 January 2011 (as restated): R-E——F—HF—H
(&) :
Cost B R 4,679 2,429 — 7,108
Accumulated amortisation B £ (4,063) (2,083) — (6,146)
Net carrying amount BR ¥ B 616 346 — 962
Cost at 1 January 2011, net of accumulated A= ——F—H—H
amortisation (as restated) A BBk RE
BiH(gES) 616 346 — 962
Additions during the year FARE 13,680 — 70,000 83,680
Amortisation provided during the year FR B (2,735) (346) (1,750) (4,831)
Cost at 31 December 2011, net of RZZT——F+=A8
accumulated amortisation Z—t—BZRAE:
B BR R 5t 8 11,561 — 68,250 79,811
At 31 December 2011: RZZE——%+=-H
=+—A:
Cost X AR 18,359 2,429 70,000 90,788
Accumulated amortisation E (6,798) (2,429) (1,750) (10,977)
Net carrying amount R ¥ B 11,561 — 68,250 79,811
31 December 2010 (as restated) —E-FF+=AH
=+—B(KE)
At 1 January 2010 : R-ZZ—ZFF—-HF—1:
Cost B 7R 4,679 2,429 — 7,108
Accumulated amortisation BT (3,590) (1,735) — (5,325)
Net carrying amount R FE 1,089 694 — 1,783
Cost at 1 January 2010, net of RZE-—ZEF—-H—H
accumulated amortisation 2R BBk RS
i 1,089 694 — 1,783
Amortisation provided during the year FARNEEEE (473) (348) — (821)
Cost at 31 December 2010, net of RZZE—ZFF+=A
accumulated amortisation =t+—HZKAx
EEEE . 3 616 346 — 962
At 31 December 2010: WZZE-—ZF+-A
=+—8:
Cost B 7R 4,679 2,429 — 7,108
Accumulated amortisation RET#H (4,063) (2,083) — (6,146)
Net carrying amount R ¥ E 616 346 — 962
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31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Contd) 18. BEEE (&
Company b N
Management
services
arrangements
EEREZH
RMB’000
AR® TR
(note)
(B &E)
31 December 2011 —E——F+=ZH=+—H
At 1 January 2011: R—E——F—H—H:
Cost BN —
Accumulated amortisation I i) —
Net carrying amount BREFE —
Cost at 1 January 2011, net RZE——F—A—HB2ZKA -
of accumulated amortisation Bk Rt EH =
Additions during the year FARE 70,000
Amortisation provided during the year FRNEHBHE (1.750)
Cost at 31 December 2011, RZE——F+A=+—H2ZKAE"
net of accumulated amortisation B0k Rt # 68,250
At 31 December 2011: R-E——F+-A=+—H8:
Cost B AR 70,000
Accumulated amortisation RET# (1,750)
Net carrying amount BREFE 68,250
Note: The balance related to the fair values of the management M BAKERFARBOERRBHIEOR

services agreements acquired by the Group during the year
amounting to RMB70,000,000, which are amortised over the
tenure of the management services agreements. According to
the management services agreements, the Group is entitled to
receive management fees broadly equal to 2% of the annual
purchasing orders (in monetary value) for 2011 to 2018 and 1%
for 2019 to 2030 from certain Haier franchise stores.

F{E AR M 4 #%iE A R%70,000,0007T -
BHEEBRTREERBEHEFHARENS -
BEEERBHE AEBERKNER
B HABEBRERETEREMBIENTF
ERETE(EHBEBR 2% (E=F——
FEZET-N\F)RI% G ZTE-NFEZ
T=FF)o
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31 December 2011 — T ——F+=-A=+—H
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. AMBARIZIRE
Company NN
2011 2010
—EB-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®E T AREF T
Unlisted investments, at cost JEETRE - A 1,858,599 1,685,012
Impairment (note) e (B (B ) = (2,003)
1,858,599 1,683,009

Note: The impairment was written off due to the disposal of the

relevant unlisted investments during the year.

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in the
Company’s non-current assets and non-current liabilities of
RMB145,318,000 (2010: RMB216,939,000) and RMB80,698,000
(2010: RMB74,341,000), respectively, are unsecured, interest-
free and are not repayable with one year.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

M BN FALERBIFELTERE  BHDME

HERE -

FAARRBAERBEERERDEEZRE

U X FE T B B R A
145,318,000t (= &

RED BB A R
~EEARK

216,939,0007T) & A R %80,698,0007T (=
T T ARMT4,341,0007T) B EEFT -
CEMR—FREBEER -

TEMBRARZERWMT :

Place of Nominal value of issued Percentage of equity
registration and ordinary/registered directly attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
ERTZER AAREEEMN
£ ERDS S-S HMEREE REBSL FTEER
Direct Indirect
BHiE S
Qingdao Haier Washing PRC/ RMB238,610,000 — 93.44 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd.* Mainland China of washing machines
FEEMERKBRAR BB A BE A R #238,610,0007T EERBEERRE
Foshan Shunde Haier Electric PRC/ RMB48,800,000 — 60 Manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd.* Mainland China of washing machines
BILTIEEERERAR HE B KR A R #48,800,0007T EEREERRE
NCIR
Hefei Haier Washing PRC/ RMB92,000,000 — 98.69 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd.* Mainland China of washing machines
SIEEBEAERKARDR BB K RE A R #92,000,0007T HEEREERRE
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BEEREEARIE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 15 & MY A

31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont’d)

19. RMBRARAZRE(E)

TEMBRARZEMNOT: (&)

Place of Nominal value of issued Percentage of equity
registration and ordinary/registered directly attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
ERTEZER AAREEEMN
8 o R 3 it B HEMEXREE REBDL FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE S
Qingdao Jiaonan Haier Washing PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 94.49 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd.** Mainland China of washing machines
EEREEREREAR R B K B A K #10,000,0007T HEEREHERRE
/L\\Ej * %
Chongging Haier Washing PRC/ RMB25,000,000 25 74.02 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd.* Mainland China of washing machines
EESBMARKERAR B E K BE A R #25,000,0007T EEREERRE
Foshan Shunde Haier Intelligent PRC/ RMB20,000,000 25 74.02 Manufacture and sale

Electronic Co., Ltd.*

Mainland China

of accessories for
electric appliances

BILTIEEEREEET PR B K RE A R #20,000,0007T FERIHESHERLMT
BRAR*

Qingdao New Goodaymart PRC/ UsD24,000,000 — 100 Provision of logistics
Logistics Service Co., Ltd.*** Mainland China service

SEFHBIEMREREER PR K RE 24,000,000 7T REY RS
/D\ET***

Qingdao Goodaymart Lejia PRC/ RMB5,000,000 — 100 Sale of home electric
Trading Co., Ltd. (Previously ~Mainland China appliances
known as Qingdao Haier
Electronics Sales Co., Ltd.)**

SEHAIELRESERAE FEHHEKE A R #55,000,0007C HEER
(MEEE EMERMKESR
RAR]) **

Qingdao Haier Drum Washing PRC/ UsD12,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd.*** Mainland China of washing machines

FEEMAFMEXREAR BB K R 12,000,000 JT HERIHE XK
Q}Ej***

Chongging Haier Drum Washing PRC/ RMB25,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd.** Mainland China of washing machine

EEFRREERE BB K BE A R #25,000,0007T HEREE SRR
BRAF**

Qingdao Economy and PRC/ RMB120,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale

Technology Development
Zone Haier Water Heater

Co., Ltd.*x**

EEEBRITREEER

HKBRBR DR x>

Mainland China

FE B KB

A FE#120,000,0007C

of water heaters

EEREEHKESE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont’d)

Annual Report 2011

169

—E-—FH

19. RMBRARAZRE(E)

TEMBRARZERNT : (#&)

Place of Nominal value of issued Percentage of equity
registration and ordinary/registered directly attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
BRITEER AR EEE
£ 1 R EE it B H2MEXREE REBDL FTEER
Direct Indirect
B B
Wuhan Haier Water Heater PRC/ RMB50,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd.*** Mainland China of water heaters
REGHRKEFBERRQR***  REREKRE A R #50,000,0007T A E RAHE RUKER
Chongging Haier Water Heater PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China of water heaters
EEEMBKBERAR > HERBEAE A K #10,000,0007C A E RO HOK SR
Chongging New Goodaymart PRC/ RMB5,000,000 — 100 Sale of home
Electronics Sales Co., Ltd.* Mainland China appliances and other
products
EEFABIEREBHERR HE B KR A R #5,000,0007T HERBEREMER
NG
Haier Electronics Sales (Hefei) PRC/ RMB5,000,000 — 100 Sale of washing
Co., Ltd.* Mainland China machines and water
heaters
BREBHEHEE(RIE)AR BB A B A R #5,000,0007T 8BS R I 2K R
NG
Qingdao Haier Logistics PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 100 Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
SEEMYRAR AT > R B K R A R #10,000,0007T =AY R
Beijing Haier Logistics PRC/ RMB1,000,000 — 100 Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
IEREBBYRER AR R B K R A R #1,000,0007T Y R
Qingdao Haier Goodaymart PRC/ RMB1,000,000 — 100 Provision of logistics
Logistics Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
SEEBAAIBYMRBER HE B KR A R #1,000,0007T =AY R 15
NI
Hefei Goodaymart Logistics PRC/ RMB500,000 — 100 Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
SEBHIERFERAR > PR B K BE AR #500,00070 =Y IR %
Chongging Hairi Logistics PRC/ RMB500,000 — 100 Provision of logistics

Co., Ltd.**
ERBRMARARDF

Mainland China
PR B K RE

A R #500,0007T

service

YR RS
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31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont’d)

19. RMBRARAZRE(E)

TEMBRARZEHMNOT : (&)

Place of Nominal value of issued Percentage of equity
registration and ordinary/registered directly attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
ERTEER AAREEEL
£1B o R B it B HEMEXREE REBS L FTEEK
Direct Indirect
B B
Qingdao Goodaymart PRC/ RMB20,000,000 — 100 Provision of after-sale
Electronics Service Mainland China service
Company Limited**
SESHAIEEERS AR R B K B A K #20,000,0007T R E %R
N
Goodaymart (Shanghai) PRC/ uUsD40,300,000 100 — Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd.*** Mainland China
HEIE(EB)RERR BB B 40,300,000 7T BEER
/D\ET * %%
Shandong Goodaymart Electric  PRC/ RMB20,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
IWRARIEEE AR AT > PR B K RE A K #20,000,0007T HERE
Chengdu Haixin Goodaymart PRC/ RMB9,800,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd ** Mainland China appliances
KEEFERIEERARA R B K B A R #9,800,0007T HERE
* %
Yantai Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB30,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
EERRAIEERER DA * FE B KR A R #30,000,0007T HERE
Hefei Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB20,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
AIEBRRIEESR AR AR FE B KR A R #20,000,0007T HERE
Hunan Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
MEARIEERAGR QA ** R B K B A R #10,000,0007T HERE
Xuchang Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB30,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
HEBRIEERABRAR BB K A K #30,000,0007C HERE
Suzhou Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric

Appliance Co., Ltd.**
HMBBIRESRBR QA

Mainland China
PR B K RE

A R #10,000,0007T

appliances
WERE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont’d)
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19. RMBRARAZRE(E)

TEMBRARZERNT : (#&)

Place of Nominal value of issued Percentage of equity
registration and ordinary/registered directly attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
BRITEER AR EEE
£ 1 R EE it B H2MEXREE REBDL FTEER
Direct Indirect
B B
Liaoning Goodaymart Trading PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
FEEHBIRHEBR QA PR R K RE AR #10,000,0007T HEXKE
Xinjiang Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
MEARIEERAR QA BB K B A K #10,000,0007C HERE
Jiangsu Subei Goodaymart PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
IEEItAAIEERAR R B K R A K #10,000,0007C HERE
NI
Tangshan Goodaymart Electric ~ PRC/ RMB6,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance. Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
FILBRIEERARRA** HE BB A R #6,000,0007T HEXE
Shanxi Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance. Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
WABRIEEEE AR AR BB A B A K #10,000,0007C HERSE
Wuhan Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance. Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
REBBIEERGRA A ** HE BB A K #10,000,0007T HEXE
SHC International (HK) Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1,000,000 — 51 Export sales of small
Mainland China home electric
appliances
REBRR(EB)BRAA BB KR 1,000,000 7T HAMENRE
Ocean Vast Investments Limited British Virgin UsD50,000 — 51 Export sales of small
Islands/ home electric
Mainland China appliances
BBRIREBRAA HBELHS/ 50,000 T HAHEENKE
ALK B
Haier Group E-commerce PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 100 On-line sales of Haier

Company Limited **

BREBRETEBEBERAR

Mainland China

R B K pE

A K #10,000,0007T

branded home
electric appliances

HLEHETRRER

=
)
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31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont’d)

* Registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise
under PRC law

*x Registered as a limited liability company under PRC law

**%  Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

19.

20.

REBARZRE (&)

TEMBRARZEHMNOT : (&)

* RERFBEEREMATINENLEELE

o REBEPEERAMABRAEELAT

* Kk

REFPEEEIMANEBELE

ERAFIZARRAMBRARNEERRIERE

AEBAFEZXBESIEARAEEEEFET
WMOZWERR - EFRR - FHNEMLHER

ABEERATBRITE

)

REREZEFHER Z2ER

Group rEH
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—B——fF —E-TF —E-TF
+=ZA=+—-H +ZHA=+-—H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARB TR AR T T AR®ET T
Share of net assets EIEEEFE — — 25,457
The Group's trade and bills payables balances with the jointly- RNREFRAEFREH EE ENESERE

controlled entities are disclosed in note 26 to the financial
statements.

ﬁTE,\\nﬁ%ECEﬁﬁ%eﬁ&i%WE%W&% °



20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 & M A

31 December 2011 — T ——F+=-A=+—H

Annual Report

201

173

T —EER

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED

ENTITIES (Contd)

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities were as follows:

20 AHFEEZEFER 2 ER(E)

AREHEEZEHNT:

Percentage of

LTRGBS
Place of Ownership Voting Profit
Name registration interest power sharing Principal activities
=x o i 4 B BEE RE®E BomM TEXK
Hefei Haier Logistics Company PRC 50 50 50 Procurement of
Limited component
SIESRYREBRAR Bl PR AP
Wuhan Haier Logistics Company PRC 50 50 50 Procurement of
Limited component
REERYRABRAR o REB AL
All of the above investments in jointly-controlled entities were U ERAERES B2 IHEEDIHAD T
indirectly held by the Company. MERFE -
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TEREHIWAQRNT HEESETE 2 BHFEER
information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities: W
Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ assets and liabilities: FEHHtRIZSEZEERBE:
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—E——F —E-FF —E-FF
+=ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H —HA—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR ARBF T ARBFT
Current assets mEE E — — 881,540
Non-current assets ERBEE — — 49,527
Current liabilities mEaE — — (905,610)
Net assets BEEFE — — 25,457
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31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Contd)

Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ results:

20. REAREFER 2 EE(E)

R HRES B EE:

2011 2010
—E——F —ET-LTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B TR AREFIT
Revenue A — 1,869,076
Total expenses & RER = (1,861,985)
7,091
Tax I8 = (1,773)
Profit after tax B 71 1% = — 5,318
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21. HEERE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—E——F —E—TF —E-FF
+=ZA=+-8B +=ZA=+—H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFT AREFIT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
Unlisted equity investments, E i
at cost KR 8,625 8,625 10,295

As at 31 December 2011, all of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments were stated at cost less impairment because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot
be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose SERHALETqHEERE -

of them in the near future.

RZF——F+ZA=+—08 AKHEH
A it L 4R A T R A A R AE AR E B BR
FRRGHABATEZEERR  &F
REEDFETREAEMAE - ASEE
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INVENTORIES 22. 78
Group rEE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—2——fF —_E-TF —_E-FF
+=ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H —HA—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARB TR ARETT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5]) (E7))
Raw materials [ K} 49,060 32,610 32,408
Work in progress TR & 26,403 20,155 16,116
Finished goods 24 B o 2,027,463 1,291,315 460,962
2,102,926 1,344,080 509,486

At 31 December 2011, the Group's inventories with a carrying
amount of RMB38,500,000 (2010: Nil; 1 January 2010: Nil)
were pledged as security for the Group’s borrowings as
further detailed in note 28 to the financial statements.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to three months for major customers. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

23.

BB R E W 28 — S RoF
——Ft-A=t—R AEEEHEES
AR #38,500,00077 (=2 — B4 : 4 :
—EE- R ENGEEEAAEE
BRI RQEE I -

— =

BRREZRRRREE
AEBERAETFPZHNESGRFINEERE
WEFEFHII  BEFEPABAMNNKIEA -
EEMBEA—BA XT2EFPZEEH
REAUEE=@A SEFHEFEEHL
PR o 7K 52 B B A B RE R R 1 K R 3 R Uk
ERAREEERR -BHREHRBERE
BETHEN SR LAARREEER
BEOEREARZZNLEFERM  RITE
BEXEFHEERR AKBETEAZE
mHREEMNERRREMERR GRS -
FEUWE 2 BRI TR
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Contd)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the

23. ERESRARRREE
REEMREYE SRR 2 ERREEA

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HAmT
Group rEHE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—E——fF —E-EF —ET-EF
+=A=+—8H +=Z—RAR=+—H —H—H
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR T AR T AR T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E) (E7))
Trade receivables: JEWE SRR
Within 1 month 1ME A A 1,128,756 466,224 680,317
1 to 2 months 12218 A 135,728 178,900 83,738
2 to 3 months 231 A 117,168 133,645 76,082
Over 3 months HBid3ME A 78,937 204,345 219,308
1,460,589 983,114 1,059,445
Bills receivable eSS 4,111,446 2,927,677 2,285,606
5,572,035 3,910,791 3,345,051

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are
not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

ERlsk£RW EHEBREZEREZESE
RN EEZERE O

follows:

Group rEE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—2——fF —ET-ZF —E-TF
+=A=+-8 +=ZA=+—H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARB TR AR T T AR T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E7)) (E5))
Neither past due nor impaired R B R RORE 5,493,098 3,706,446 3,125,743
Less than 1 year past due BAEIL R —F 78,650 136,549 219,308
1 to 2 years past due B —EMF 287 67,796 —
5,572,035 3,910,791 3,345,051
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables are
amounts due from Haier Affiliates amounting to
RMB862,688,000 (2010: RMB2,270,764,000 (as restated); 1
January 2010: RMB946,528,000 (as restated)), which are
repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to the
major customers of the Group. Further details of the sales to
these related parties are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2011, certain of the Group’s bills receivable
of approximately RMB250,453,000 (2010: RMB518,137,000 (as
restated); 1 January 2010: RMB305,738,000 (as restated))
were pledged to secure certain of the Group’s bills payable
(note 26).

23.

BREZRRRRE(E)

R R R OBUE 2 8 OB IA BT B I R R
RS2 EFP AR -

ERMERREZERKBRZEZRAS
BTELBREIZEFPAR - REBER
BOARREEBRBANZSEHRIED
BERE AAFEERYEBEANES
MmZEERDWA /T2 EWRE -

AEBEZEKBSEFRLERREREKS
B A T IE A A R862,688,0007T
(ZZB—ZTF: ARE#2,270,764,0007T (K &
M E—-—ZFTF - -—H AR®
946,528,000 (A& E %)) * % R IBBRE 4
FTAEEFERFPZEFERREBEZREE
BCREE - BERAZSTHEALTHEZE
MEF B H R R EM 14 -

R-B——F+-A=+—H A£EET
JE U Z 4% 49 A R #250,453,000 . (—ZF—F
£ AR #518,137,000c (KR &EF|) i —F —
THFE—F—H: AR¥305,738,0005T (& &
F)) L IR IRAREEE TREMAER (I
£26) °
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. ANRE - RERHMEWEE
RECEIVABLES EN
Group Company
rEH AT
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2010 2011 2010
—E-—F —Z-ZF —E-—F —Z-ZF
+=A +=A —E-TF +=A +=A
Er=[F =+—H —HA—H Ear=[g =+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTR ARBTRT ARBFTT AR®BFTR ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (E751)
Prepayments TET B 451,106 328,065 117,981 257 261
Deposits & 522 522 443 522 522
Other receivables H i fE U BR 5K 389,876 309,414 85,372 — —
841,504 638,001 203,796 779 783
Impairment B (9,441) (9,772) (9,772) — —
832,063 628,229 194,024 779 783
The movements in provision for impairment of other Hi W RERE 2 Es T
receivables are as follows:
Group Company
AEHE AR
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2-—-F —Z-ZF ZB-—-F C—Z-ZF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TRT ARBTT AR¥FTFR ARETTT
At 1 January ®n—A—H 9,772 9,772 — —
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) % [0 s 1B &5 18 (B E6) (331) — — —
As at 31 December W+=ZA=+—8H 9,441 9,772 — —

Except for other receivables amounting to RMB9,441,000

(2010: RMB9,772,000; 1 January

included in the above balance, none of the above assets is
either past due or impaired. Other than the aforementioned
impaired receivables, the financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent

history of default.

BEZEsmelz BB RERARE

2010: RMB9,772,000) 9,441,000t (=T —Z % A K #9,772,000

WRRE R -

T ZE—TF—F—H: ARK%9,772,000
) PMEERECBBAKDRE - B
P 2B REZ BRI - E il & &R FT
PRERZUBEERE LR RALEEZE
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. ENRE - ZREREMERE
RECEIVABLES (Contd) (&)
Included in the Group's prepayments, deposits and other RNEBZENRIE - Ze K HABERER
receivables are amounts due from Haier Affiliates amounting BRENSEAEEATIREBAEARE
to RMB222,617,000 (2010: RMB312,543,000 (as restated); 1 222,617,0000(= & — T F: A R &
January 2010: RMB122,223,000 (as restated)), which are 312,543,000t (& &%) =T —ZFTF— A
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. —H: AR #122,223,0007T (L E 5)) » %
REREEM REREBMEE -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. RERBEEZEEIER
Group Company
rEE AT
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2010 2011 2010
-2 —Z-IF —B——-& —T—TfF
+=A t=-—A Z—T-%F +=A +=A
Ear=[ =+—H —H—H Er=[F =+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFTT AR®TT AR TR ARMEF T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (E71)
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTHEH 2,387,356 1,805,830 1,300,233 16,807 15,592
Time deposits EHEFR 1,660,009 923,047 269,458 1,323,435 753,102
4,047,365 2,728,877 1,569,691 1,340,242 768,694
Less: deposits pledged for B : Tk FE S R R R
bills payable (note 26) ) 77 3 (B 5%
26) (87,402) (3,011) (86,814) —_ —
Cash and cash equivalents BREREELEHE
HH 3,959,963 2,725,866 1,482,877 1,340,242 768,694

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB2,989,256,000 (2010: RMB1,880,810,000 (as
restated); 1 January 2010: RMB1,406,953,000 (as restated)).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

RBEPHR AEAUAREAFEZRS
LBRTEBURTETEHEFERABARYE
2,989,256,000L(= & — T F: A R &
1,880,810,000L (&%) s —FT—ZTF—A
— B AR#1,406,953,0007T (& E5)) - A
RETHEARLBAEMER - BRESP
B K B 7 HMNEE AR O (K TE - SIE R AT
EEERE) NEBEMSBERAETIN
EEBIBRTHEAREBLBAEME -
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contd)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirement of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks or financial institutions with no recent history of
default.

Included in the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
deposits of approximately RMB747,154,000 (2010:
RMB703,605,000 (as restated); 1 January 2010:
RMB920,445,000 (as restated)) placed with Haier Group

BERBEEEEERE)
GRE|TZESBESBHRITE RN ER
FEAEBHDAE c MHTHERETA
SEIFEeFRKMOAN T —BE=
BAZTREFERE  ZAEBEHERER
I RBRERA B o RITH BT R I &L H
RABHEZEEBRTBRITRCBEE -

AEEZHRSERECEEBEERETHR
HREEVBEERECAR(ERMBD
ZIEFRH AR T47,154,00070 (—E—T 4 ¢
A R #703,605,000L (&K &EFH) : —F —F

Finance Co., Ltd. (“Haier Finance"), a financial institution F— A —HB: AR ®920,445,0007T (& &
approved by the People’s Bank of China. The interest rate on ) ERUBAETFEARBITRY ZEH
these deposits ranged from 0.36% to 3.3% per annum. ﬁ&%% ZEFRZERENTF0.36EE33
Further details of the interest income attributable to the c BBEHREB B 2T REREZF
deposits placed with Haier Finance are set out in note 14 to E‘Jlﬁl)\ﬁ‘rﬁlﬁ\ E N e E S S AV
the financial statements.
TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 26. ENEBERE &FEH 2 B
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end R EBARENE R EREREERA
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as HAmT
follows:
Group N L
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—2——fF —ET-EF —ET-EF
+=ZHA=+—-B +ZA=+—H —A—H
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR® T AR T AR T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E7)) (E7))
Trade payables: ERNE SRR
Within 1 month 1ME A A 2,012,916 907,303 1,225,141
1 to 2 months 12 21# A 73,433 40,057 1,626
2 to 3 months 22318 A 21,225 35,177 360
Over 3 months HBid3ME A 77,323 61,326 22,022
2,184,897 1,043,863 1,249,149
Bills payable FE R & 348,889 484,570 392,280
2,533,786 1,528,433 1,641,429
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26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Contd) 26. ENESRRREMFREE)
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are ENEZERRERNEBRDNE L —
normally settled on credit terms ranging from 30 to 90 days. BIEN TF30E900H 2B HEE -

Included in the Group’s trade and bills payables are amounts REBZENESZERREBEREENE
due to Haier Affiliates amounting to RMB1,461,642,000 (2010: B AT RIE A A R 1,461,642,000
RMB592,198,000 (as restated); 1 January 2010: TT(ZE—ZF : AR¥592,198,0007T (& &
RMB815,522,000 (as restated)) , which are repayable on M Z—EFE—-—ZFTF - —-—H: AR®
similar credit terms to those offered by other similar suppliers 815,522,000 T (F£ EF)) - ;ZR B A EH
of the Group. The Group’s trade and bills payables at 1 mAEEHERGS TASEEE ZEEBKK
January 2010 also included amounts due to the Group's BE -AEER-_ZT-—ZTF-—FB—-HZE
jointly-controlled entities amounting to RMB102,715,000, HESGERREROBEENAEEHAF
which were repayable on similar credit terms to these offered ) 88 ZE A R #102,715,0000T + 2K
by other similar supplies of the Group. Further details of the HERBEMMBEHERG TAEEES
purchases from these related parties are set out in note 14 to ZEERFERE BFHEMZZTHEEALR
the financial statements. BrHMFBEHRMBERRME14 -
Certain of the Group’s bills payable are secured by the pledge AEBEBETENEBEURNER ZRITER
of the Group’s bank deposits amounting to RMB87,402,000 AR #87,402,000(ZE—TF: AR
(2010: RMB3,011,000 (as restated); 1 January 2010: 3,011,000 (E&EF|): —E—TF—F—0H:
RMB86,814,000 (as restated)) and the Group's bills receivable A R 86,814,000t (&L E ) kA K E 2
amounting to RMB250,453,000 (2010: RMB518,137,000; 1 FE Uk ZE & A R #5250,453,0000(ZF — &
January 2010: RMB305,738,000). F: AR¥S518,137,000L: —_E—ZFF—A
—H : AR#¥305,738,0007T) fEH I -
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. HtENERRRE AR
Group Company
rEH AT
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2010 2011 2010
—B2-—F ZZT—ZF —B2-—F ZZT-ZF
t=A t=hA Z=-%F t+=A +T=A
Ear=F =+—H —HA—H Ear=/g =+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARBFTRT ARBFTT AREBTR AREFTT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (&)
Other payables H b 1+ BR 3K 4,076,407 3,413,690 1,494,950 18,754 149,624
Accruals EEtEE 1,231,847 1,025,794 1,006,790 7,256 8,066
5,308,254 4,439,484 2,501,740 26,010 157,690

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average

term of three months.

Hb BNRRDEAFNERFHR/H=M@A -
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Contd) 27. HttEEN R R EF EE(E)
Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals are AEEBEZHEMENERLETAERER
amounts due to Haier Affiliates amounting to NEBERBEBATREREHARE
RMB1,176,495,000 (2010: RMB1,217,688,000 (as restated); 1 1,176,495,000L(= & — T : A R &
January 2010: RMB645,168,000 (as restated)). These amounts 1,217,688,000L (K &EF|) i — T —TF—H
are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. — H: AR #645,168,0007T (& E 5I)) ° #%
EREAEEET RERZBMEE -
INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 28. ;T EEE
Group AEH
31 December 2011 31 December 2010 1 January 2010
—E2--F —E-EF —E-Zf
+t=A=+-H +-A=+-8H —A—H
Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%)  Maturity RMB'000
BERAx ARY BERFME ARY BRFE ARE
% - Fr % 38 Fr % 2|8 Fr
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (&51)
Current B
Other loans — secured At EH — AER 5.90 2012 25,000 — — — — — —
Other loans — unsecured HEMER — BHF - - - 6.50 2011 5000 4.43-5.42 2010 10,000
25,000 5,000 10,000
Non-current ¥RE
Other loans — unsecured HER — BER — — - - — — 575774 2011 74,000
25,000 5,000 84,000
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—E2——fF —E—FF —E—FF
+=-—A=+—-H8 +ZA=+—H —H—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREEF T ARBT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E3)) (E3))
Borrowings repayable: ARATRHEE
ZIEE:
Within one year or on demand  —FRIZ B 25,000 5,000 10,000
In the second year £ — — 74,000
25,000 5,000 84,000
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INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Contd)

All interest-bearing borrowings were RMB-denominated loans
borrowed from Haier Finance. Further details of the interest
expenses attributable to the loans borrowed from Haier
Finance are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The Group’s loans as at 31 December 2011 were secured by
floating charges over certain of the Group’s inventories
totalling RMB38,500,000. The Group's loans as at 31
December 2010 were pledged by certain properties owned by
non-controlling shareholders. The Group’s current loans as at
1 January 2010 were pledged by certain fixed deposits of
Henan Goodaymart and certain properties owned by non-
controlling shareholders; and the Group's non-current loans as
at 1 January 2010 were guaranteed by Haier Corp.

Except for the non-current loans as at 1 January 2010, all of
the Group’s loans bore interests at fixed interest rates.

PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

During the year, the Company entered
agreements with certain non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries pursuant to which the non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries agreed to meet the prescribed financial and
operational performance targets of the non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries laid down by the Company and the Company
agreed to grant put options to these non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries. In accordance with the terms of
the incentive agreements and subject to the fulfillment of the
prescribed financial and operational performance targets at
the relevant financial year ends during the tenures of the put
options, these non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
would be entitled to exercise the put options to require the
Company to purchase part or whole of the equity interests in
the non-wholly-owned subsidiaries at prices to be determined
based on the agreed formula.

into incentive

The put option liabilities are carried at fair value. The
subsequent change in the carrying amount of the put option
liabilities is to be adjusted against the put option reserve.

28.

29.

ArEfEEGE)
FEBMENEASET B EANAR
MR B 2 B R o B BB A B
ZRBE M K FE RN BRI
14 »

REBR-_ZE——F+_A=+—RHZEH
HEAEESE THEES L ARE3S,500,000
THFHFLER - AEER T —ZTF
+Z A=+ BN ERBETHIFEZERR
HHEENYDERE AEEBR=_FT—TF
—A—HWASHEFRBAVEERAIENE T
TEHERERE THIELERBEREENDE
HH MAEBER _—_ZT—TF—-F—HHNIE
REEREAEHEREQRER -

BR-ZE-Z2F A -B0ERBDEZRIN
AEEBEHMEERGABEEMNKEGTE -

whaERR
FAR-ARAEETHE AR FERRKRE
AR B W B B AR IEERK
RABEHARAGTZHE2ENE QA
AR B REERRBE  MARE R
[Fl & A 7% %5 B B & 5] 3 #2 AR RCR 4% i 3R
HiRE o BB 5 R B FR R
REHAMR 2 18 B B B R RE K AT AR 2 B
BREERBABR ZEWEBARFER
BRAETERERRUABRAQRAER
BHWEARNEENERBEIFZEWNBER
AR B B2 AR HE o

RoLHEEERATFEI R - R4 BEK
HEZEREHER RO RERHE -
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 22 October 2010 and 6 December 2010, the Company
issued convertible bonds in principal amounts of
HK$330,000,000 (equivalent to RMB283,993,000) and
HK$456,600,000 (equivalent to RMB388,108,000), respectively,
to Haier Shareholdings (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Qingdao Haier. The convertible bonds were non-
interest-bearing and were fully converted into 138,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company in 2010.

On 24 August 2011, the Company issued 100,000,000 3%
convertible bonds for a nominal value of HK$1,067,000,000
(equivalent to RMB874,375,000), plus 40,000,000 warrants.
There was no movement in the number of these convertible
bonds during the year. The bonds are convertible into
100,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the option of
the bondholders on or after 18 months after the issue date
up to seven days prior to the fifth anniversary of the issue
date. The bonds carry interest at a rate of 3% per annum,
which is payable half-yearly in arrears on 30 June and 31
December.

The fair value of the liability component of convertible bonds
was estimated at the issuance date using an equivalent
market interest rate for a similar bond without a conversion
option and warrants granted. The residual amount is assigned
as the equity component of convertible bonds and warrant
reserve and is included in shareholders’ equity.

The convertible bonds issued have been split into the liability
and equity components, as follows:

EH“HQ%%
RZE—ZEFTATZHE=Z-FF+
:ﬁ/\EI PIN/N D%Jﬁ%%/@Ziﬁ

MEARBERKRG(EB BRARFITAR
% %8 /330,000,000 T H KR A R
283,993,0007T) %456,600,0007% 7t (18 & M
A R #388,108,0007T) 2 A 2 fR & % » #%
LR ESFAEERNR_ZE—ZSF2H
W3 B K2 51138,000,000 8% & 3@ A% ©

R-ZE——FN\A-+WH KRB ETT
100,000,000 FE3E 2 AR ESH - HAE
#1,067,000,0008 T & BN A B
874,375,0007T) * 5 5NN E£1740,000,00017 3R
Hﬂi&*"‘ FA - ZEUBRREFZHEBE
cBEHEFAATRENEITEE
ﬁ_ﬁﬁm{lﬂzaaﬁz&ﬁﬁé’éﬁa,ﬁﬂz
FREBFLSBLAL  B2EESHE
# /5 78 A §1100,000,000/% & i@ Ik - % F &
FIEFEIEFE  RNZMEEARASA=Z
+EBE+T-A=t—H8EEIHH K-

AR EFzBERIZAFERETAH
HNTABEBERR 2 BUERRER
HRBREZEZHEM SN RGEE - MRS
BREBRUBRKREFARRREZTHEBE IR
@D WAABRRERZH °

ERA2TRRESTR TS
& RIEEH S

ANREAE

2011 2010
—E2——fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBTFT

Nominal value of convertible bonds and FREHTARKRESR
warrants issued during the year RBREB2EE 874,375 672,101
Equity component of convertible bonds —Hﬁ BEFzERBD (149,249) (61,788)
Warrant reserve RIREE R (59,700) —
Liability component at the issuance date RETABHZBERD 665,426 610,313
Interest expense (note 7) A E S (M E7) 21,424 683
Interest payable JFEA T B, (9,151) —
Conversion of convertible bonds H#|a k&S — (610,996)
Exchange realignment JE W (7,850) —
Liability component at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZAEHS 669,849 —
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31. PROVISIONS

31. #E

Group rE
Product warranties

and installation

ERRERRTH
2011 2010
—E——f —E-FF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
b & AR T ARBT T
At 1 January wn—A—H 443,518 307,000
Additional provision MIERE 6 792,400 526,147
Amounts utilised during the year FRAEHHELEE (544,508) (389,629)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 691,410 443,518
Portion classified as current liabilities HEREB BEZHBD (466,466) (291,963)
Non-current portion FERBEH D 224,944 151,555

The Group provides installation services and warranties of one
to six years to its customers on washing machines and water
heaters, under which faulty products are repaired or replaced.
The amount of the provision for the warranties is estimated
based on sales volume and past experience of the level of
installation services rendered, repairs and returns. The
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised
where appropriate.

AEBRREFPREZERBELASM —EX
FIARBEBKERE  AHBEZEM®
AEEERER REBEFELRRHEER
NEMRH LT ERY - #EREREKFR
e BEFEEFERY  XRNEERFEDL

CHE
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DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets (mainly relating to
accruals and provisions) and deferred tax liabilities (mainly
relating to withholding taxes) during the year are as follows:

BB R
FRBETHBREE(ZERENAERE
AR MR HIA A A (X R RBMBARRM)
ZHmT:

Group AEME
Deferred tax assets
EEREEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
it AR® T AR F T
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 221,311 21,459
Deferred tax charged to the income FAEWEERNRZ
statement during the year IE RE 7 18 10 161,331 199,852
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 382,642 221,311
Deferred tax liabilities
EEHREARE
2011 2010
—E——F —T—FF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR F T
At 1 January ®—H—H 9,257 9,588
Exchange realignment PE 5 5 2 (431) (331)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 8,826 9,257

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
RMB29,977,000 (2010: RMB31,450,000; 1 January 2010:
RMB31,782,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland
China of RMB612,785,000 (2010: RMB614,989,000 (as
restated); 1 January 2010: RMB180,278,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profit. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in the Company
and subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

REBREBEBEEAZHEBBAARYE
29,977,000 (= & — & F: A B ¥
31,450,000t — 2 —ZEF—A—H: AR
#31,782,00070) - ATt MR EAKIEZF &
EEBEBEZATREERB AN -  AEER
PEAXEELEZHREEBEEARARKE
612,785,00000(= & — T F: A R ¥
614,989,000 (& &F3|) : =T —TF —A
—B: AR #180,278,0007T) W —EH
FRAEMARBEAERERBES - ARE
EHBEEERBARAMREBESZRZHNE
AR MBI ERZEBEERRELERE
BE MARBIRBAEIBAITHAZ
JERT A A AT FEVR 2 BB B 1A o
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Contd)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is
10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

Except for the deferred tax liabilities of RMB8&,826,000 (2010:
RMB9,257,000; 1 January 2010: RMB9,588,000), which
represents the withholding taxes for the earnings of the PRC
subsidiaries to be remitted, as at 31 December 2011, no
deferred tax has been recognised for withholding taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not
probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately RMB3,710,072,000 at
31 December 2011 (2010: RMB2,331,723,000 (as restated); 1
January 2010: RMB830,462,000 (as restated)).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

32.

IEAEBLTE (42
REBEPEIEMRESHE  RHBEABERL
ZIBRELCEANHREETIRZEE
AIRI0% 2R ERBKREMB - ZMREB =
ZEZNF-A-—HARBER TEAR-ZEZ
tFFT_AZT—BRZEBN - HPEKX
EEIINHREEMERERBRD R RB
B AR AREZENREK - KREE
ZHERRERI0% - At BE_FTENF—
A—RE NEBEAREPBEANERZZ
MERAR DK 2B EBMHANR -

BriE SE IR B E A R %8,826,0000 (=
—ZF: AR¥9,257,00000: —F —FF —
A—HB: A R#%09588,0005T) N R IE A
PEHBATIN-_E——EF+=-A=+—H
WHES RN ZENH)  SEEREFRH
ARk WEBARESNEMH 2 X
EFRMNEMZENHBERELERIE - &
ERE ZEWBRARTAAEKEERAR
RRDIEFTABZERF o 85 R B A I
BARIZIEBBEMELT EEE N RE
RZEBEZRBENR_T——F+=-A=
+—BA&HEHAEAR3710,072,000T (=
T4 AR#2,331,723,0005C (L&) :
—“ZE-THF—A—H: AR%830,462,0007T
(&) -

AR B [A) A B ROK A 2 BSR4 B S A A
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33.

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
EHEREAERAT
2k + A
BY 1 ¥ R MO 5F
31 December 2011 —F——F+=ZF=+—H
ISSUED EQUITY 33. 2E#TRAE
Group AEH
Issued equity
ERTERS
RMB'000
ARBTFT
At 1 January 2010 R—ZZE—ZFF—HF—H 1,527,611
Exercise of share options T8 BE e 22,624
Exercise of warrants TR EE 25,824
Conversion of convertible bonds HB®a g KkES 672,784
At 31 December 2010 and beginning of year RZE—ZF+_A=+—HEREY 2,248,843
Exercise of share options 1T B IR b 26,680
Exercise of warrants TR R EE 62,386
At 31 December 2011 RZTB——F+-A=+—H 2,337,909
Upon the completion of the Group reorganisation (the EAREESEH(EA)R-_EERF—A=
“Reorganisation”) on 28 January 2005, Haier Group became +N\BHZTKEZ BREERBIAKRER
the controlling shareholders of the Company through the ETHEBAR(HEBHBEAR] TEHRSE
injection of its equity interests in certain subsidiaries (the RERAARARAEERBNAEXEEEH
“Relevant Subsidiaries”) principally engaging in the BE)KARNRE 2 ERAE « Bt - A&
manufacture and sale of top loading washing machines and BEREATEERAYRKBEIHEAR -

mobile phones to the Company. Accordingly, the Group
applied the reverse acquisition basis of accounting to account
for the effect of the Reorganisation.
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ISSUED EQUITY (Cont<d)

Under the reverse acquisition basis of accounting, the amount
of issued equity of the Group stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the end of the reporting
period represents:

33.
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T —FFR

ERTER(E)

RBFRAWE G L RIS BRI RER

EMBMRARZAKREEERTREZER

31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—E——F —E-EF
+=A +—A —E-TF
Er=[E =+—H —H—H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARBFT AR T T
()  the amount of the issued () WREgRKEe:
capital, contributed surplus and V2 BT U B AR B 12
capital reserves of the Relevant RNARZETRF—
Subsidiaries at 28 January 2005 AZ+NBBE#TK
acquired under the reverse basis K BABBIAR
of accounting, plus the deemed EXAEESE S0
purchase consideration (net of REEWR A ZE
deemed distributions) in respect EREGIBRRAES
of the Reorganisation &) 852,599 852,599 852,599
(i) the amount of share capital iy ARARZZEZRF
(including share premium) of the U EEENgES
Company issued for the EREERAEAMRL
acquisition of certain subsidiaries KM ZOKB 2B
principally engaged in the THEBRARMEITZ
manufacture and sale of front A (B FER G R E)
loading washing machines and k=)
water heaters in 2006 240,795 240,795 240,795
(iiiy  the changes in share capital of (i) ZARATBEBEHEFIKE 2
share premium of the Company & A R B A7 O (8 &
since the Reorganisation, g B
including:
. the repurchases of shares . NN A ETE
of the Company il (1,147) (1,147) (1,147)
. the exercise of share . ZAN/NEIRSRES:
options of the Company [ix 1 168,954 142,274 119,650
. the exercise of warrants . RRAITER
of the Company [ 1 3% 88,210 25,824 —
. the conversion of . PAN/NES BT e
convertible bonds of the BAR & %5
Company 946,746 946,746 273,962
. the placement of shares . PA/NEINTR-
of the Company, net of 7 (F0BR AR 19
share issue expenses BEITHRX) 41,752 41,752 41,752
2,337,909 2,248,843 1,527,611
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33. ISSUED EQUITY (Cont’d) 33. ORITEZRE(E)
Company NN
Shares B 12 2011 2010
2% —TF5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHETT
Authorised: VETE
30,000,000,000 (2010: 30,000,000,000)  30,000,000,000f% (=T — =
shares of HK$0.1 each £ :30,000,000,000%) & I
HE{E0.E 7T 2 15 3,000,000 3,000,000
2011 2010
—E——fF —E—ZF

HK$'000  RMB’000 HK$'000  RMB’000
THELT AR®TR TAET ARBTT

equivalent equivalent
) £E
Issued and fully paid: EEITEHE:
2,346,700,905 (2010: 2,346,700,905% (=& —
2,220,843,905) shares of =4 :2,220,843,905
HK$0.1 each ) BREECITE T
2 &1 234,670 239,382 222,084 228,871
A summary of the transactions during the year involving the RERASRARRBEREITRAZRGHE
Company'’s issued share capital is as follows: m
Number of Issued share Share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BT BT
R #E IR A B 1% E R st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®F T ARBFIT AREFTT
At 31 December 2009 and RZZZNF+=A
beginning of year =t+t—HBEFY 2,026,673,905 212,209 1,035,693 1,247,902
Exercise of share options (note i) 77 {8 B8 A% # (Fff 5% i) 11,170,000 958 21,666 22,624
Exercise of warrants (note ii) 718 SR AR R & (B 3T ii) 45,000,000 3,913 21,911 25,824
Conversion of convertible bonds 7,3 A] # A% & 5 (Bt &% iii)
(note iii) 138,000,000 11,791 660,993 672,784
At 31 December 2010 and RZE—ZTF+=A
beginning of year Zt+—BEE 2,220,843,905 228,871 1,740,263 1,969,134
Exercise of share options (note i) 171 & i% #% (Fff 5%1) 12,857,000 1,059 25,621 26,680
Exercise of warrants (note i) 775 R AR 3 (M i) 113,000,000 9,452 52,934 62,386
At 31 December 2011 RZT——F+=A

=+—H 2,346,700,905 239,382 1,818,818 2,058,200
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33. ISSUED EQUITY (Contd)

Notes:

(i) The subscription rights attaching to 12,356,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription price of HK$1.7 per share
(note 34), resulting in the issue of 12,356,000 of HK$0.1 each
for a total cash consideration of HK$21,005,000 (equivalent to
RMB17,298,000). In addition, the subscription rights attaching
to 501,000 share options were exercised at the subscription
price of HK$4.82 per share (note 34), resulting in the issue of
501,000 shares of HK$0.1 each for a total cash consideration
of HK$2,415,000 (equivalent to RMB1,978,000). An amount of
RMB7,404,000 was transferred from the share option reserve
to the share premium account upon the exercise of the share
options.

(i) 113,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each were issued for cash at a
subscription price of HK$0.66 per share pursuant to the
exercise of the Company’s warrants for a total cash
consideration of HK$74,580,000 (equivalent to
RMB62,386,000).

(iii) Convertible bonds with principal amounts totalling
HK$786,600,000 (equivalent to RMB672,101,000) and the
corresponding interest amounts totalling RMB683,000 were
converted into 138,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 34 to
the financial statements.

Warrants

During the year, 40,000,000 warrants were issued in
connection with the issuance of the convertible bonds on 24
August 2011, as further detailed in note 30 of the financial
statements. Each warrant entitles the holder thereof to
subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.1 at a subscription
price of HK$11.20 per share on or after 18 months after issue
until five years after the issue date.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
182,000,000 warrants outstanding. The exercise in full of
these warrants would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 142,000,000 additional
shares of HK$0.66 each and 40,000,000 additional shares of
HK$11.20 each.

33. BETHER(Z)

B :

0} 12,356,000 B EAMW 2 RBREE RS
178w 2 REEEITE (M E34) - B
%%1712,356,000 %k B R EE0.1E T2 R -
138 4 K8 521,0050008 T (HHERAR
#17,298,0007T) ° It &b + 501,0001 B& A&
M REECIZRERAE T ZRE
18 % 77 5 (M 5£34) ° & B3 17501,0004%
EREEBSTZERG  BRERES
2,415,000 7T (18 & » A R #1,978,000
TL) ° BE A R 7,404,000 7 B8 AR HE &
TEROCEBRERBERZEROEER -

(ii) AEARNB RBREEETE Kt
113,000,000 & I E EHO.1E T 2 IR 2
HER066EBTTZARBEEUNRESHET 4
[ & KRB A74,580,000/8 T (FEE R AR
62,386,0007T) ©

(i) A& EA 786,600,000 T ( HERAR
#672,101,0007T) 2 A] #2 % (& % & 48 ¥ 7
E4&EAHEARKES3000CE KA
138,000,000 % & f% [ (E0.178 7L 2 B2 10 °

BRE
BERARRZBRER S R8T
BREZFBHNMBREMES -

AR EE

0B A5 SRR M AE30 — M £
40,000,000 R EFR R =_ZE——FNA
ZHUMABRTAURRESMERET - BH
REEFHTEFAEAER  TRETH
B mIsE A AR 2R EEZETH
HBiTAFLE ZREEFTRN208B TR
E-REEONB T ZEBR -

R4 B R - AN R] 8182,000,00015 14 &
TERREE - BREARBEAERALEE
FHTHEZERBREEEERE T
142,000,0000% & f% ™ {60.6675 7T 2 8 4M A%
% %40,000,0000% & % @ {E11.207%8 T 2 %
GNRR AR e
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31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-A=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to the eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the operations of the Group. Eligible participants of
the Share Option Scheme include any employee, executive or
officer of the Group (including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors of the Company) and any
supplier, consultant, agent, adviser, shareholder, customer,
partner, business associate who, in the opinion of the board
of directors of the Company (the “Board”), has contributed to
the Group. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 28
February 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is such
number of shares, when aggregated with shares subject to
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company, must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme. The
maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible
participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of grant. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this 1% limit shall
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company (and if
required, the holding company) and the shareholders’ approval
of the Company (and if required, the approval of the
shareholders of the holding company) at a general meeting.

34.

BRrRESE

ARRFRM AR S ([FERERTE))
HEMEABERBAER2EER/RAE
BEBZKMIELER - BREFEZA
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ABRR BEF BHEREBBEEA-B
BEAEB T F AT N\BRER
kR 5 1T HAERT SN - #§ sz B EFH0
FRBH -
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Z B A BB A0 £ AR B AE A] K B AR At
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates, are subject to the approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors of the Company
(and if required, the independent non-executive directors of
the holding company), excluding the independent non-
executive director(s) of the Company and the holding company
who is/are the grantee(s) of the options. In addition, any
share option granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of grant or
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company as at the date of grant) in excess of
RMB5 million, within any 12-month period, is subject to the
issue of a circular by the Company (and if required, the
holding company) and the shareholders’ approval of the
Company (and if required, the approval of the shareholders of
the holding company) in advance at a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of RMB1 or HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the board of directors, and commences on a
specified date and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the share options or the
expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
board of directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares of the Company.

34.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Share

34. IBIRHESTEI(E)

BREYERTHAARDRBREXNER
RELBREZERN -

MTAEFRNBREFEBETHARTEZE

Option Scheme during the year: i # -
2011 2010
— —E-FF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
fn# £ 15 hnwE ¥
TEE BREXE TEE BREHE
HK$ HK$
per share per share
BRET FRET
At 1 January »n—A—H 2.52 98,440,000 1.70 84,450,000
Granted during the year FREE 7.64 18,780,000 4.82 25,960,000
Cancelled/lapsed during the year £ R EUE 4k 2k 2.18 (4,145,500) 1.70 (800,000)
Exercised during the year FAITE 1.82  (12,857,000) 1.70 (11,170,000)
At 31 December R+Z—AR=+—H 3.59 100,217,500 2.52 98,440,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$7.73 per
share (2010: HK$7.43).

RERTEZERERITEE R Z NEF
HREAEERIIZEL(ZE—FF 17435

JT) e
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

NCIAL STATEMENTS
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34. BIRESTEI(E

RBEMR AARTEBRBZTEER
TTESIT:

2011 2010
—2——-F —T-FF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period  Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BRERE TEE* TEH BREHA TEE" 1710 48
HK$ per share HK$ per share
BERET BRET
21,567,000 1.70 18/09/2010 29,680,000 1.70 18/09/2010
-17/09/2013 -17/09/2013
—E2-ZF —ZT-TF
hB+NBE NA+NBZE
—E-=F —T—=fF
ABE++EH NA+T+ER
35,051,500 1.70 18/09/2010 42,800,000 1.70 18/09/2010
-17/09/2014 —17/09/2014
—E-2F —E-TF
hB+NBE NA+TNABZE
—E-QmF —E-mF
LA+tH NAA+T+ER
24,819,000 4.82 18/05/2011 25,960,000 4.82 18/05/2011
-17/05/2014 -17/05/2014
—EF——F —T——F
EA+NAE HFA+TNABE
—E-—MEF —E—-mEF
AA++tH EA++tH
17,780,000 7.58 16/12/2012 — — —
15/12/2014
—EB-—C=fF
T=ZAtAXBZE
—®-mF
+=ZA+EH
1,000,000 8.67 16/06/2012 — — —
15/12/2014
—E-_F
ARATARBE
ZE-QWmF
+t=A+HH
100,217,500 98,440,000
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * BEREZTEEATRESHTRIEITA

in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in

the Company’s share capital.

B AR A R IR E RS B
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd) 34. BRETE(E)
The fair value of the share options granted during the year REFRABREZBEREATFTEORARYE
were approximately RMB35,506,000 (RMB1.89 each) (2010: 35,506,000 (B IR EE A R¥1.89T)(=F
RMB43,380,000, RMB1.67 each), of which the Group —ZF: AR%43,380,0000T - FREE A
recognised a share option expense of RMB1,250,000 during R¥167m) AEBRLEREBEE_F ——
the year ended 31 December 2011. During the year ended 31 FH+ZA=T " HALFEERBERERE
December 2011, the Group also recognised a share option A R #1,250,0007C - REE=ZF——F+
expense of RMB15,959,000 (2010: RMB15,695,000) and ZRA=t—HLEFE AEEITRBECS
RMB12,744,000 (2010: RMB22,656,000) in respect of share —ZEFF+ A=+ HLFERHEE=Z
options granted during the years ended 31 December 2010 ZENFET_AZ+-—HLEEERHZER
and 31 December 2009, respectively. TE 5 7 i R AR B 2 A R #615,959,0007T
(ZZ—TF: AR¥156950007T) & AR
#12,744,0000 (= & — T F: A R &
22,656,0007T) °
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during FAREUBRALEE EREAFERR
the year was estimated as at the date of grant, taking into HHBMGE  TERREBRE CKIK
account the terms and conditions upon which the options B - TRINEMAERX 2 AE:
were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:
2011 2010
—E——f ZT—TF
Dividend yield (%) B (%) 0 1.04
Historical volatility (%) JE 2 18 (%) 62.75 66.42
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4= [ B F1 & (%) 0.523 1.37
Contractual life of options (year) BRESOFEH(EF) 3 4
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share)  f1# F¥ (& (T8 L) 6.74 4.82

The expected volatility is determined based on the historical
volatility of the share price of the company. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be
the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

The 12,857,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 12,857,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of HK$1,285,700 (equivalent
to RMB1,059,000) and share premium of HK$22,134,000
(equivalent to RMB18,217,000), as further detailed in note 33
to the financial statements.

FEHRBIERARRABREZE L RIEE
EeoBHEERBREERTIRRBERE
RERRKBE - BIFR0EERIFRAERN

VEmEMBHBREZFESAR

e -

FEZ

RERNTTE 212, 8570000%&%%@(%’*
A A2, 857000H R kR A
1,285,7007% 7T (48 & }\ E #1,059,0007T)
N B 19 5% 1822,134,0008 T(HHE R AR
18,217,0007T) + &F 15 & 7 B 7% W & MY 5%
33 ¢
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)

35.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
100,217,500 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 100,217,500 additional ordinary shares of
the Company and additional share capital of HK$10,022,000
(equivalent to RMB8,122,000) and share premium of
HK$414,734,000 (equivalent to RMB336,116,000) (before issue
expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a total of
5,539,000 share options with the exercise price of HK$1.70
each and 2,124,000 share options with the exercise price of
HK$4.82 were exercised.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 92,554,500 share options outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately
3.9% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on page 87 to 88 of the financial statements.

The Group's capital reduction reserve arose from the
reduction in the nominal value of each of the issued
shares of the Company from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by
the cancellation of paid-up capital of HK$0.09 on each
of the issued shares of the Company effective from 8
March 2007. The Group’s capital reserve originally
represented the difference between the credit arising
from the capital reduction of HK$1,657,866,000
(equivalent to RMB1,758,526,000) and the amount
transferred to eliminate the accumulated losses of the
Group of HK$1,196,370,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,186,521,000).

The capital redemption reserve arose from the share
repurchases in the previous year.

34.

35.

BRERE(E)

RREBR AR FERESET
100,217,50010 M KT FE B AR - RIBFA R
AEAERAERE  BHOEEHRTEZE
[i% #E 1% 38 B 8E YN 85 17100,217,500 % A8 2 7]
I3 g K 1 0 A% 4<10,022,0005%8 Jt (A8 & 7
A R #8,122,0007T) & % 17 Ji {E 414,734,000
7 7T (8 & R A R #336,116,0007T) (30 Bk 2
TEMA) -

REEH K% » 4 455,539,000 & f% & (&
1T EB1.70%8 70) }2.2,124,00017 & B #& (&
MITEEAB L) D ETE -

RIEEMHRERMEBR AR ABR
HE ST 2 592,554,500 151 A 17 BE AR & - 4R
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35. RESERVES (Cont'd)

(a)

Group (Cont’d)

The share-based payment reserve arose from the
Group’s management services agreements with certain
Haier franchise store owners, as further detailed in note
18 to the financial statements.

The share option reserve comprise the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payment transactions in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
the share premium account when the related options
are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related options expire or be forfeited.

The put option reserve arose from the Company's
incentive agreements with certain non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, as further detailed in note
29 to the financial statements.

The warrant reserve related to the convertible bonds
issued during the year, as further detailed in note 30 to
the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
certain of the Group’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC
are required to transfer a portion of their profits to
reserve funds. These funds are non-distributable in the
form of cash dividends. When determining the
appropriations to these funds, the net profits of these
subsidiaries are determined in accordance with the
applicable financial rules and regulations of the PRC.

35. #E (&)

(a)

rEE(E)
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STATEMENTS

35. (&)

(b) Company (b) &2F
Reserves
-1
Equity
Share Capital  Exchange  Share-based Share component of
premium  Contributed redemption fluctuation payment option  Retained ~ Warrant Total  convertible
Notes account surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve profits reserve reserve bonds Total
Bt BXRE  HERD  UREXH BRE RARER TERES
3 BEE HARH 1 e e wE  REEA e BEEE  2EEF¥2 #E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AR®TR ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETR AR¥TR ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2010 R-Z-T4-8-H 1,035,693 646,996 184 (187,957) — 7,286 101,154 — 1,603,356 — 1,603,356
Total comprehensive loss FREAFRLER
for the year — — - (66,105) - - (65,318) — (131,423) - (131,423
Issue of shares BB 3 43,577 - - - - (6,331) - - 37,246 — 37,246
Issue of convertible bonds RATRRES 30 — — — — — — — — — 61,788 61,788
Conversion of convertible bonds RETARES 3 660,993 - - - - - - — 660,993 (61788) 599,205
Equity-settled share option DRA S E 2 B IRE
arrangements f3:3 34 - - - - - 38,351 - - 38,351 — 38,351
Transfer of share option reserve upon 5B R 8 Y14 B &
the forfeiture or expiry of share FRRERE
options - - - — - (246) 246 - - — -
At 31 December 2010 and RZZ-F£+28
1 January 2011 =t-BR=%-
-¥-f-AH 1,740,263 646,996 184 (254,062) - 39,060 36,082 — 2,208,523 — 2,208,523
Total comprehensive loss FRNE2EFREE
for the year — — — (116,903) - - (74,424) - (191,327) — (191,327)
Issue of shares BIRHG 3 78,555 - - - - (7,404) - - 71,151 - 71,151
Issue of convertible bonds RIMRRES 30 - - - - - - - 59,700 59,700 149,249 208,949
Management services arrangements &8 R 75 & B 18 — — - - 70,000 - - — 70,000 - 70,000
Equity-settled share MRAEE 2 BikE
option arrangements Zi 34 - - - - - 29,953 - - 29,953 — 29,953
Transfer of share option reserve upon 5% 88 IR HE 4% 05 W 14 B
forfeiture or expiry THRRERE
of share options - - — — — (1,666) 1,666 - - - -
At 31 December 2011 R-F-—F+=4
=+-H 1,818,818 646,996 184 (370,965) 70,000 59,943 (36,676) 59,700 2,248,000 149,249 2,397,249

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders
subject to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) and bye-laws of the Company.

ARBZHNBE R ENE A
B fn AP EBBARR R BB E N
ERTROEEZEZRE REARE
—NAN—FEREEGER) AR
HRAEETARE-NAN-FQEA
(BAEFT) RARE 2 R a4 RIH 15 R
TTFDIRTHBER -
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36.

At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the
Company had any significant contingent liabilities.

37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37.

(@) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16 to
the financial statements) to Haier Affiliates under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

HAREE

RBERR  AKELAARRHELAE
RERAE -

RERNRZH

(a)

ERHBEA

AEBEREBELEEHOLZHBERE
Y% (B R R W st 16) M 708 5 B
BAL -BmEZ2HEBANT—FER
F o

RBERR  AKRERBER T HMHE
BE Y R RN Y R EERE
BERARERSZEESBBENOT:

Group
rEHE
2011 2010
—2——F —E-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARBF T
(Restated)
(E3))
Within one year —F R 1,008 2,391
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ERIF(BREREMF) — 1,317

1,008 3,708
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37. KREHENRH(E)
(Contd)
(b) As lessee (b) EARFEBA
The Group leases certain properties under operating REBRBELCEHROTHEHEART
lease arrangements. Leases for the properties are ME-HAMEZHBAZEAN T —
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years. FERF o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the R|EHAR NREEBRAQFARER
Company had total future minimum lease payments THEIR B 2 P RE EUE 2 A
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as BARRENKEESEEDT
follows:
Group Company
rEHE b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
- —Z2-TF ZB——-§ —T-ZF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AR®TR AR®ETT
(Restated)
(&%)
Within one year —FR 59,763 25,768 1,389 —
In the second to fifth E-_ERF
years, inclusive (BREEEWS) 56,939 17,825 — —
After five years hE% 2,995 — — —
119,697 43,593 1,389 —
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38. COMMITMENTS

38. HiE
P b 3 SE37(0) BT B 48 T M0 AR B S

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in
note 37(b) above, the Group had the following commitments

at the end of the reporting period:

REBRBERAREATESE

Group rEHE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBF T

Authorised, but not contracted for: BHEERETL
Land and buildings T REF 267,677 129,326

Contracted, but not provided for: EHEREE 33K
Property, plant and equipment ME - HREREZE 200,972 85,727
468,649 215,053
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Group
Financial assets

31 December 2011

39.

MBIADE

203

RHBERR SEUBTAZEEERT:

KEH
MBEE
—®2-—-%+t-A=+-H

Loans and Available-for-sale

receivables financial assets Total
EXREWER TRHEENBEE FER-C]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR% T AR¥BTT AR%Tx
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE — 8,625 8,625
Trade and bills receivables JEWE SRR & EE 5,572,035 — 5,572,035
Other receivables (note 24) EL i W2 BR 3R (BT 5E24) 380,435 — 380,435
Pledged deposits BEHEFFR 87,402 — 87,402
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFeEHIER 3,959,963 — 3,959,963
9,999,835 8,625 10,008,460
31 December 2010 —E-ZEF+ZHA=+—H
Loans and Available-for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
ERREWER AL EVBEE Rk
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBEF T AREFT ARET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E5)) (E751) (E3))
Available-for-sale investments A ERE — 8,625 8,625
Trade and bills receivables JEWEZERERE 3,910,791 — 3,910,791
Other receivables (note 24) H A, 8 W AR 3K (BT 5 24) 299,642 — 299,642
Pledged deposits EEREFR 3,011 — 3,011
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEIEE 2,725,866 — 2,725,866
6,939,310 8,625 6,947,935
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(Contd)
Group (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Contd)
1 January 2010

NCIAL STATEMENTS

30. I T ESE(E)

rEE(E)

MKEEE)
—E2—FF—-H—H

Loans and Available-for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
ERREWER JHREEMKEE =
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARBTT AR®FTT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E7)) 7)) (&%)
Available-for-sale investments AIHEHERE — 10,295 10,295
Trade and bills receivables BURESEREEE 3,345,051 — 3,345,051
Other receivables (note 24) H fth 8 UK BR 3R (BT £ 24) 75,600 — 75,600
Pledged deposits EERFR 86,814 — 86,814
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHEIER 1,482,877 — 1,482,877
4,990,342 10,295 5,000,637
Group rEHE
Financial liabilities Bkas
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—E——F —ET-ZF —E-TF
+=—A=+—-8B +ZA=+—H —A—H
Financial Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost amortised cost
REBHEBASIERE REHBCRIIER REHEKRYER
Z2HBaE Z2HBaE 2B aE
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARB TR ARBTT ARBTFT
Trade and bills payables ERESERRER 2,533,786 1,528,433 1,641,429
Other payables (note 27) H i, & A BR3P 5E27) 4,076,407 3,413,690 1,494,950
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 25,000 5,000 84,000
Put option liabilities FohEiEaE 115,000 — —
Convertible bonds R & FH 669,849 — —
7,420,042 4,947,123 3,220,379
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. iR T Eo ¥ (&)

(Cont’d)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEMR  SEMBIACREENAT:
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
Company b N
Financial assets B EE
Loans and receivables
ERRERER
2011 2010
= —E-T%
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T AREEF T
Due from subsidiaries (note 19) JiE UR BB A &) Z A (B RE19) 145,318 216,939
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEEE 1,340,242 768,694
1,485,560 985,633
Financial liabilities BHRaE
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
RBERETIEZHKEERE
2011 2010
—F——F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT AREEF T
Other payables (note 27) A FE A BR 3B 5227) 18,754 149,624
Due to subsidiaries (note 19) JFE A B BB 2 B 3R E (B 3%19) 80,698 74,341
Convertible bonds Al ] R EFH 669,849 —

769,301 223,965
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FAIR VALUE

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the

Company'’s financial instruments are as follows:

Group

40. A ¥ E
FEHMT:

rEM

Carrying amounts

AEERARBZHHTAZEREBERA

IREE

31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—E——F —E-ZF —E—TF
+=—A=+—H +=-—A=+—H —H—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBTT AR F T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (E5)

Financial assets BBREE
Trade and bills receivables ERESERNERE 5,572,035 3,910,791 3,345,051
Other receivables (note 24) E th i U BR S (BT 51 24) 380,435 299,642 75,600
Pledged deposits [RE=EiRER 87,402 3,011 86,814
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEBEER 3,959,963 2,725,866 1,482,877
9,999,835 6,939,310 4,990,342

Financial liabilities gy 3 =F
Trade and bills payables ENESERZANER 2,533,786 1,528,433 1,641,429
Other payables (note 27) H i, & AR B (P 5E27) 4,076,407 3,413,690 1,494,950
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEEE 25,000 5,000 84,000
Put option liabilities RoLEEAaE 115,000 — —
Convertible bonds AR E FH 669,849 — —
7,420,042 4,947,123 3,220,379
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—B-—FEH
27 & 23
Br 75 ¥ 3k MY RE
31 December 2011 — T ——F+=-A=+—H
40. FAIR VALUE (Cont’d) 40. X {E(E)
Group rEHE
Fair values
AFE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—ZE——F —E—ZF —E-FF
+=—A=+—-8B +=-—A=+—H —A—H
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREF T AREF T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E75)) (E73)
Financial assets MBEEE
Trade and bhills receivables JEWE SRR ERE 5,572,035 3,910,791 3,345,051
Other receivables (note 24) E P U BR 5K (B 5E24) 380,435 299,642 75,600
Pledged deposits EEREFER 87,402 3,011 86,814
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEHEEE 3,959,963 2,725,866 1,482,877
9,999,835 6,939,310 4,990,342
Financial liabilities gy 3=F
Trade and bills payables ENEZERRZE 2,533,786 1,528,433 1,641,429
Other payables (note 27) H i & A BR B (B[ 5227) 4,076,407 3,413,690 1,494,950
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 25,000 5,000 84,000
Put option liabilities RohEEAaE 115,000 — —
Convertible bonds AJ 2% (E 5 669,849 — —
7,420,042 4,947,123 3,220,379

All of the Group’s available-for-sale investments were stated
at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the
opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

AEBE A A ERE IR K ARBRE
IR - DA REEBATEZHAHERE
AAMEERR/ERFERGEASELAE -
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FAIR VALUE (Cont'd)

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the

40. D E(E)
AEBRARBRZUHBITAEZETMERLA

Company’s financial instruments are as follows: FEMT:
Company ARTH
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE A¥HE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—f Z—ZT-TH ZB-——-F Z—IZET-IZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTRT AR®TRT AR%®TR ARETT
Financial assets MEEE
Due from subsidiaries (note 19) JE U B BB A ) ZIE (KT 5E19) 145,318 216,939 145,318 216,939
Cash and cash equivalents RekH&EHEIEAR 1,340,242 768,694 1,340,242 768,694
1,485,560 985,633 1,485,560 985,633
Financial liabilities BHKEE
Other payables (note 27) H fth J& A5 BR 3R (B 5527) 18,754 149,624 18,754 149,624
Due to subsidiaries (note 19) JE A<F B B8 & &) 3k 28 (B 5119) 80,698 74,341 80,698 74,341
Convertible bonds AR iR (E 669,849 — 669,849 —
769,301 223,965 769,301 223,965

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits, other receivables and payables and trade and bills
receivables and payables approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments. The fair value of the liability portion of the
convertible bonds is estimated using an equivalent market
interest rate for a similar bond without a conversion option
and warrants. The fair value of put option liabilities are
measured based on valuation techniques for which any inputs
which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
not based on observable market data.

The fair values of the interest-bearing borrowings and
amounts due from and to subsidiaries have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments on similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities.

BREAERABZATAEANKREBEIAL
RZPETEERMIEXBERBRHEEN
BATETRIMBFHESEAR - T5
TERBRTIARGFERAFE:

RehReFERR CEHEFR Hi
MR EENER  BEESERRE
BANENEBESERAREE A FERZ
ETAZREERS TERAR/ZFTL
AREHRIM R EFEESRDSZ
RFERATAEBLREZEZBUES R
REEEZMETHNNEBE - ROHH#E
BEZAFERGBEERG (EHERHEAF
EEEAFEZEMEB ABIERHLIFRA
BERTSBBREH)FE -

AREEREREEMNKMBARREZA
FEEEESREEGR  FERREE
FREEEBARA S TRRH| 2R EH
RBEMARASRESHE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing borrowings, convertible bonds and cash and short
term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade and bills receivables and trade and bills payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the
Group's policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be
undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures mainly arise from sales or purchases by the Group's
operating units in Mainland China in currencies other than the
units’ functional currency (i.e., RMB). The Group does not
enter into any hedging transactions in an effort to reduce the
Group's exposure to foreign currency risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
exchange rates of the Euro, United States Dollar, Japanese
Yen and Great Britain Pound, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in
the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). There is no
significant impact on other components of the Group’s equity.

41.

HEREERREREE
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REEBRER  AEE2BER TR
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M. BEBRBREEEERBE(E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in exchange rates before tax
R Bt A1 5% A
ExL#A (T #m, Gh )
% RMB’000
AREFTT
31 December 2011 —E-——%+=A=+-—H
If RMB strengthens against Euro WARBHLBZENE 5 (5.972)
If RMB strengthens against United States Dollar i AR X ETHE 5 (7,758)
If RMB strengthens against Japanese Yen MmAREEBEAE 5 (4,363)
If RMB strengthens against Great Britain Pound  fif A R} B FHE 5 (334)
If RMB weakens against Euro MARBHBZERE (5) 5,972
If RMB weakens against United States Dollar MARBHETEE (5) 7,758
If RMB weakens against Japanese Yen MARESBERE (5) 4,363
If RMB weakens against Great Britain Pound i ANREH B E (5) 334
31 December 2010 —E-TF+-A=+—H
If RMB strengthens against Euro MAREEBZENE 5 (9,933)
If RMB strengthens against United States Dollar i A R# X E T HE 5 (8,726)
If RMB strengthens against Japanese Yen WARYEBEHAHE 5 (733)
If RMB strengthens against Great Britain Pound  fif A RN HEEFHE 5 (1,322)
If RMB weakens against Euro WMARBLBRERE (5) 9,933
If RMB weakens against United States Dollar MARBEETRE (5) 8,726
If RMB weakens against Japanese Yen mAREHBERE (5) 733
If RMB weakens against Great Britain Pound M AREES REEE (5) 1,322
1 January 2010 —T-FF—-A—H
If RMB strengthens against Euro HMARKEHBEAE 5 (9,266)
If RMB strengthens against United States Dollar i AR X ETIHHE 5 (8,576)
If RMB strengthens against Japanese Yen MARBHAEBEAE 5 (631)
If RMB strengthens against Great Britain Pound i A ¥ 5 5 82 7+ (B 5 (1,588)
If RMB weakens against Euro HMARBLBRERE (5) 9,266
If RMB weakens against United States Dollar MARBEHETERE (5) 8,576
If RMB weakens against Japanese Yen MAREHBERE (5) 631
If RMB weakens against Great Britain Pound i A\RBH RERE (5) 1,588
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31 December 2011 — T ——F+=-A=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’'s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty and by geographical region. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group as
the customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are
widely dispersed in different sectors.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in
note 23 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
loans and other borrowings and convertible bonds. It is the
Group's policy to renew its loan agreements with Haier
Finance or major local banks in Mainland China upon the
maturity of the Group’s short term bank loans and other
borrowings when funding is needed.

41.
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31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)

Liquidity risk (Contd)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

31 December 2011

4. BEEREERERKE(E)

RBEERR(E)

—®2-—F+=A=+-H

On demand or
no fixed terms

Within Beyond

RBERR - REETHEFTNNAKGE
AEEMBABZIHBBERET:

of repayment one year one year Total
RERD
& E 2 X —FR —5#% st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%®TR AR%TR AR%¥ TR
Trade and bills payables ENEZERRER — 2,511,869 21,917 2,533,786
Other payables (note 27) E A FE A BR 3R (B 5E27) 4,076,407 — — 4,076,407
Interest-bearing borrowings stEEE — 25,000 — 25,000
Put option liabilities RoLEEEE — 900 114,100 115,000
Convertible bonds AR ES = = 669,849 669,849
4,076,407 2,537,769 805,866 7,420,042
31 December 2010 —E-ZF+-A=+—H
On demand or
no fixed terms Within Beyond
of repayment one year one year Total
RERN
#E [E] TF & AR —FR —F1& e
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBFTT ARBTIT ARBTIT ARBTT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E31)) (&%) (E7)) (E31))
Trade and bills payables ENEZERLREE — 1,512,812 15,621 1,528,433
Other payables (note 27) H A FE A BR BB 55 27) 141,950 3,271,740 — 3,413,690
Interest-bearing borrowings it B & & — 5,000 — 5,000
141,950 4,789,552 15,621 4,947,123
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31 December 2011 =T ——F+=-A=+—H
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M. BERBEEEERBEE)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Liquidity risk (Contd) REBESRAMR(E)
1 January 2010 —E-ZTF—-H—H
On demand or
no fixed terms Within Beyond
of repayment one year one year Total
RERE
5 & 7F 8 5K A —FR —Fi& st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBTT AR®FTIT AR®BTT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(&%) (E75)) (E731) (E75)
Trade and bills payables ERNEZERRRR — 1,641,429 — 1,641,429
Other payables (note 27) A FE A BR 3P 5227) 147,048 1,347,902 — 1,494,950
Interest-bearing borrowings st EfEE — 10,000 74,000 84,000
147,048 2,999,331 74,000 3,220,379
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at RIMERR  BRRBREFTHOBEFTNNRAE
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual RARR M BEaE A ERMT:
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2011 —_E—-——F
On demand or
no fixed terms Within Beyond
of repayment one year one year Total
RERS
BEEBEREY —FR —F#% @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTRT AR¥BTR
Other payables (note 27) A JE A BR BB 5E27) 18,754 — — 18,754
Due to subsidiaries FE M B R R R IE
(note 19) (Ff¥ 5E19) — — 80,698 80,698
Convertible bonds AR 1 5 — — 669,849 669,849

18,754 = 750,547 769,301




214

41.

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
EHEREEERAR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % R R M R

31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT MERBEERERBRKE)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) REBESRAKE)
2010 —E-EF
On demand or
no fixed terms Within Beyond
of repayment one year one year Total
RERh
=[5 F 2 K —FRX —F1& st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥ETT ARETT ARBTT
Other payables (note 27) H fth J8 A+ R 31 (B 5527) 149,624 — — 149,624
Due to subsidiaries FEA BB A B 5k 1A
(note 19) (B 7£19) — — 74,341 74,341
149,624 — 74,341 223,965
Capital management EXERE

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2010.

AEBEARERZITRZARERREAE
BREKEZENRERRREAL X
A FHEEBRABRRERZHO R -

AEBBEBEERAEHERRAELE
$ B-REFIABELREE K&H
AEAEMBR RN ZEE AREERE

ﬁ$‘i§*”%ﬁ% REB TR EMINE
MEAEKRMAR BE-_FT——F+=
A=+ —AR=ZZF-ZFF+_A=1+—HL
FE FREAEEER BRELEFIL
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31 December 2011 —ZE——F+=-A=+—A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)

Capital management (Contd)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debt divided by total equity. The Group’s policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio not exceeding 50%. Total debt is
interest-bearing borrowings. The gearing ratios as at the ends
of the reporting periods were as follows:

41.

HHERAREERERERBEGE)

EXREE(E)
REBRBERBEL X (IEBKEMBER N
R BB ETFER AEE R RES
BERBELETEB0%  BEHEERE
HEEE - RBEHR - EXABHEMN
T

Group KEH
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2010 2010
—E——F —E-TF —E-TF
+=ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H —H—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥TT AREFT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&51) (E751)
Interest-bearing borrowings AEEE 25,000 5,000 84,000
Convertible bonds A ¥ i & 55 669,849 — —
Total debt B HE 694,849 5,000 84,000
Total equity HEmRE 4,280,853 2,813,638 1,792,491
Gearing ratio EXREEHE 16.2% 0.2% 4.7%
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42. {HEHREE
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, 7,663,000 U0 B TR SR R MT EE 34 — Bt - IR Y
share options were exercised, as further detailed in note 34 K& - B 171$7,663,00017 i i #& o gt 4 -
to the financial statements. In addition, 10,056,372 ordinary AAFEREHEAEBESTEEREHZ
shares of the Company were issued to certain Haier franchise THRERNERETEHEENE T 58 N
store owners who entered into management services B EE B A3£9710,056,372 8 L@ A% o B 18
agreements with the Group and achieved the prescribed REH s E—SHBERRMBRENST
performance targets during the year. Further details of the 18 °
management services agreements are included in note 18 to
the financial statements.
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 43. B HEZHE

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2012.

PR REERN - E——F=A=1+HKES
e E R EET -



Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
BHEREEERQA

216

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

I F B R

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out below. The amounts for the years ended 31 December
2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 have been restated as a result of the
common control business combination, as detailed in note 2.1 to

UTHINASEZ BERBAVBRFEEE BE
BERFEREZRE -HE_TTLF ZZ
ZN\F _ETNFRZF-ZTF+_A=F—
HEFEZSHEERARES TELAHME
5 BN B RERNE2.1 -

the financial statements.

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+t-ALFE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——F —E-ZF —EETNF —EENF e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR AR®FTx ARBTrx ARBTT AR®TE
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (E5) (E751) (&%)
RESULTS E5
REVENUE A 49,899,807 36,794,464 14,803,168 16,232,587 9,269,751
Cost of sales HEK AR (42,416,066) (31,966,696)  (11,497,781)  (13,462,652) (7,036,945)
Gross profit % # 7,483,741 4,827,768 3,305,387 2,769,935 2,232,806
Other income and gains H A A R = 99,405 74,115 48,392 41,971 41,326
Selling and distribution costs HERNHEER (4,146,905) (2,538,091) (1,985,017) (1,738,122) (1,330,919)
Administrative expenses THEA (1,565,167) (917,939) (691,537) (798,314) (539,053)
Other expenses and losses EmBAKER (60) (1,082) (12,634) (11,993) (5,841)
Finance costs LR DN (22,492) (5,239) (7,980) (14,816) (23,461)
Share of profits and losses of FEAE R 2 &
jointly-controlled entities ERER — 5,318 3,783 4,173 2,664
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R Bt A0 5% F 1,848,522 1,444,850 660,394 252,834 377,522
Income tax expense B RAX (385,877) (429,140) (148,891) (41,962) (116,030)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 1,462,645 1,015,710 511,503 210,872 261,492
Attributable to: AT &5 FEAE
Owners of the Company PN 8 1,406,016 974,247 455,724 190,536 209,164
Non-controlling interests FEVE A HE & 56,629 41,463 55,779 20,336 52,328
1,462,645 1,015,710 511,503 210,872 261,492
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- & - 8& R
CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER
TOTAL ASSETS EEHE 14,294,036 9,898,629 6,458,586 5,240,528 4,433,858
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEHE (10,013,183) (7,084,991) (4,666,095) (4,004,137) (3,491,424)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS — FE#ERAEEZ (263,870) (214,749) (146,995) (99,924) (92,793)
4,016,983 2,598,889 1,645,496 1,136,467 849,641
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